
 
1 

 
 

LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
Linda Fisher 
Service Director 
 
COMMITTEE SERVICES SECTION 
PO Box 15, Town Hall, Rochdale OL16 1AB 
 
Telephone: Rochdale (01706) 647474 
Fax: Rochdale (01706) 924705 
www.rochdale.gov.uk  
 

To:  All Members of Cabinet Your Ref:  
Our Ref:  
Enquiries to: Mark Hardman 
Extension:         4704 
Date: 20 October 2011 
 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
CABINET 
 
You are requested to attend the meeting of Cabinet to be held in No's 1 & 2 
Committee Rooms - Rochdale Town Hall on Monday, 31 October 2011 commencing 
at 6.15 pm. 
 
The agenda and supporting papers are attached.  
 
If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of Interest 
which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please contact staff in the 
Committee Services Section at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Linda Fisher 
Service Director 
 
 
Cabinet Membership 2011/12 
 
Councillor Ahmed 
Councillor Beswick 
Councillor Martin Burke 
Councillor Lambert 
Councillor Martin 
Councillor Robinson 
Councillor Williams 
 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
3 

ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

Monday, 31 October 2011 at 6.15 pm 
 

No's 1 & 2 Committee Rooms - Rochdale Town Hall 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
Apologies for Absence 

1. Declaration of Interests  

 Members are requested to indicate at this stage, any items on the agenda in 
which they intend to declare an interest.  Members are reminded that, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2000 and the Council’s Code of 
Conduct, they must declare the nature of any personal or prejudicial interest and, 
if the interest is prejudicial, withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the 
item. 

2. Minutes  

 To approve the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 1st September, 
19th September and 6th October 2011. 

3. Proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges 2012/13  

4. Common Housing Allocation Policy and Policy Amendments  

5. Implementing the Anti-Social Behaviour Policy  

6. Gating Orders  

7. Climate Change Adaptation Supplementary Planning Document  

 Copies of the draft Climate Change Adaptation Supplementary Planning 
Document are available in the Town Hall Group Rooms, the Heywood and 
Middleton Members’ Rooms, from Committee Services and at 
www.rochdale.gov.uk  

8. Customer Services - Piloting New Ways of Working  

9. Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults - Annual Update  

10. Rochdale Town Centre - Metrolink Phase 3B: Proposed New Traffic Regulation 
Orders and Revocation of Existing Traffic Regulation Orders  

11. Rochdale Town Centre Capital Programme  

 The Executive Director to report 

12. Greater Manchester Combined Authority and AGMA Executive Board - Key 
Decisions  

13. Exclusion of Press and Public  

 To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

14. Rochdale Town Centre Strategic Acquisition  



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

 
 PRESENT: Councillor Lambert (in the Chair), Councillors Beswick, Martin 
Burke, Martin, Robinson and Williams 

 
OFFICERS:  P. Smith (Executive Director), C. Eastwood (Executive Director),  
A. Zuntz (Executive Director), L. Fisher (Service Director - Legal and Democratic),  
S. Harper (Service Director - Human Resources), V. Crossland and P. Kane (Finance 
and Procurement Service), L. Griffiths (Human Resources Service) and M. Hardman 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
   
Also in Attendance:  Councillors Dearnley, Hobhouse, McCarthy and Murphy 
  
Apologies for Absence:  Councillor Ahmed 
 
 
ADDITIONAL ITEM OF BUSINESS 
61 The Chair advised of the consideration of an additional item of business 
relating to Phase 2 of the Building Schools for the Future programme on grounds of 
urgency.  As a key decision, this consideration had also been agreed by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee under Special Urgency provisions of Access to 
Information Procedure Rules. 
 
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
62 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE - PHASE 2 
63The Head of Schools Service sought approval for the Phase 2 Schemes under the 
Building Schools for the Future Programme. 
 
The recommendations were presented to gain approval for submission of the Final 
Business Case for the Phase 2 Schemes and to seek authorisation for the Service 
Director - Legal and Democratic to execute the contracts under seal at financial close 
which is planned to take place before the end of December 2011 in order to tie in 
with the construction programme. 
 
Alternatives considered:  There had been a full review of alternatives during the 
procurement process to date with regular reports to the BSF Programme Board and 
Member Steering Group.  A full consultation process with the public, school 
stakeholders and members of Council has taken place during the three years of BSF 
procurement. 

 
DECIDED – That (1) the submission of the Final Business Case for the 
Phase 2 Building Schools for the Future Schemes be approved; 
 (2) the Service Director - Legal and Democratic, or her authorised 
representative, be authorised to execute under seal the Design and 
Build Target Cost Contracts in relation to Holy Family Roman Catholic & 
Church of England College, Middleton Technology School, Darnhill 
PRU, Saxon Hall PRU and Kingsway Park High School at Contract 
Award and any incidental or ancillary documentation required to be 
signed either in order to achieve financial close or following financial 
close; 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 (3) authorise the Section 151 Officer, if required to do so,  to 
execute and complete any necessary certificates under the Local 
Government (Contracts) Act 1997 in relation to Phase 2 of the project. 

 
SAVING PROPOSAL CC40: PROPOSED CHANGES TO CONDITIONS OF 
SERVICE 
64 The Chair permitted representatives of UNISON and UNITE to address the 
meeting in relation to the item concerning proposed changes to conditions of service. 
 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
65 In moving the exclusion of the press and public, the Chair indicated that on 
this occasion, and without establishing precedent for any future considerations, he 
was minded to permit the trade union representatives to remain in the meeting to 
observe the Cabinet decision making in respect of the remaining item of business. 
 

 DECIDED – That, other than trade union representatives for the item and 
purpose as indicated by the Chair, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the remaining item of business 
since it is likely, that in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the 
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information, information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any 
labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the 
Crown and employees of, or officer-holders under, the authority and 
information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings.   

 
SAVING PROPOSAL CC40: PROPOSED CHANGES TO CONDITIONS OF 
SERVICE 
66 The Service Director – Human Resources presented a report seeking 
approval to proceed with formal consultations with staff and the trade unions on a 
package of proposed changes to conditions of service as part of the Council’s budget 
savings process. 
 
The recommendations were presented following consideration of a package of 
proposals which took account of the need to make savings.  Formal consultation with 
the trade unions on proposed changes to terms and conditions had been authorised 
in October 2010 and it was now considered appropriate to progress the proposals, 
which had been subject to some modification not related to the consultation, at this 
time. 
 
Alternatives considered:  A number of options relating to terms and conditions had 
been considered by the Council previously related to the Pay and Grading Review.  
Should proposals in the submitted report be not progressed, alternate means of 
achieving the required savings would need to be considered. 
 
Members of the Cabinet gave consideration to the issues raised by trade union 
representatives at the meeting in respect of this item.  

DECIDED – That (1) the proposals outlined in Appendix 1 of the 
submitted report, with the exception of the proposal at 2.4, be approved 
as a basis for formal consultation with staff and trade unions. 

(2) the proposal at 2.4 be deferred to the Executive Director, Pam 
Smith, in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Chair and 
Vice Chair of the Employment Committee to (a) further discuss the detail 

Page 2



and principle of matters outlined at 2.4, and (b) report back to the 
Cabinet and the Employment Committee on the outcome of those 
discussions 
  (3) it be noted that the outcome of consultations relating to 
changes to terms and conditions with staff and trade unions will be 
reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Employment 
Committee, Cabinet and Council for consideration as part of the final 
decision making process in relation to changes to conditions of service. 

   (4) the Service Director, Human Resources develop a strategy 
regarding the potential implementation arrangements for the proposed 
changes to conditions of service, to be reported to Members as part of 
the final decision making. 

 
HIGHWAYS FUNDING 
67 It was confirmed that the intention of the Cabinet at the meeting held on 6th 
June 2011 was that the Pilsworth Road Traffic Management System cost overrun 
should be funded from within the overall Highways Programme.  The Executive 
Director, Andy Zuntz, undertook to confirm and progress the scheme. 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Monday, 19 September 2011 

 
PRESENT:   Councillor Lambert (in the Chair); Councillors Ahmed, Martin 

Burke, Martin and Robinson 
 

OFFICERS:  R. Ellis (Chief Executive), P. Smith (Executive Director), A. Zuntz 
(Executive Director), J. Patterson (Executive Director), S. Downey (Executive 
Director), C. Eastwood (Executive Director), L. Fisher (Service Director – Legal and 
Democratic), R. Hunter (Service Director – Finance and Procurement), M. Widdup 
(Service Director – Operational Services), S. Harper (Service Director – Human 
Resources), A. Glover and M. Monk (Planning and Regulation Service), V. Crossland 
and G. Jones (Finance and Procurement Service), J. Silvester (Performance and 
Transformation Service), S. Blundell (Human Resources Service), M. Hardman 
(Legal and Democratic Services). 
   
Also in Attendance:  Councillors Sultan Ali, Dearnley, Hobhouse, Hornby and Rush, 
R. Duddell (Rochdale Development Agency), T. Wood and R. Grindrod (Highways 
Service – Impact Partnership), N. Riggs (Property Services – Impact Partnership) 
and J. Rossini (Director of Public Health)  
   
Apologies for Absence:   
 Councillors Beswick and Williams 
 
 
ADDITIONAL ITEM OF BUSINESS 
68 The Chair indicated an item of additional business relating to the Street 
Lighting Private Finance Initiative project would be considered on the Agenda in 
order to allow confirmation of a final timetable for the project programme.  
 
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
69 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
MINUTES 
70 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 11th 
July and 4th August 2011 be approved. 
 
HIGHWAYS FUNDING AND 20MPH ZONES 
71 The Cabinet received Minute 29(1) of the meeting of the Pennines Township 
Committee held on 5th July 2011 advising the Cabinet of concerns with regard to the 
impact on funding available for Highways Schemes for the Township due to the 
introduction of the Boroughwide 20mph school zones schemes which had been 
funded directly from Township Funds over several years. 

DECIDED – That the concerns of the Pennines Township Committee be 
noted. 

 
MILNROW TOWN CENTRE AND ADJACENT STREETS - PROPOSED NEW 
WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND REVOCATION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS 
72 The Director of Highways reported that the Pennines Township Committee 
meeting held on 24th May 2011 had considered a report regarding proposed new 
waiting restrictions and revocation of waiting restrictions in Milnrow Town Centre and 
adjacent streets.  In considering the objections to the proposals and the response of 
the Director of Highways, the Committee had decided not to implement the proposals 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5



as advertised.  In accordance with the Scheme of Delegation the matter was 
therefore referred to the Cabinet for determination. 
 
The Cabinet consideration the report of the Service Director – Highways and 
Engineering that had been considered by the Pennines Township Committee on  
24th May 2011 which advised of the objections received to the proposed introduction 
of new waiting restrictions and revocation of the existing waiting restrictions in 
Milnrow town centre and adjacent streets, presenting the response of the Director of 
Highways to the objections received and asking whether the recommendations 
should or should not be implemented.  In considering the objections, the Director of 
Highways had proposed amendments to the proposals on Smith Street and Stone 
Street, as outlined within the submitted report, and such amendments had been 
agreed by the Pennines Township Committee.   
 
The recommendation was presented as a decision needed to be made in respect of 
the objections received to the advertised order in that the scheme could be progress 
and new restrictions introduced. 
 
Alternatives considered:  To retain the existing waiting restrictions through the town 
centre – however to strike a balance between the demand for on-street parking and 
the need to keep unobstructed two way traffic along the main thoroughfares, it was 
considered necessary to introduce the new restrictions. 
 DECIDED – That having considered the objections to the proposed 
Order, the response of the Director of Highways and the recommendation of 
the Pennines Township Committee, the proposed new waiting restrictions and 
revocation of waiting restrictions in Milnrow town centre and adjacent streets, 
as shown in paragraph 6 and Appendix A of the report considered by the 
Pennines Township Committee on 24th May 2011,  with the amendment on 
Smith Hill as outlined in paragraph 6.3.3 and the amendments on Stone Street 
as outlined in paragraph 6.4.3 to that report and as shown on Appendix B – 
plan number H60/1057/7 to that report, be approved.  
 
REMOVAL OF METROLINK STOP AT WET RAKE, ROCHDALE 
73 The Cabinet received minute 16 of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 28th July 2011 referring back a called-in decision of the Cabinet 
meeting held on 6th June 2011 (Minutes 6 refers) with regard to the removal of a 
Metrolink Tram Stop at Wet Rake, Rochdale.  The Committee had requested that the 
Cabinet consider future options for Metrolink in Drake Street in the context of the 
overall re-generation of the town centre. 
 
The Executive Director, Andy Zuntz advised that matters were in hand for the 
submission of a report to Cabinet considering issues as requested by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, and for a report that had been requested by that Committee 
on further issues related to the called-in business. 

DECIDED – That the referral back from call-in be noted and the 
Executive Director report to the next meeting of the Cabinet considering 
the issue as referred by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
FINANCIAL UPDATE 
74 The Service Director for Finance and Procurement updated Members on the 
Council’s current financial position for 2011/12. 

DECIDED – That (1) the projected 2011/12 Revenue and Capital Budget 
position be noted and Service Directors be reminded of the requirement 
to manage expenditure within the approved budget; 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Page 6



(2) the achievement of the saving proposals for 2011 be 
noted; 

(3) the return of £1.5m budget pressures funding from 
Adult Care Services be noted and the allocation of that amount to the 
funding strategy for 2012/13 be approved. 

 
REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET 2012/13 - 2014/15 UPDATE 
75 The Executive Director, Pam Smith and the Service Director for Finance and 
Procurement updated the Cabinet on the 2012/13 – 2014/15 Revenue and Capital 
budgets. 
 
The recommendations were presented to update Members on the development of 
Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2012/13 – 2014/15.   
 
Alternatives considered:  The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced Revenue 
and Capital Budget.  The Budget process was complex and must be undertaken in a 
planned way.  Whilst Budgets were prepared in accordance with the approved 
guidelines, a number of alternative options related to savings proposals and budget 
pressures were considered as part of the overall budget setting process. 

DECIDED – That (1) the Revenue and Capital Budget position for 2012/13 
to 2014/15 be noted; 

(2) the potential risks around the budget, as detailed 
within the submitted report be noted; 

(3) the increase in fees and charges, as contained within 
the budget guidelines and timetable report approved by the Cabinet on 
11th July 2011, be amended from 3.6% to 4.6% and a report be submitted 
to the Cabinet meeting on 31st October 2011 for the approval for fees 
and charges for the purposes of consultation; 

(4)  the capital  programme for the period 2012/13 to 
2014/15, as detailed at paragraph 3.11 to the submitted report be 
approved. 

 
CAR BOOT SALES - PROPOSAL TO RESTRICT CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH 
FEES AND CHARGES WILL BE LEVIED 
76 The Service Director for Planning and Regulation advised of proposals to 
restrict the circumstances in which all organisers of car boot sales were currently 
required to pay the Local Authority a fee of £3.00 per car under the Council’s 
arrangements for discretionary fees and charges. 
 
The recommendation was presented as while it was clear that a policy of charging 
had delivered valuable income for the Authority, it had proved contentious with 
organisers who stated that the levy imposed severely impacted upon the level of 
income that was raised for charitable or other good causes. 
 
Alternatives considered:  It was possible to retain the discretionary fee of £3.00 per 
vehicle.  However the requirements to pay the fee had been contentious with local 
organisers for some time and if adopted the proposal to dispense with the fee would 
alleviate concerns and enable the Council to show financial support for local good 
causes at a time when the Council was also reducing funding of voluntary 
organisations. 

DECIDED – That the following categories of organisation be exempt 
from the current discretionary charge levied on each vehicle attending a 
car boot sale:- 
(i) Registered Charities  

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No  

Page 7



(ii) Groups representing “good causes” or which are deemed to 
support local interests; and  

(iii) other not for profit organisations whose purposes accord with 
the Council’s overall strategic objectives, subject to the funds 
raised being re-invested in line with the Council’s strategic 
objectives. 

 
PRIMARY AUTHORITY PRINCIPLE: PUBLIC PROTECTION, BUSINESS 
ENGAGEMENT AND ECONOMIC REGENERATION 
77 The Service Director for Planning and Regulation advised the Cabinet of the 
Public Protection Section’s intention to adopt the Primary Authority principle as a 
formal mechanism for local business engagement and as a vehicle to support 
business re-generation in the Borough.   
 
The recommendation was presented as the Primary Authority principle was a 
Government sponsored initiative to promote closer understanding between business 
and regulators.  It benefited business by increasing dialogue with and exposure to 
their Local Authority’s regulatory staff and created certainty as to certain matters 
agreed between the two parties which would be binding on other enforcement 
agencies.  It benefited the Local Authority as there was full cost recovery of the 
resources required to support Primary Authority. 
 
Alternatives considered:  The Council could continue with its existing Home Authority 
approach. However this would fail to take advantage of the opportunity presented by 
Primary Authority to provide greater support for local businesses on a cost recovery 
basis. 

DECIDED – That (1) the proposed adoption of the Primary Authority 
principle be endorsed; 

(2) authority to sign any subsequent formal Primary 
Authority agreements on behalf of the Local Authority be delegated to 
the Service Director for Planning and Regulation; 

(3) authority for exercising other powers and duties as set 
out in the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 be delegated 
to the Chief Public Protection Officer. 

 
WINTER SERVICE PROPOSALS AND POLICY 
78 The Director of Highways advised the Cabinet of proposals for the winter 
service following papers presented to Cabinet Members and the Township 
Committees during the 2010/11 winter season and the consultation period for all 
Ward Councillors and Townships which closed on 15th April 2011, the submitted 
report identifying options for further improvements to the level of service on the 
2010/11 winter season.  The report also included the Council’s Highway’s Winter 
Policy for approval.  The Director of Highways further reported on the outcome of 
consultations with the Township Committees in the week commencing 5th September 
2011. 
 
The recommendations were presented to enable the Cabinet to consider 
improvements to the winter service for 2011/12 winter period. 
 
Alternatives considered:  Alternative forms of provision, including in relation to 
carriageway and pedestrian area treatments, the provision of salt bins, and salt stock 
holdings were considered within the submitted report. 
 
A number of Members addressed the Cabinet in respect of specific highways that 
had been identified for exclusion from carriageway treatment rounds, highlighting 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Page 8



particular concerns. Further to the additional report of the Director of Highways 
concerning Township Committee feedback, additional routes for winter gritting within 
the Pennines Township at Stoney Heys Avenue; the whole length of Starring Way 
(Bus and Public access from the estate); Rakewood Road and Top of Kiln Lane 
(single track roads to isolated areas) and Ashfield Lane, Dale View, Derwent Drive 
and Westmorland Drive (essential link roads for local communities) were requested. 

DECIDED – That (1) the following options, as outlined in the submitted 
report, be agreed for further improvements to the winter service:- 

 
Carriageway Treatment Routes 

Ref Details of Option 

C1 Include hospices on the priority treatment routes. 

C2 Include ambulance stations (emergency service) on the 
priority treatment routes. 

C4 Include Special Schools on the standard treatment routes. 

C5 Include Pupil Refer Units on the standard treatment 
routes. 

C6 Include GMWDA Household Waste Recycling Centres on 
the standard treatment routes. 

C7 Include GMWDA Waste Treatment Facilities (that include 
Transfer Loading Stations and In-Vessel Composting 
Facilities) on the standard treatment routes. 

C8 Include bus / coach depots on the standard treatment 
routes. 

C9 Include bus turnarounds on the standard treatment 
routes. 

C10 Include business parks on the standard treatment routes 
(as defined by the business parks and other major sites 
for business in the UDP). 

C11 Include bus interchanges, depots and non-adopted 
turnarounds on treatment routes as part of a chargeable 
service for TfGM. 

C13 Include train / tram depots on the standard treatment 
routes. 

 
Pedestrian Area Treatments 

Ref Details of Option 

P1 Include subways on the pedestrian area treatments. 

 
Salt Bins 

Ref Details of Option 

S2 Provide and maintain Township salt bins which are funded 
by Townships and are supplementary to the 'Additional 
Allocation' within the policy. 

S3 Provide and maintain Township salt bins which are funded 
by Townships and are supplementary to the 'Replacement 
Allocation' within the policy. 

 

(2) the following options for further improvements to the 
winter service be reviewed by the Cabinet for decision following 
presentation of further financial details:- 

 
 
 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Page 9



Carriageway Treatment Routes 

Ref Details of Option 

C3 Include criteria that all adopted carriageways to all places 
of worship are treated for the place of worship’s main 
religious event. 

C14 Include Primary Schools on the standard treatment 
routes. 

 
Pedestrian Area Treatments 

Ref Details of Option 

P2 Include criteria that all adopted footways to all places of 
worship are treated for the place of worship’s main 
religious event. 

 
(3) a further report be presented on costings for the filling 

of grit bins; 
(4) a further report on an option to include primary 

schools on the pedestrian area treatments be developed and submitted 
to the Cabinet for consideration;  

(5) a further report on an option to include nurseries on 
the carriageway standard treatment routes be developed and submitted 
to the Cabinet for consideration;  

(6) a further report on an option to include specific roads 
on the carriageway standard treatment routes, which are currently 
outside the scope of the Highways Winter Service Policy, be developed 
and submitted to the Cabinet for consideration;  

(7) the Highways Winter Service Policy be approved and 
referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration; 

(8) any amendments required to the Winter Service Policy 
following consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be 
referred to the Director of Highways in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Performance and Partnerships. 

 
DEVELOPING THE BOROUGH'S SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES STRATEGY 
79 The Service Director for Performance and Transformation presented the 
feedback received from the general public following circulation of the final draft 
Sustainable Community Strategy for the Borough and sought consideration and 
approval of the Strategy. 
 
The recommendation was presented to secure approval of the statutory Sustainable 
Communities Strategy. 
 
Alternatives considered:  The Council was obliged to prepare a Sustainable 
Communities Strategy.  Alternative options and approaches had been considered 
within the consultation period, 

DECIDED – That (1) the Sustainable Community Strategy be approved 
for implementation in light of suggested responses to the comments 
received during consultation;  

(2) the vision contained within the final draft of the 
Strategy be adopted; 

(3) the Strategy be approved to cover the period 2011 - 21; 
(4) Service Directors embed the delivery of the Strategy in 

future service plans; 

Page 10



(5) Partners be asked to ensure that they build the delivery 
of the Borough’s Sustainable Community Strategy into their corporate 
plans; 

(6) the Council be recommended to adopt the Sustainable 
Community Strategy 2011 - 21.  

 
ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY 
80 The Service Director for Finance and Procurement sought approval of the 
draft Anti-Bribery Policy which had been produced in response to the Bribery Act 
2010 that had come into force on 1st July 2011. 
 
The recommendation was presented to secure approval of the anti-Bribery Policy. 
 
Alternatives considered:  The Bribery Act 2010 did not necessarily require an 
organisation to take any action, but if the Council chose to do nothing, or not enough, 
in relation to it’s level of perceived risk of bribery, then it would be at risk of breaching 
the Act and incurring penalties if an instance of proven bribery was to take place.  
The Policy was therefore a key development towards ensuring that the Council put in 
place adequate procedures in order to not only minimise the risk of bribery taking 
place but also to have a good chance of the defence under the Act in the event of an 
instance of bribery happening. 

DECIDED – That the Anti-Bribery Policy be approved, subject to 
consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5th October 
2011. 

 
REBUILDING THE COUNCIL: £64M QUESTION 
81 The Service Director for Legal HR and Performance advised the Cabinet of 
the consultation feedback on the £64m Question arising from the Cabinet 
consideration of a report “Rebuilding the Council for 2014-15” at a meeting held on 
the 11th July 2011 and presenting suggested changes to the approach.  Approval was 
sought for the future vision and direction of the Council as set out in the document 
“Vision and Blue Print for Rochdale Council for 2014 -15” for final consultation. 
 
The recommendation was presented to enable consideration of responses to the 
consultation exercise conducted in July/August, and to seek approval to a more 
detailed proposals relating to the vision and direction of the Council to be the subject 
of more detailed and focussed consultation. 
 

Alternatives considered: The comments received as a result of consultation 
had been considered in developing the document ‘Vision and Blueprint for the 
Council for 2014-15’, as detailed within the submitted report. 

DECIDED – That (1) the outcome of consultation on the vision, direction 
and model for the Council, as summarised in Appendix 1 to the 
submitted report, be noted and the changes proposed as a result of the 
consultation be agreed; 

(2) the Equality Impact Assessment on the vision, 
direction and model for the Council following the consultation, as 
detailed in Appendix 2 to the submitted report, be noted; 

(3) approval for the consultation document for the vision, 
direction and model for the Council, be delegated to the Executive 
Director, Pam Smith in consultation with the Leader of the Council prior 
to seeking further consultations; 

(4) the future approach to managing the budget, as set out 
in paragraph 3.40 to the submitted report be agreed. 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Page 11



 
STREET LIGHTING PFI REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME 
82 The Cabinet received Minute 45 of the meeting of the Middleton Township 
Committee held on 8th September 2011 arising from consultations held with the 
Township Committees in the week commencing 5th September 2011 with regard to 
the Street Lighting Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Replacement Programme.  The 
Township Committee had considered the schedule for the replacement programme 
and had requested that the Hollin area of Middleton be included in the same part of 
the programme as the rest of the Middleton area.   
 
The Executive Director, John Patterson advised that this was the only referral from 
the Township Committees on consideration of the replacement programme and that 
the request could be accommodated within the programme. 

DECIDED – That Hollin be included with the rest of the Middleton area 
within the Street Lighting PFI Replacement Programme schedule. 

 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
83 DECIDED – That the press and public be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of the remaining items of business since it is likely 
that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature 
of the proceedings that if members of the public were present there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information, namely information 
relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual; information relating to the business or financial affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information); and 
information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any 
labour relations matter arising between the Authority or a Minister of the 
Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority.  

 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - DEAN STREET, ROCHDALE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT 
84 The Chief Executive of the Rochdale Development Agency provided an 
update on the Dean Street Housing Scheme and sought approval for the entering 
into a legal Development Agreement between the Council and Keepmoat Ltd which 
would result in a new housing scheme at Dean Street Wardleworth. 
 
The recommendations within the submitted report sought to progress the 
development at Dean Street, Wardleworth following an exclusivity agreement being 
signed between the Council and Keepmoat. 
 
Alternatives considered:  To undertake an open market sale – while this option would 
realise an upfront capital receipt in current market conditions there was no guarantee 
a purchaser would develop the site in the short to medium term leaving it underused 
and presenting a poor appearance.  To not enter into a development agreement 
would mean that the Council would have limited control over the future development; 
the development agreement would protect the Council’s interests and give the 
Council a level of control and influence in the future of the development.  Entering 
into the development for the construction of new houses for the preferred developer 
was the preferred option which would enable the development to take place quickly 
and meet the Council’s broader regeneration objectives while delivering high quality 
housing. 

DECIDED – That (1) the Service Director for Legal and Democratic be 
authorised to enter into a development agreement with Keepmoat Ltd 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Page 12



for the construction of the housing scheme at Dean Street in 
Wardleworth; 

(2) the Service Director for Legal and Democratic be 
authorised to enter into a site for remediation licence with Keepmoat Ltd 
for the remediation of the Dean Street site in Wardleworth; 
  (3)any outstanding decisions relating to developers 
contributions be delegated to the Executive Director, Pam Smith in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Health, Adult Care and 
Housing and the Service Directors for Finance and Procurement, Legal 
and Democratic, and Housing and Regeneration. 

 
DISPOSAL OF MEADOW VIEW ELDERLY PERSONS HOME, CUTGATE, 
ROCHDALE 
85 The Service Director for Property sought approval for the disposal of part of 
the site of the former care home at Meadow View, Rochdale. 
 
The recommendation was presented to secure the disposal of a site, previously 
agreed by the Rochdale Township Committee for disposal, and to secure a capital 
receipt for the Council. 
 
Alternatives considered:  The Rochdale Township Committee had previously 
indicated that they wished the site to be used for a close care development.  
However, following failure to secure interest or funding or such a development, the 
Township Committee had subsequently agreed for disposal on the open market. 

DECIDED – The offer for the freehold interest in part of the site of the 
former care home at Meadow View, Rochdale, as detailed within the 
submitted report, be accepted. 

 
EXTERNAL ADVERTISING AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
86 The Service Director for Housing and Regeneration sought a consideration by 
the Cabinet of the use of external advertising in Council publications and on the 
production of a Business Directory and a Visitor Map.   
 
The recommendations were presented to enable the production of publicity materials 
for the promotion of the Borough at no cost to the Council. 
 
Alternatives considered:  It was considered unlikely that the Council would be able to 
fund publications or other communications from within it’s own budget in the current 
economic climate.  If the Council did not utilise external advertising it would be able 
to produce valuable resources for the Borough. 

DECIDED – That (1) external advertising be allowed in Council 
Publications; 

(2) the production of a Business Directory to be funded by 
external advertising be agreed; 

(3) the production of a Visitor Map to be funded by 
external advertising be agreed. 

 
PROCUREMENT ANNUAL CONTRACT AND TENDER SCHEDULE 
87 The Service Director for Finance and Procurement updated Members on 
forthcoming tenders due for renewal and sought approval for the issue and award of 
contracts as detailed within Appendix A to the submitted report. 
 
The recommendations were presented to meet the requirements of the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and to allow the Corporate Procurement Service the 
flexibility to benefit the local supply chain when applicable. 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Eligible for 
call-in  
 
Yes 

Page 13



 
Alternatives considered: None. 

DECIDED – That (1) the list of forthcoming tenders from existing 
approved budgets, as detailed in Appendix A to the submitted report, be 
noted; 

(2) the issuing of tenders through “The Chest” electronic 
tender system be approved; 

(3) the rationale for the route to market for individual 
tenders with particular reference to the consideration to local suppliers 
be approved; 

(4) authority for the Service Director for Legal and 
Democratic (contracts over £50,000) or the Head of Corporate 
Procurement (contracts under £50,000) to sign resulting contracts and 
any incidental and ancillary documentation be approved; 

(5) an annual retrospective report be submitted to the 
Cabinet detailing all tender awards.  

 
£64M QUESTION: 3 YEAR PLAN PROPOSALS - YEAR 1 (2012/13) 
88 Further to Minute 81 above, the Executive Director, Pam Smith reported that 
on current assumptions the Council needed to make savings of £64M over the next 
three years to achieve a balanced budget. Due to front-loading of funding reductions 
by the government, these savings were not spread evenly and the biggest saving of 
£31.5 million is needed in year 1 (2012-13).  Proposals for meeting the budget gap 
for 2012-13, partly through detailed savings proposals and partly through a funding 
strategy, were presented. The proposals were linked to the strategic review, as 
considered at Minute 81 above.  
 
The recommendations were presented to secure agreement to consult on savings 
proposals to meet the identified funding gap. 
 
Alternatives considered:  Alternative models and scenarios had been considered, but 
these had not been pursued as they would create a significant budget gap and result 
in critical services taking more of the Council budget, or would mean that the Council 
would fail to meet statutory requirements.  

DECIDED – That the following proposals for 2012/13 be approved for 
the purposes of consultation with staff, trade unions, the public and 
other stakeholders for a 90 day period –  

 

Ref. Item  

 C02 Closure of Ronald Gorton Centre Agreed for consultation 

 C03 Adult Care Transport Provision Agreed for consultation 

 C04 
Richard St Mental Health Therapy & Well 
Being Service 

Agreed for consultation 

 C05 
Mental Health Trust Staffing 
Arrangements 

Agreed for consultation 

 C06 
Care Management & Assessment - Older 
People & Disability Services 

Agreed for consultation 

 C07 Adult Care Resource Allocation System Agreed for consultation 

 C08 
Reduction in the use of external 
Fostering Placements 

Agreed for consultation 

 C09 
Reshaping of services within the Youth 
Offending Team (YOT)  

Agreed for consultation 

Add. Additional Adult Care BAU Targets Agreed for consultation 

 CS01 Support Services Agreed for consultation 

Eligible for 
call-in  
 
Yes 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
No 

Page 14



 CS02 
Townships/Sustainable Communities 
Team 

Option 3 agreed for 
consultation 

 P01 Charges for bulky household collections Agreed for consultation 

 P02 Countryside and open spaces Agreed for consultation 

 P04 Street Services Agreed for consultation 

 P05 
Further developments in corporate 
enforcement 

Agreed for consultation 

 P06 
Proposal from Planning & Regulation 
Service 

Agreed for consultation 

 P07 
Proposal from Environmental 
Management Service  

Agreed for consultation 

 PS01a Library – Internal Re-Structure  Agreed for consultation 

 PS02 Customer Service Centre Agreed for consultation 

 PS03 Advice Services Agreed for consultation 

 PS04 Public Building Cleaning 

Agreed for consultation, 
clarification of proposal 
affecting libraries prior 
to consultation 

PS05 Link4Life 
Savings target agreed, 
Link4Life to report 
further on proposals 

 PS06 
Adult Care Prevention and Independence 
Strategy Phase 2 

Agreed for consultation 

 PS07 Sure Start Management Agreed for consultation 

 PS09 Children's Centres - Resources Agreed for consultation 

 PS10 Home - School Discretionary Transport Agreed for consultation 

 PS11 Real Trust Agreed for consultation 

 PS12 Family Information Service Agreed for consultation 

 PS13 Youth Service Agreed for consultation 

 PS14 Sure Start Finance Team Agreed for consultation 

 PS15 Education Welfare Service Agreed for consultation 

 PS16 School Improvement Team Agreed for consultation 

 PS17 Adjustment to budgets  Agreed for consultation 

 PS19 Support for economic development Agreed for consultation 

 PS20 Economic support commissioning Agreed for consultation 

 PS21 Town Centre Management Agreed for consultation 

 PS22 Community Voluntary Sector Agreed for consultation 

 PS23 Running Cost & Overheads - Housing Agreed for consultation 

 PS24 
Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnerships 

Agreed for consultation 

 PS26 
Review of Commissioning Provision - 
Children’s Social Care 

Agreed for consultation 

 PS28 Early Break Agreed for consultation 

 
EFFICIENCY PROPOSAL AC17: COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR PREVENTION 
AND INDEPENDENCE SERVICES 
89 The Service Director for Adult Care and Support sought approval to the 
implementation of the new Commissioning Plan for Adult Care and Support 
Prevention and independence services.  The Commissioning Plan was for stage one 
of the process and would replace the majority of the existing Supporting People 
Programme and achieve the savings agreed in respect of Phase 3 savings proposals 
AC17 and AC05.  The Commissioning Plan involved ending a significant number of 
existing services, the re-modelling of some services and the continuing of others, the 

Page 15



report detailing which services would be ending, how these services would be 
replaced and what the commissioning and procurement arrangements would be, and 
how consultation with stakeholders had influenced the development of the 
Commissioning Plan. 
 
The recommendation was presented as implementation of the Plan would be the final 
stage in reducing the Council’s spend on Supporting People services by April 2012 in 
line with the reduction in national Government funding for this programme in 
Rochdale. 
 
Alternatives considered:  To top slice a 44% reduction from all Services would not 
have allowed for investment in strategic priorities and would have had unintended 
consequences to the viability of some Services.  To decommission all Services within 
the Prevention and Independence Strategy and re-tender all the Services would have 
had a significant impact, increased disruption for service users, and delayed 
implementation of the efficiencies. 
 
The Leader of the Council reminder the Cabinet that, in its decision making on this 
and the following item, Members should be satisfied that adequate consultation had 
been carried out, particularly where a decision would directly affect people with 
protected characteristics those people should expect to have been consulted; should 
have the specific requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty and the impact 
assessment in mind at the time when they made their decisions; and undertake a 
“substantial and rigorous” scrutiny of each proposal, considering the specific impact 
and the alternative approaches that could alleviate,  or at least mitigate, the impact of 
the decision. 

DECIDED – That (1) the outcomes of the consultation on the Prevention 
and Independence Strategy outcomes, and the changes as a result of 
the consultation be noted, and the Prevention and Independence 
Outcomes Framework, attached as Appendix 1 to the submitted report, 
be approved; 

(2) the outcomes of consultation on the housing support 
commissioning plan be noted and the changes to that plan as a result of 
the consultation be agreed; 

(3) the new commissioning plan and approach to 
commissioning for stage 1 of the Prevention and Independence Strategy 
in the Adult Care and Support Service be approved for implementation; 

(4) new contracts to be offered on the basis as detailed at 
recommendation 2.4 to the submitted report; 

(5) the Equality Impact Assessment on the new 
commissioning plan, as detailed in Appendix 4 to the submitted report, 
be noted. 

 
EFFICIENCY PROPOSAL PPLA19 - DAY AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT 
90 The Service Director for Adult Care and Support reported following 
consultation on the Meals-on-Wheels proposal PPLA19a, advising of service user 
and stakeholder consultation on the proposal to re-model the Meals-on-Wheels 
service. 
 
The recommendation was presented to seek agreement to the re-modelling of the 
Meals-on-Wheels service as part of the Review of Day Services proposal. 
 
Alternatives considered:  The Service could continue in its current format.  The 
outcome of the review supported the re-modelling of the service to provide increased 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Page 16



choice and control and a more effective service.  The option of service in its current 
format was therefore rejected. 

DECIDED – That (1) the outcome of consultation on the Meal-on-Wheels 
proposal be noted and the proposed re-modelling of the Meals-on-
Wheels service as detailed at paragraph 3.13 to the submitted report be 
approved for implementation, subject to staffing consultation with 
affected staff; 

(2) the Equality Impact Assessment as detailed at 
Appendix 1 to the submitted report be noted. 

 

Eligible for 
call-in 
 
Yes 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 6 October 2011 

 
 PRESENT: Councillor Lambert (in the Chair); Councillors Ahmed, Beswick, 
Martin Burke, Lambert, Robinson and Williams  

 
OFFICERS:  P. Smith (Executive Director), S. Downey (Executive Director),  
P. Young (Service Director – Customers and Communications), P. Kane (Finance 
and Procurement Service), D. Bowler (Housing and Regeneration Service),  
M. Hardman and D. Sharp (Legal and Democratic Service) 
   
Also in Attendance:  Councillors James Gartside, McCarthy and Zaman. 
   
Apologies for Absence:  Councillor Donna Elizabeth Martin 
 
 
ADDITIONAL ITEM OF BUSINESS 
91 The Chair indicated the consideration of an additional item of business 
relating to Saving Proposal PS14 – Sure Start Finance Team to enable consideration 
of the withdrawal of a proposal from the current consultation process. 
 
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
92 In accordance with the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted 
Members, Councillor Martin Burke declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
agenda item 2 relating to Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, and left the meeting 
during consideration of the item. 
 
ROCHDALE BOROUGHWIDE HOUSING - CONVERSION TO A PROVIDENT AND 
INDUSTRIAL SOCIETY 
93 The Service Director for Housing and Regeneration highlighted the need for 
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) to convert to an Industrial and Provident 
Society (IPS) with charitable rules and register with Her Majesty’s Revenue and 
Customs (HMRC) before transfer and the necessity of implementing this process 
immediately.   
 
The recommendations were presented as conversion to an IPS was a required step 
towards the transfer of the housing stock as agreed previously by the Council.  To 
enable the change to proceed by March 2012 meant that, because of the timescales 
associated with conversion, the Council could not wait until the ballot result before 
agreeing to these changes. 
 
Alternatives considered:  None. 

DECIDED – That (1) approval be given for the necessary resolutions to 
be passed and to admit shareholder members (who are to act on behalf 
of the authority) to prepare for stock transfer to enable Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing (RBH) to be converted to a charitable Industrial 
and Provident Society (IPS) immediately as described within the 
submitted report; 
  (2) the Executive Director, Andy Zuntz, in conjunction with 
the Cabinet Member for Health, Adult Care & Housing, be given 
delegated authority to sign all necessary resolutions and documentation 
so as to give effect to resolution 1 above; 

Public Document Pack

Page 19



  (3) in the event that the stock transfer does not proceed, 
the Council further consider the status of RBH, determining whether to 
wind up the IPS and reconvert back to the current  arrangement or 
consider any other future governance arrangement, or to continue with 
the IPS and voting arrangements as detailed in the report; 
  (4) the above decisions be exempted from call-in on 
grounds of urgency to maintain the agreed timescales for the proposed  
stock transfer, and the reported agreement of the Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to the exemption be noted.  

 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
94 DECIDED – That the press and public be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of the remaining items of business since it is likely 
that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature 
of the proceedings that if members of the public were present there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information, namely information 
relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information).  

 
SAVING PROPOSAL CUST02B - ADVICE SERVICES 
95 The Service Director for Customers and Communications sought approval 
with regard to reductions on advice funding and changes to the configurations of 
advice delivery at the end of the extended Phase 3 consultations on saving proposal 
CUST02b.  The submitted report considered by the Cabinet presented the outcome 
of consultations on the proposal, provided details of amendments or changes that 
had been made to the original proposal as a result of the consultation and, in light of 
the Public Sector Equality Duty, considered the Impact Assessment of the proposal, 
including action intended to alleviate, or at least mitigate, the impact of the decision. 
 
The recommendation was presented to gain a decision on the funding of advice 
services and changes to the configuration of advice delivery as had been proposed 
as a Phase 3 saving proposal. 
 
Alternatives considered:  In light of the original proposal that had been approved for 
consultative purposes, changes to the proposal had been considered and were 
presented and recommended within the submitted report. 
 
The Cabinet was advised that the proposal had been considered and noted by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at a meeting held on 5th October 2011. 
 
A member raised an issue with regard to the provision of an advice session at a 
particular community centre, to which the Service Director was to respond. 

DECIDED – That the saving proposal CUST02b relating to Advice 
Services be approved as amended within the submitted report. 

 
SAVING PROPOSAL PS14 - SURE START FINANCE TEAM 
96 The Executive Director, Pam Smith sought the withdrawal of Saving Proposal 
PS14 – Sure Start Finance Team from the current savings consultation process.  The 
Service Director for Finance and Procurement advised that the proposal had been 
developed in conjunction with a number of other proposals that had not been brought 
forward.  As a result, the Team to which the proposal related was still required.  The 
Executive Director advised that the Service was able to meet the budget requirement 
for the current year. 
 

Page 20



The recommendation was presented to confirm withdrawal of a saving proposal from 
the current consultation round. 
 
Alternatives considered:  To continue with consultation on a proposal where the 
circumstances relating to that proposal had changed.  This option was not supported. 

DECIDED – That Saving Proposal PS14 – Sure Start Finance Team be 
withdrawn. 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Subject:  PROPOSED DISCRETIONARY 

FEES AND CHARGES 2012/13

Status: For Decision 

Report to: Cabinet
                 Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

                 Township Committee              

Date: 31st October 2011 
               2nd November 2011 

                7-10th November 2011 

Report of: Service Director – Finance and 

Procurement 

Report Author: Robert Summerfield

Email:
robert.summerfield@rochdale.gov.uk

Tel: (01706) 924249 

Cabinet Member:  Cabinet Member for Finance  

Comments from

Statutory Officers:

Section 151 Officer 

Monitoring Officer 

Key Decision:   No

Forward Plan  General Exception   Special Urgency  

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

1.1 To present the discretionary fees and charges proposed by Service 

Directors for the 2012/13 Financial Year.  An increase of 3.6% was 

approved in Budget Guidelines Report for 2012/13, however, Members 
have requested that this percentage increase be raised to 4.6% where 

possible.  The effect on discretionary fees & charges is shown below.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1   It is recommended that:- 

2.1.1  The proposed discretionary fees and charges be approved, subject to 

consultation with Overview and Scrutiny Committee, from 1st April 2012 or 
such other date outlined in the report and accompanying appendices. 

Page 1 of 62

Agenda Item 3

Page 23



2.1.2  Cabinet approve the changes in fee/charge levels outside the agreed 4.6% 

as detailed in the appendices and summarised in paragraph 3.6. 

2.2   Reasons for recommendation: 

2.2.1  Each Service is required to achieve an overall increase in its discretionary 

fees and charges income of 4.6% in accordance with budget guidelines for 

2012/13.  Service Directors who are not proposing increases in charges of 
4.6% are required to identify alternative savings.  Service Directors may 

seek approval from Cabinet to have certain services exempted from the 

requirement to increase income from charges by 4.6%. 

MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ CONSULTATION 
CARRIED OUT 

3.1   Alternatives and Risks considered: 

3.1.1  Where Services are provided in competition with the Private Sector, the 
pricing strategy adopted has taken account of market forces and, where 

appropriate, of local competition. 

3.1.2  Pricing strategies should be continuously reviewed in the light of changing 

market conditions and amendments made, as appropriate, to vary the 
services provided in order to best meet demand and to optimise income 

potential.

3.2  Consultation Undertaken / Proposed: 

3.2.1  It is expected that pricing strategies take account of local competition 
(both private and public sector) where applicable, and comparisons with 

other Local Authorities.   

3.3. Equal Opportunities Implications: 

3.3.1 The increased fee levels may have an impact on lower income households 

and service users.

3.4   Areas where no discretionary fees and charges are levied: 

3.4.1 The following Service Directors have indicated that their Services have no 

discretionary fees and charges.

Children’s Social Care 

Human Resources 

3.5   Discretionary fees and charges: 

3.5.1  Each Service Director has been requested to prepare an appendix to 

accompany this report providing: 

A commentary outlining the main issues in relation to the proposals for 

discretionary fees and charges for 2012/13. 

Page 2 of 62Page 24



Confirmation that the required increase in discretionary fees and charges 

income will be achieved by implementing the proposals. 

Appendices provided by Service Directors: 

Appendix    Service

    1    Fees/Charges increased over 4.6% 

1A / 1B    Older People & Physical Disabilities 

2A / 2B    Business Partnerships 

3A / 3B     Customers and Communications 

4A / 4B     Environmental Management 

5A / 5B     Finance Services 
6A / 6B    Highways 

7A / 7B     Learners and Young People 

8A / 8B    Legal & Democratic 

9A / 9B    Performance and Transformation 

10A / 10B   Planning & Regulation 
11A / 11B   Regeneration 

12A / 12B   Schools 

13A / 13B    Strategic Housing 

14A / 14B Learning Disabilities, Mental Health & Vulnerable 

Adults

3.5.2  Fees and charges are presented net of Value Added Tax in this report 

unless otherwise stated. 

3.6   General variations to 4.6% increase  

3.6.1 A number of Services have variations in their fees and charges from the 

agreed 4.6%.  These are shown below. 

3.6.2 The Service Director for Adult Care Operations will not be increasing a small 
number of charges through this process as the decision is being deferred to 

Cabinet at a later date for operational reasons (see appendix 1).  Charges 

increased above 4.6% have previously been reported to Cabinet in a report 

dated July 2011. 

3.6.3 The Service Director for Customers & Communication has excluded several 

library charges from the increase, in order to reduce the administration cost 

of processing small amounts of cash income.  This is expected to have a 

negligible affect on the Service budget due to the small amounts involved. 

3.6.4 The Service Director for Performance & Transformation has increased 

certain charges above the 4.6% to cover costs and align fees with external 

organisations. 

3.6.5 The Service Director for Planning & Regulation is proposing variation from 

4.6% in several areas to allow for market conditions and as a result of 
extensive benchmarking activity.  The Service does not expect this to have 

an effect on its ability to achieve the required level of income. 

Page 3 of 62Page 25



3.6.6 The Director of Highways has increased parking charges greater than 4.6% 

in some cases.  This is mainly due to increases in VAT and has been 
communicated previously to Cabinet via a report dated January 2011.  

3.6.7 Some of the charges may not be directly in line with the 4.6% requirement 

due to rounding.  The Authority applies a rounding criteria to all fees levied 

across the Authority.  Fees below £1 are rounded to the nearest five pence, 
those above to the nearest pound.  There is however some variation from 

this criteria at the discretion of Service Directors. 

3.7   Fees raised by greater than the agreed 4.6% 

3.7.1 The table in appendix 1 indicates the charges which have been increased by 

greater than the agreed 4.6%, except where the application of the rounding 

criteria described in paragraph 3.6.7 is the cause, or where increases have 

been communicated previously to Cabinet via other reports. 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1.1  Service Directors are required to consider proposals to achieve an overall 
increase in income from discretionary fees and charges of 4.6% for 

2012/13.  Service Directors have confirmed that their proposals will achieve 

this requirement, or where this is not the case, Services will adjust revenue 

budgets to make up any shortfall. 

4.1.2  As part of continuing close working with Authorities within the Association 
of Greater Manchester Authorities, Rochdale MBC has endeavoured to align 

many of its charges across this group.  This has led to proposals to increase 

some fees/charges within Environmental Management, Planning and 

Highways above 4.6%. 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1.1  There are no legal implications arising as a result of this report. 

6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1.1  There are no personnel implications arising as a result of this report. 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

7.1.1  There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 

report.

Page 4 of 62Page 26



Background Papers  For Further information about this report or access to any 

background papers please contact Robert Summerfield – Senior Accountant (Special 
Projects)     Tel: 01706 924249

Pauline Kane 
Service Director Finance and Procurement 

PO Box 39 

Telegraph House 

Baillie Street 

Rochdale 
OL16 9DJ 

Page 5 of 62Page 27



Appendix 1 - Fees increased above 4.6%

Charge

No. Charge Description

Current

Charge

(2011/12)

Proposed

Charge

(2012/13)

%

Increase Notes

Customers & Communications

R461

Reservations Supplied As 

Photocopies Via Regional 

Library Service (per item)

2.00 3.00 50%

Charge set at same level as 

Book Reservations for items

not in stock.

C1 Blue Badge Fee 2.00 10.00 400%

For Blue Badges valid from 

January 2012 onwards.

£10 charge applies to 

renewals from November 

2011.  Charge set at £10 to 

ensure recovery of all 

associated costs (delivery 

etc.).  £10 is maximum 

charge allowable under 

statute.

R581

Credit Card transaction fee.

1.75% charge on the full 

transaction value to 

customers paying their 

Council Tax, Business 

Rates, benefit 

overpayments and general 

income charges by credit 

card.

1.75% 1.85% 0.1%

% Increase in line with 

increased charge from 

banks.

Environmental Management

R049
Fair & Circus Site Fees (per 

day)
500.00 600.00 20%

R050
Fair & Circus Individual 

Rides (per day)
50.00 55.00 10%

R051
(Fair & Circus) Bouncy 

Castles (per day)
50.00 55.00 10%

R078
Burials -  Additional 

Inscription
30.00 35.00 17%

R079
Burials: Right To Erect 

Memorial
109.00 120.00 10%

R082 Cremation Fees 1 - 12yrs 76.00 80.00 5%

R090
Memorialisation - Memorial 

Cards 2 Lines
30.00 32.00 7%

R099

Memorialisation:- Stone 

Niche For (No Suggestions) 

- Re Open

49.00 52.00 6%

R104

Memorialisation:- Stone 

Niche For (No Suggestions) 

- Per Re-Letter Gold

1.50 1.57 5%

R105
Memorialisation:- New Tree 

& Plaque
152.00 160.00 5%

R061
Purchase of New Graves:- 

Non-Resident
1,572.00 1,646.00 5%

R063

Purchase of New Grave: - 

Cremated Remains - Non-

Resident

1,037.00 1,086.00 5%

Increased to raise 

additional revenue and 

subsidise other fees 

(notably Sports Pitches).

Fee is similar to other 

AGMA Authorities.

Increased above 4.6% to 

offset additional costs of 

providing graves.

Page 6 of 62Page 28



Appendix 1 - Fees increased above 4.6%

Charge

No. Charge Description

Current

Charge

(2011/12)

Proposed

Charge

(2012/13)

%

Increase Notes

R045

Fishing Rights:- 

Junior/Concession Season 

Ticket

23.85 25.50 7%

AM0577

Bowling Green:- Co-

Partnership Maximum 

Charges Where Collected 

(OAP/Junior Per 

Hour/Session)

0.75 1.00 33%

AM0045
Purchase of 1100L Wheeled

Bin
300.00 376.00 25%

Increased in line with 

average fee levied across 

AGMA

R120

Waste Collection (Bulky) - 

Garden Sheds (Dismantled)

To Be Visited By Supervisor

25.00 35.00 40%

R131
Waste Collection (Bulky) - 

Bathroom Suite (Complete)
37.00 45.00 22%

R139
Waste Collection (Bulky) - 

Complete Kitchen
37.00 45.00 22%

Performance & Transformation

R203A
Training Room Hire (per 

day)
99.00 114.00 15%

R203B
Meeting Room Hire (per 

day)
66.00 75.00 14%

R202
Cancellation Of Training 

Courses (per person/day)
50.00 75.00 50%

R201
Training Fees (per 

person/day)
116.00 165.00 42%

Planning & Regulation

R208

Public / Private Hire (Taxis) 

- Drivers Area Knowledge 

Test

28.00 35.00 25%

New "Area Knowledge" 

testing procedure means 

more officer time and 

handouts, and therefore 

increased cost.

R210
Public/ Private Hire (Taxis) 

Drivers DVLA Check
10.00 15.00 50%

Due to increased admin 

time now required.

R215
Public/Private Hire (Taxis) 

Vehicles Plate Fee
28.00 30.00 7%

There are now different 

systems used to produce 

plates. This fee covers the 

cost of production. 

R216
Public/Private Hire (Taxis)- 

Fee for Change Of Vehicle
87.00 100.00 15%

R217
Public/Private Hire (Taxis) 

Fee for Change Of Owner
27.00 30.00 11%

Increased to raise 

additional revenue and 

subsidise other fees 

(notably Sports Pitches).

Fee is similar to other 

AGMA Authorities.

Increased to cover the high 

cost of recovering very 

large bulky items.

Charge is now comparable 

with the Private Sector.

Fees have remained static 

for 2 years prior to the 

larger 2012/13 increase 

proposed here.

Charge increased to cover 

actual cost of provision.

Page 7 of 62Page 29



Appendix 1 - Fees increased above 4.6%

Charge

No. Charge Description

Current

Charge

(2011/12)

Proposed

Charge

(2012/13)

%

Increase Notes

R328

Building Completion 

Notice/Certificate Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any 

Notice)

26.00 30.00 15%

R944
Dangerous Building Call 

Out
75.00 150.00 100%

R318

Purchase Of Additional 

Certificate

(Birth/Death/Marriage etc.)

6.00 10.00 67%

R326
Coroners - Copying Of 

Official Records
1.20 1.26 5%

C2
Renewal Fee for Sex 

Establishment Licence
3526 3757.00 7%

Maximum fee allowable 

(strategic planning 

decision)

Fee increased to align with 

other Authorities within 

AGMA

Page 8 of 62Page 30



Appendix 1A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Older People & Physical Disabilities

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Tom Keena
Head of Business Efficiency Unit

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Older People & Physical Disabilities are set out in the

table shown in Appendix 1B

This report proposes no new chargeable services. Changes to R453 ("Careline") and R454 ("Support@Home 

Responder Service") are excluded from this report. No management decision has yet been taken about these two 

charges which would be reported to Cabinet under separate cover before any future increase. This report 

proposes no Older People & Physical Disabilities Service fees be increased by less than 4.6% except due to 

rounding.

It is proposed to increase the following fees with effect from January 2012:

1. R451 - Home Support (£12.00 to £12.50)

2. R455 - Meals (£3.00 to £5.52)

3. R480 - Transport (£1.50 to £3.10)

4. R481 - Day Care (£5.00 to £7.50)

A July 2011 Cabinet Report also proposes that R459 ("% of chargeable net disposable income"), should increase 

to 100% with effect from January 2012.  This fee is shown on this report for information only.

There are no further financial implications arising from variations in charges proposed within this report.

R460 ("disability related income"), is a discretionary amount of income that is disregarded as standard when 

assessing the liability of people with a disability to pay home care charges. The Older People & Physical Disabilities 

Service does not consider an increase to the standard amount disregarded to be appropriate in the context of the 

savings to be achieved.  There is, and shall remain discretion to vary the amount disregarded on a case-by-case 

basis.

Page 9 of 62Page 31



Appendix 1B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Older People & Physical Disabilities

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£) Increase £ / p Increase % Notes

Social Care

General

R453 Careline (Annual Charge) 162.00 162.00 0.00 0.00%
Awaiting management decision re:

future charge level.

R454
Support@Home Responder 

Service (Weekly Charge)
5.50 5.50 0.00 0.00%

Awaiting management decision re:

future charge level.

R455 Meals 3.00 5.52 2.52 84.00%

R459
% Of Chargeable Net 

Disposable Income 
90% 100% 10.00%

R460
Disability Related Income (% 

of income disregarded)
12% 12% 0.00 0.00%

R480 Transport (per journey) 1.50 3.10 1.60 106.67%

R481 Day Care (per session) 5.00 7.50 2.50 50.00%

Home Support

R451 Standard Charge Per Hour 12.00 12.50 0.50 4.17%

Already approved by Cabinet for 

public consultation. The increase 

would be effective from January 

2012.

Already approved by Cabinet for 

public consultation. The increase 

would be effective from January 

2012.

Page 10 of 62Page 32



Appendix 2A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Business Partnerships

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Mark Widdup
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Business Partnerships are set out in the table shown in 

Appendix 2B.

The Business Partnerships Services does not propose any new fees in 2012/13. Function menu prices are excluded from 

this report as they are subject to volume negotiation and market forces. 

Prices have increased in line with market and budgetary requirements and no fees have increased above 4.6% (allowing 

for rounding).

There are no financial implications associated with the Discretionary Fees & Charges for this Service.

Page 11 of 62Page 33



Appendix 2B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Business Partnerships

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p Increase % Notes

Accommodation Hire

Town Hall Room Hire Rates

R002 Small Exchange (per hour) 47.00 49.00 2.00 4.26%

R003 Large Exchange (per hour) 94.00 98.00 4.00 4.26%

R004 Reception Room (per hour) 78.00 82.00 4.00 5.13%

R005
Committee Rooms 1 Or 2 (per 

hour)
78.00 82.00 4.00 5.13%

R006 Rooms 1 & 2 Together (per hour) 114.00 119.00 5.00 4.39%

R007 Rooms 3 Or 4 (per hour) 57.00 60.00 3.00 5.26%

R008 Council Chamber (per hour) 57.00 60.00 3.00 5.26%

R009 Zodiac Bar (per hour) 52.00 54.00 2.00 3.85%

Weddings /Functions

R530 Great Hall (per hour) 115.00 120.00 5.00 4.35%

1. Additional Hours & Saturday 

Charges At Standard Fee + 50%

2. Sunday Charges At Standard 

Fee + 100%

3. Preparation Time Charges At 

Normal Rate

4. Additional Charges For 

Equipment Hire (Prices Available 

On Request). 

R010 Great Hall (per hour) 135.00 141.00 6.00 4.44%

R011 Large Exchange (per hour) 100.00 105.00 5.00 5.00%

R012 Reception Room (per hour) 90.00 94.00 4.00 4.44%

R013
Committee Rooms 1 Or 2 (per 

hour)
83.00 87.00 4.00 4.82%

R014
Committee Rooms 1 And 2 

Together (per hour)
135.00 141.00 6.00 4.44%

R015
Committee Rooms 3 Or 4 (per 

hour)
73.00 76.00 3.00 4.11%

R016 Council Chamber (per hour) 83.00 87.00 4.00 4.82%

R017 Zodiac Bar (per hour) 73.00 76.00 3.00 4.11%

R018 Portable Bar (per hour) 83.00 87.00 4.00 4.82%

R019
All Accommodation charge per 

hour (Max 9 Hours) 
2100.00 2197.00 97.00 4.62%

R020
All Ground Floor Accommodation 

charge per hour (Max 9 Hours)
1300.00 1360.00 60.00 4.62%

R021 Sunday Minimum Hire (per hour) 2300.00 2406.00 106.00 4.61%

R022 Refundable Deposit 400.00 418.00 18.00 4.50%

Other

Town Hall Functions

AM0856 Door Security (External Hire) 20.00 21.00 1.00 5.00%

AM0858 Town Hall Public Tour 3.50 4.00 0.50 14.29%

AM0859
Town Hall Public Tour With 

Afternoon Tea
9.00 9.41 0.41 4.60%

Page 12 of 62Page 34



Appendix 2B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Business Partnerships

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p Increase % Notes

AM0860
Town Hall Public Tour With Three 

Course Lunch
11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09%

AM0861 Town Hall School Tours 1.00 1.05 0.05 4.60%

AM0862
Town Hall Private Tour - Daytime 

(Minimum 10 People)
4.00 4.18 0.18 4.60%

AM0863
Town Hall Private Tour - Evening 

(Minimum 10 People)
6.00 6.28 0.28 4.60%

AM0864 Souvenirs Varies Varies

AM0865 Tea dance 1.50 2.00 0.50 33.33%

AM0866 Payphone Income Varies Varies

AM0867 Restaurant: Vending Varies Varies

AM0868
Bar Licence (Extended Opening To 

1.00 am)
150.00 157.00 7.00 4.67%

AM0869
Bar Licence (Extended Opening To 

12.00 am)
100.00 105.00 5.00 5.00%

AM0965 TV / Video / DVD (External Hire) 15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

AM0966 Hop / Screen  (External Hire) 10.00 10.46 0.46 4.60%

AM0967 Screen Only (External Hire) 5.00 5.23 0.23 4.60%

AM0968 Flip Chart Stand (External Hire) 5.00 5.23 0.23 4.60%

AM0969 Flip Chart Pad (External Hire) 5.00 5.23 0.23 4.60%

AM0970 Microphone (External Hire) 15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

AM0971 Boogie Box (External Hire) 15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

AM0972
Portable Sound System (External 

Hire)
20.00 21.00 1.00 5.00%

AM0973 Lectern (External Hire) 10.00 10.46 0.46 4.60%

AM0974 Grand Piano (External Hire) 25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

AM0975 Organ Practice (External Hire) 3.00 3.14 0.14 4.60%

AM0976 Plastic Chairs (External Hire) 1.00 1.05 0.05 4.60%

AM0977
Equipment Hire: Blue Screen 

(External Hire)
5.00 5.23 0.23 4.60%

AM0978
Equipment Hire: Wifi (External 

Hire)
10.00 10.46 0.46 4.60%

AM0979 Bar Income Varies Varies

AM0980
Bar Licence (Extended Opening To 

1.00 am)
150.00 157.00 7.00 4.67%

AM0981
Bar Licence (Extended Opening To 

12.00 am)
100.00 105.00 5.00 5.00%

Page 13 of 62Page 35



Appendix 3A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Customers & Communications

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Paul Young
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Customers & Communications are set out in the table 

shown in Appendix 3B.

Most library charges have been excluded from increase. This is for 2 reasons:

1. The charges that result in most income increased by 50% last year. We have received many negative 

comments following this (particularly in relation to fines), so do not feel it is appropriate to increase again.

2. The Council is attempting to reduce the amount of cash transactions carried out corporately due to the high

cost of cash processing and banking. The inflationary increases leave extremely awkward amounts - e.g. 

£1.04, and would lead to a substantial increase in cash and change needed, with a negligible increase in 

income.

The charge for reservations in the form of photocopies has increased by 50% (by £1) to make it equitable 

with the charge for reservations for books not in stock.

The charge for meeting room hire has increased by 6.7% (by £1). This is because it is believed that the new 

charge of £16 per hour is competitive with other meeting room suppliers. The increase in credit card 

transaction fees of 5.71% is in line with increased costs incurred by the Council.

The proposed increase in credit card payment is designed to cover additional costs - so there will be no effect 

on the Service budget.

The non-increase in library charges (approx £2k) will have a negligible effect as the income is very small. Also 

raising fines charges does not increase income as a significant amount of people are deterred from borrowing 

books - therefore not increasing fines will not have an affect. The same is true for loan charges (e.g. DVDs / 

CDs) as increased charges results in less items being borrowed.

The small gap resulting from income not being increased (through increased charges) will be met from an 

underspend in revenue budgets.

It is further proposed to increase the charge for a blue badge from £2.00 to £10.00. For badges dated from 

1st January 2012 this will change from a statutory to a discretionary charge,  with a maximum of £10.00 

charge.  The charge will apply to all renewals received from November 2011 onwards.

Page 14 of 62Page 36



Appendix 3B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Customers & Communications

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Libraries

Book Reservations

R024
Book Reservations - Per Item Not 

In Stock 
3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00%

This charge increased by 50% in 

2010-11.  Inflating the fee by a small

% is impractical, as we are 

attempting to reduce the amount of 

cash in the Council, but this will 

greatly increase the amount of 

change needed.

R461

Reservations Supplied As 

Photocopies Via Regional Library 

Service

2.00 3.00 1.00 50.00%
Charge set at same level as Book 

Reservations for items not in stock

CD Sound Collections

R025
Cod Sound Collections:- Talking 

Books & Playaways
1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00% Free for visually impaired people.  

R026
Cod Sound Collections:- Learn A 

Language
1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase

the amount of change needed.

R027 Cod Sound Collections:- Music 0.50 0.50 0.00 0.00%

Music CDs are becoming less 

popular, due to downloadable 

music, MP3 players etc.  An 

increase in charge would mean very 

few people loan the items, leading 

to a reduction in income.

DVD Collections

R028 DVDs - Children's & Leisure 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

These are children's DVDs and 

'educational' DVDs.  The feature 

film DVDs (which relates to the 

AGMA average) are 2.00 - see 

R580)

R580 DVDs - Feature Film 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00% Per item for a 4 day loan. 

R586 Fine For Overdue DVD 0.50 0.50 0.00% 0.00% Daily fine

Earphones - For Use With PC's Or Playaways

R033
Earphones - For Use With PC's Or 

Playaways
1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase

the amount of change needed.

Page 15 of 62Page 37



Appendix 3B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Customers & Communications

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Fax

R037 Fax - First Sheet 1.50 1.50 0.00 0.00%

R038 Fax - Each Subsequent Sheet 0.50 0.50 0.00 0.00%

R039 Incoming Fax 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

General

R040 Advertising POA POA

Fees for the placing of adverts in 

media available on application, 

dependant on type of media & 

advertisement.

R581

Credit Card Transaction Fee. 

1.75% Charge  On The Full 

Transaction Value To Customers 

Paying Their Council Tax, 

Business Rates, Benefit 

Overpayments And General 

Income Charges By Credit Card.

1.75% 1.85% 0.00 0.10%
% Increase in line with increased 

charge from banks

R582

Meeting Room Charges (Per Hour) 

– Private Sector Organisations / 

Profit Making Groups / Other 

Council Departments

15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

Increased meeting room charge is 

considered to still be competitive 

with other meeting room suppliers.

Liability Orders

R587 Liability Order - Council Tax 96.00 100.00 4.00 4.17%

R588 Liability Order - NNDR 115.00 120.00 5.00 4.35%

Library Fines

R023
Library Fines On Overdue Items - 

Per Item Per Day
0.15 0.15 0.00 0.00%

This charge increased by 50% in 

2010-11 and has generated a 

number of critical customer 

comments.  This is higher than the 

AGMA average.

R584
Maximum Level Of Fine For 

Overdue Books
10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%

This charge increased by over 

100% in 2010-11

R585 Lost Or Damaged Items 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00% This relates to an admin charge

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase

the amount of change needed.

Page 16 of 62Page 38



Appendix 3B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Customers & Communications

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Photocopying And Computer Printouts (Per Copy)

R029

Photocopying And Computer 

Printouts (Per Copy) - A4 Black & 

White

0.10 0.10 0.00 0.00%

R030

Photocopying And Computer 

Printouts (Per Copy) - A3 Black & 

White

0.20 0.20 0.00 0.00%

R031
Photocopying And Computer 

Printouts (Per Copy) - A4 Colour
0.30 0.30 0.00 0.00%

R032
Photocopying And Computer 

Printouts (Per Copy) - A3 Colour
0.60 0.60 0.00 0.00%

Play Sets/Music Sets

R036 Play Sets / Music Sets 8.00 8.00 0.00 0.00%

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase

the amount of change needed.

Replacement Membership Cards (Adult)

R034
Replacement Membership Cards 

(Adult)
2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00%

This charge increased by 100% in 

2010-11. Inflating the fee by a small 

% is impractical, as we are 

attempting to reduce the amount of 

cash in the Council, but this will 

greatly increase the amount of 

change needed.

Replacement Membership Cards (Under 17's/Over 60's)

R035
Replacement Membership Cards 

(Under 17'S / Over 60'S)
1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase

the amount of change needed.

Blue Badge

C1 Charges for Blue Badge 2.00 10.00 8.00 400.00%

For Blue Badges valid from January 

2012 onwards.  £10 charges applies 

from November 2011.

Inflating the fee by a small % is 

impractical, as we are attempting to 

reduce the amount of cash in the 

Council, but this will greatly increase 

the amount of change needed.

Page 17 of 62Page 39



Appendix 4A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Mark Widdup
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Environmental Management are set out in

the table shown in Appendix 4B.

Transport Services MOT tests are recommended to stay at 2011/12 levels due to competition from private companies 

offering similar services.

No adverse financial impact is expected as a result of changes to fees. There may be a slight increase in income as a 

result of some of the minor changes made.

Page 18 of 62Page 40



Appendix 4B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Accommodation Hire

Fairs & Circus

R049 Site Fees (per day) 500.00 600.00 100.00 20.00%

R050 Individual Rides (per day) 50.00 55.00 5.00 10.00%

R051 Bouncy Castles (per day) 50.00 55.00 5.00 10.00%

Allotments

Grade A Sites

R041 With Water On Site Per Sq. Metre 0.30 0.35 0.05 16.67% One years notification is required.

Grade B Sites

R042
Without Water On Site Per Sq. 

Metre
0.26 0.30 0.04 15.38% One years notification is required.

Cemeteries

Burials

R064 Private Grave Up To 1 yr 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

R065 Private Grave 1 - 12 yrs 179.00 187.00 8.00 4.47%

R066 Private Grave Adult Resident 756.00 791.00 35.00 4.63%

R067 Private Grave Adult Non-Resident 1133.00 1185.00 52.00 4.59%

R068 Private Grave Timber Chamber 256.00 268.00 12.00 4.69%

R069 Public Grave Up To 1 yr 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

R070 Public Grave 1 - 12 yrs 70.00 73.00 3.00 4.29%

R071 Public Grave Adult 179.00 187.00 8.00 4.47%

R072
Cremated Remains Up To FT 

Resident
204.00 213.00 9.00 4.41%

R073
Cremated Remains Up To FT Non-

Resident
367.00 384.00 17.00 4.63%

R074
Cremated Remains Per Additional 

(No Suggestions)
58.00 61.00 3.00 5.17%

R075 Cremated Remains Under Turf 45.00 47.00 2.00 4.44%

R076
General Charges: Use Of 

Cemetery Chapel
92.00 96.00 4.00 4.35%

R077
General Charges: Concrete 

Heading
201.00 210.00 9.00 4.48%

R078
General Charges: Additional 

Inscription
30.00 35.00 5.00 16.67%

R079
General Charges: Right To Erect 

Memorial
109.00 120.00 11.00 10.09%

R080 General Charges: Numberstone 81.00 85.00 4.00 4.94%

Per Day

Increased above 4.6% to offset 

additional costs of providing graves.

Page 19 of 62Page 41



Appendix 4B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Cemeteries

AM1004 Medical Referee Fee 22.00 23.00 1.00 4.55%

Crematoria

R081 Cremation Fees Up To 1 yr 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

R082 Cremation Fees 1 - 12 yrs 76.00 80.00 4.00 5.26%

R083 Cremation Fees Adult 510.00 533.00 23.00 4.51%

R084
Burial Of Remains Cremated 

Elsewhere In Garden
48.00 50.00 2.00 4.17%

Memorialisation

R085 Book Of Remembrance 2 Lines 85.00 89.00 4.00 4.71%

R086 Book Of Remembrance 5 Lines 115.00 120.00 5.00 4.35%

R087 Book Of Remembrance 8 Lines 161.00 168.00 7.00 4.35%

R088 Floral Designs 85.00 89.00 4.00 4.71%

R089 Other Designs 150.00 157.00 7.00 4.67%

R090 Memorial Cards 2 Lines 30.00 32.00 2.00 6.67%

R091 Memorial Cards 5 Lines 40.00 42.00 2.00 5.00%

R092 Memorial Cards 8 Lines 55.00 58.00 3.00 5.45%

R093 Rose Bush & Plaque For 10 yrs 122.00 128.00 6.00 4.92%

R094 Memorial Wall Plaque For 10 yrs 113.00 118.00 5.00 4.42%

R095
Children's Garden Plaque For 10 

yrs
113.00 118.00 5.00 4.42%

R096 Memorial Stone Vase For 10 yrs 435.00 455.00 20.00 4.60%

R097 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Small 233.00 244.00 11.00 4.72%

R098 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Large 333.20 349.00 15.80 4.74%

R099 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Re Open 49.00 52.00 3.00 6.12%

R100 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Urn 41.00 43.00 2.00 4.88%

R101
Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Per Letter 

Black
2.80 2.92 0.12 4.29%

R102
Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Per Letter 

Gold
3.00 3.13 0.13 4.33%

R103
Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Per Re-

Letter Black
0.80 0.85 0.05 6.25%

R104
Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Per Re-

Letter Gold
1.50 1.57 0.07 4.67%

R105 New Tree & Plaque 152.00 160.00 8.00 5.26%

R106
Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs

- Double
290.00 303.00 13.00 4.48%

R107
Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs

- Single
146.00 153.00 7.00 4.79%

R108 Search Fee 33.00 35.00 2.00 6.06%

R109 Wooden Casket 47.00 49.00 2.00 4.26%

Page 20 of 62Page 42



Appendix 4B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R110
Wooden Cross / Stone Marker & 

Plaque
106.00 111.00 5.00 4.72%

R111
Accompanied Selection Of New 

Graves
40.00 42.00 2.00 5.00%

Purchase of New Graves

R060 Full Grave 873.00 913.00 40.00 4.58%

R061 Non-Resident 1572.00 1646.00 74.00 4.71%

R062 Cremated Remains - Resident 576.00 602.00 26.00 4.51%

R063 Cremated Remains - Non-Resident 1037.00 1086.00 49.00 4.73%

Fishing

Tickets / Passes

R043 Adult Season Ticket 45.50 48.00 2.50 5.49%

R044 Adult Day Pass 5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00%

R045 Junior/Concession Season Ticket 23.85 25.50 1.65 6.92%

R046 Junior/Concession Day Pass 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00%

Sports

Sports Pitches

AM0576

Bowling Green:- Co-Partnership 

Maximum Charges Where 

Collected (Adult Per Hour/Session)

1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00%

AM0577

Bowling Green:- Co-Partnership 

Maximum Charges Where 

Collected (Opal/Junior Per 

Hour/Session)

0.75 1.00 0.25 33.33%

AM1043 Ad Hoc Rental Varies Varies

AM1044 Catering Varies Varies

AM1045 Car Boot Varies Varies

R052
Mini Soccer League (Bowlee) Per 

Pitch Per Occasion
48.00 48.00 0.00 0.00%

R053
Mini Soccer League Per Season 

Without Accommodation
135.00 135.00 0.00 0.00%

R054
Mini Soccer League Per Season 

With Accommodation
217.00 217.00 0.00 0.00%

R055 Rounder's League 1095.00 1095.00 0.00 0.00%

R056
Pitch Letting Without Changing 

Accommodation
405.00 405.00 0.00 0.00%

R057
Pitch Letting With Changing 

Accommodation
713.00 713.00 0.00 0.00%

R058
Friendly Letting Without Changing 

Accommodation
51.00 51.00 0.00 0.00%

R059
Friendly Letting With Changing 

Accommodation
74.00 74.00 0.00 0.00%

Fee retained at current level to 

encourage  participation in local 

sport.

Page 21 of 62Page 43



Appendix 4B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Transport

Transport Services

R145 Mot Tests - Private (per test) 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00%

R146
Mot Tests - RMBC Employees (per 

test)
41.00 41.00 0.00 0.00%

R147 Repairs - Private (per hour) 37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41%

Waste Collection

Household Items

R144

Bed, Mattress, Carpet, Chairs, 

Suits - Any Household Item That 

Would Be Taken On Moving 

House.

0.00 0.00 0.00

Waste Services

AM0043 Other (hourly rate) 86.00 90.00 4.00 4.65%

AM0045 1100L Wheeled Bin 300.00 376.00 76.00 25.33%

AM0046 240L Wheeled Bin 30.00 31.00 1.00 3.33%

AM0047 360L Wheeled Bin 45.00 47.00 2.00 4.44%

AM0048 660L Wheeled Bin 300.00 314.00 14.00 4.67%

R112 Hourly Rate 99.00 104.00 5.00 5.05%

R113 Refrigerators & Freezers (per item) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R114 Washing Machines (per item) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R115 Cooker (per item) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R116 Dish Washer (per item) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R117

Small Electrical Items (Hi - Fi 

Systems, Microwaves, TV's) Up To 

5 Items

26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R118
Garden Refuse Up To 12 Bags, 

75P Per Bag Thereafter
26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85% + £0.80 per bag thereafter

R119
Fencing - Up To 5 Panels, £4 Per 

Additional Panel
26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85% +  £4.20 per additional panel

R120
Garden Sheds (Dismantled) To Be 

Visited By Supervisor
25.00 35.00 10.00 40.00%

R121 Garden Furniture/Play Equipment 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R122
Garages (Dismantled) To Be 

Visited By Supervisor 
95.00 99.00 4.00 4.21%

R123 Garden Doors Single Wooden 29.00 30.00 1.00 3.45%

R124
Double Doors To Be Visited By 

Supervisor
41.00 43.00 2.00 4.88%

R125 Single Metal 29.00 30.00 1.00 3.45%

R126
Double Metal To Be Visited By 

Supervisor
41.00 43.00 2.00 4.88%

R127 Guttering/Troughing & Downspouts 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

Remains at current figure due to 

local competition.

Page 22 of 62Page 44



Appendix 4B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Environmental Management

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R128 Central Heating Boilers 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R129 Fire Place/Surrounds 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R130 Bath 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R131 Bathroom Suite (Complete) 37.00 45.00 8.00 21.62%

R132 Shower Tray & Panels 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R133 Wash Basin & Stand 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R134 Toilet & Cistern 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R135 Water Tanks (Plastic Or Metal) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R136 Bedroom Furniture (Fitted) 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R137 Belfast Sink 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R138A
Building Rubble (In Strong Bags 

Up To 6)
26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85% Up to 6 bags

R138B
Price Per Additional Bag (Over 6) 

(per bag)
3.50 4.00 0.50 14.29% Per additional bag

R139 Complete Kitchen 37.00 45.00 8.00 21.62%

R140
Kitchen Units (Sink Unit Base And 

Top)
26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R141 Laminate Flooring 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R142A
Doors Up To 4 Doors (£4 Per 

Additional Door)
26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85% Up to 4 doors

R142B
Price Per Additional Door (Over 4) 

(per door)
4.60 5.00 0.40 8.70% Price per additional door (Over 4)

R143

Window Frames, Pac, Wood Or 

Metal (Broken Up No Larger Than 

"2 By 3"

26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

Page 23 of 62Page 45



Appendix 5A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Finance Services

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Ruth Hunter
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Finance Services are set out in the table shown in Appendix 5B.

The fees charged by Finance Services relate to the administration of charities. The fees are to cover costs incurred in the 

administration, management and attendance at meetings and have been increased in line with the budget guidelines 

approved by Cabinet subject to roundings.

The increase in the level of charges will achieve the income target increase of 4.6%, providing there is a consistent level 

of demand.

Page 24 of 62Page 46



Appendix 5B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Finance Services

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

General

Charities Financial Administration Charges

R148 Management Charge 12.71% 13% 0.00 0.29% % of income

R149 Meetings Charge 98.00 103.00 5.00 5.10%

Page 25 of 62Page 47



Appendix 6A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

David Nicholson
Director of Highways

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Highways are set out in the table shown in Appendix 6B

All fees which are a percentage of a total contract value will remain at the same percentage level, and thus will have 

increased in line with the contract value to reflect inflation.  Other fees are subject to some changes which are detailed 

below:-

1.  An increase in parking tariffs effective from 1st April 2011 to cover the VAT increase.

2.  A proposal exists to introduce charges for Resident's Parking Permits, with a detailed report to be presented to

Cabinet.  This proposes that Resident's and Visitor's Parking Permits are increased in line with the AGMA average, from 

zero to £50 and £10 respectively.

The overall impact of the proposed increases achieves the inflationary rate of 4.6%.

Page 26 of 62Page 48



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

General

Highway Works

R428 Accident Debris Removal 146.00 153.00 7.00 4.79%  + Costs Of Works + Fees

R429 Recoverable Works: Admin Fees 95.00 99.00 4.00 4.21% Or 5% Of Cost Whichever Is Greater

Highway Works Vehicular Crossings

R426 Domestic
Cost Of Works + 

Fees

Cost Of Works 

+ Fees
Cost Of Works + Fees

R427 Industrial 135.00 141.00 6.00 4.44% + Costs + Fees

Licences

R422
Placement Of Scaffold Over 

Highway
105.00 110.00 5.00 4.76%

R423
Placement Of Hoardings On The 

Highway
105.00 110.00 5.00 4.76%

Placement of Skips On the Highway

R419 Registration Of Firm & Vetting 335.00 350.00 15.00 4.48%

R420
One-Off Permit For Non-

Registered Firm
92.00 96.00 4.00 4.35%

R421

Highways Works: Placement Of 

Skips On The Highway: Removal 

Of Skip

270.00 282.00 12.00 4.44%

General Highway Works

Advertising Sponsorship

R395 Sponsored Boundary Signs Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable

R396 Sponsored Roundabout Signs Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable

General

R414

Re-Submission Of Plans To Check 

Compliance With Specification And 

Design

100.00 105.00 5.00 5.00% Per Hour

R415 Highway Records Information 72.00 75.00 3.00 4.17% Includes naming & numbering

R416 Temporary Electrical Supplies Cost + 10% Cost + 10% Cost + 10%

R417
Use Of Planning-Provide And 

Layout

Cost + 

Supervision

Fees

Cost + 

Supervision

Fees

Cost + Supervision Fees

R418
Bollards To Prevent Access (Non-

Highway)

Cost + 

Supervision

Fees

Cost + 

Supervision

Fees

Cost + Supervision Fees

R730 Highway Works S.38 Agreements Negotiable Negotiable

R731 Structures on the highway Negotiable Negotiable

Negotiable

Page 27 of 62Page 49



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Highway Works

Design And Supervision

R405 Works Up To £100,000 * 18% 18% 0.00%

R406 Works Up To £150,000 * 15% 15% 0.00%

R407 Works Up To £150,000 + Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable

S.278 / S.106 Agreement

R404 Where Built By RMBC 1,415.00 1,480.00 65.00 4.59%

S.38 Agreement

R397 Value Over £1.5M * 4% 4% 0.00%

R398 Value Over £100,000 * 5% 5% 0.00%

R403 Extension Of S.38 Agreement 795.00 832.00 37.00 4.65%

Where Built By Developer

R408
Works Assessed By RMBC Over 

£1.5M *
4% 4% 0.00%

R409
Works Assessed By RMBC Over 

£100,000 *
5% 5% 0.00%

R410
Works Assessed By RMBC Over 

£45,000 *
6% 6% 0.00%

R411
Works Assessed By RMBC Up To 

£45,000
3,590.00 3,755.00 165.00 4.60%

R412
Works Assessed By RMBC Up To 

£20,000
2,663.00 2,785.00 122.00 4.58%

R413
Works Assessed By RMBC Up To 

£10,000
1,679.00 1,756.00 77.00 4.59%

Traffic

Car Park Charges

R1329
On Street Short Stay Rochdale: 0 - 

1 hr
0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1330
On Street Short Stay Rochdale: 1 - 

2 hr
1.00 1.10 0.10 10.00%

R1331
On Street Short Stay Rochdale: 2 - 

3 hr
1.20 1.40 0.20 16.67%

R1332
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 0 - 

2 hr
0.90 1.00 0.10 11.11%

R1333
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 2 - 

3 hr
1.20 1.30 0.10 8.33%

R1334
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 

6 hr
1.60 1.70 0.10 6.25%

R1335
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 

Over 6 hrs
2.60 3.00 0.40 15.38%

R1336
Off Street Short Stay Rochdale: 0 - 

1 hr
0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1337
Off Street Short Stay Rochdale: 1 - 

2 hr
1.00 1.10 0.10 10.00%

R1338
Off Street Short Stay Rochdale: 2 - 

3 hr
1.30 1.40 0.10 7.69%

Charge represents a % of works value

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Charge represents a % of works value

Charge represents a % of works value

Page 28 of 62Page 50



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1339
Off Street Short Stay Rochdale: 4 

hr
2.30 3.00 0.70 30.43%

R1340
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 0 - 

1 hr
0.30 0.40 0.10 33.33%

R1341
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 1 - 

2 hr
0.90 1.00 0.10 11.11%

R1342
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 2 - 

3 hr
1.20 1.30 0.10 8.33%

R1343
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 

6 hr
1.60 1.70 0.10 6.25%

R1344
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 

Over 6 hr
2.60 3.00 0.40 15.38%

R1345 Bus Station Rochdale: 0 - 1 hr 0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1346 Bus Station Rochdale: 1 - 2 hr 1.00 1.10 0.10 10.00%

R1347 Bus Station Rochdale: 2 - 3 hr 1.30 1.40 0.10 7.69%

R1348 Bus Station Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr 1.80 1.90 0.10 5.56%

R1349 Bus Station Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr 2.10 2.20 0.10 4.76%

R1350 Bus Station Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr 2.60 3.00 0.40 15.38%

R1351 Bus Station Rochdale: Over 6 hr 6.50 6.60 0.10 1.54%

R1352 Middleton Long Stay 0 - 1 hr 0.40 0.50 0.10 25.00%

R1353 Middleton Long Stay 1 - 2 hr 0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1354 Middleton Long Stay 2 - 3 hr 0.90 1.00 0.10 11.11%

R1355 Middleton Long Stay 3 - 5 hr 2.00 2.10 0.10 5.00%

R1356 Middleton Long Stay Over 5 hr 4.00 4.10 0.10 2.50%

R1357 Middleton Short Stay 0 - 1 hr 0.40 0.50 0.10 25.00%

R1358 Middleton Short Stay 1 - 2 hr 0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1359 Middleton Short Stay 2 - 3 hr 0.90 1.00 0.10 11.11%

R1360 Hollingworth Lake 0 - 2 hr 0.70 0.80 0.10 14.29%

R1361 Hollingworth Lake 2 - 4 hr 1.00 1.10 0.10 10.00%

R1362 Hollingworth Lake Over 4 hr 2.00 2.10 0.10 5.00%

Car Park Passes

R1324 Premium Pass - Month 1 100.00 103.00 3.00 3.00%

R1325 Premium Pass - Month 2 200.00 205.00 5.00 2.50%

R1326 Premium Pass - Month 3 300.00 308.00 8.00 2.67%

R1327 Premium Pass - Month 6 575.00 603.00 28.00 4.87%

R1328 Premium Pass - Month 12 1,000.00 1,025.00 25.00 2.50%

Events Parking

R449 Use Of Free Parks 50.00 53.00 3.00 6.00%

Min £53 Admin Charge Dependant On

Area, Increased In Line With Parking 

Charges (Separate Report)

R450 Use Of Pay & Display Car Parks See Notes See Notes
Daily Rate Per Bay Or Loss Of 

Income Whichever Is The Greater.

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Page 29 of 62Page 51



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Five Day Car Park Passes

R1180
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 1
50.00 51.00 1.00 2.00%

R1181
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 2
100.00 103.00 3.00 3.00%

R1182
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 3
150.00 154.00 4.00 2.67%

R1183
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 4
196.00 201.00 5.00 2.55%

R1184
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 5
245.00 251.00 6.00 2.45%

R1185
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 6
294.00 302.00 8.00 2.72%

R1186
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 7
329.00 338.00 9.00 2.74%

R1187
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 8
376.00 386.00 10.00 2.66%

R1188
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 9
423.00 434.00 11.00 2.60%

R1189
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 10
450.00 462.00 12.00 2.67%

R1190
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 11
484.00 497.00 13.00 2.69%

R1191
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 12
500.00 513.00 13.00 2.60%

R1192
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 1
60.00 62.00 2.00 3.33%

R1193
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 2
120.00 123.00 3.00 2.50%

R1194
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 3
180.00 185.00 5.00 2.78%

R1195
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 4
232.00 243.00 11.00 4.74%

R1196
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 5
290.00 304.00 14.00 4.83%

R1197
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 6
348.00 365.00 17.00 4.89%

R1198
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 7
392.00 405.00 13.00 3.32%

R1199
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 8
448.00 462.00 14.00 3.13%

R1200
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 9
504.00 520.00 16.00 3.17%

R1201
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 10
550.00 554.00 4.00 0.73%

R1202
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 11
572.00 599.00 27.00 4.72%

R1203
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 12
600.00 615.00 15.00 2.50%

R1228 Middleton Class 1  - Month 1 31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

R1229 Middleton Class 1  - Month 2 62.00 64.00 2.00 3.23%

R1230 Middleton Class 1  - Month 3 93.00 95.00 2.00 2.15%

R1231 Middleton Class 1  - Month 4 120.00 126.00 6.00 5.00%

R1232 Middleton Class 1  - Month 5 150.00 157.00 7.00 4.67%

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Page 30 of 62Page 52



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1233 Middleton Class 1  - Month 6 180.00 189.00 9.00 5.00%

R1234 Middleton Class 1  - Month 7 203.00 209.00 6.00 2.96%

R1235 Middleton Class 1  - Month 8 232.00 239.00 7.00 3.02%

R1236 Middleton Class 1  - Month 9 261.00 269.00 8.00 3.07%

R1237 Middleton Class 1  - Month 10 280.00 286.00 6.00 2.14%

R1238 Middleton Class 1  - Month 11 297.00 311.00 14.00 4.71%

R1239 Middleton Class 1  - Month 12 310.00 318.00 8.00 2.58%

R1240 Middleton Class 2  - Month 1 42.00 43.00 1.00 2.38%

R1241 Middleton Class 2  - Month 2 84.00 86.00 2.00 2.38%

R1242 Middleton Class 2  - Month 3 126.00 129.00 3.00 2.38%

R1243 Middleton Class 2  - Month 4 164.00 169.00 5.00 3.05%

R1244 Middleton Class 2  - Month 5 205.00 211.00 6.00 2.93%

R1245 Middleton Class 2  - Month 6 246.00 253.00 7.00 2.85%

R1246 Middleton Class 2  - Month 7 280.00 283.00 3.00 1.07%

R1247 Middleton Class 2  - Month 8 312.00 323.00 11.00 3.53%

R1248 Middleton Class 2  - Month 9 351.00 368.00 17.00 4.84%

R1249 Middleton Class 2  - Month 10 380.00 387.00 7.00 1.84%

R1250 Middleton Class 2  - Month 11 407.00 416.00 9.00 2.21%

R1251 Middleton Class 2  - Month 12 420.00 430.00 10.00 2.38%

R1276
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 1
39.00 40.00 1.00 2.56%

R1277
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 2
78.00 80.00 2.00 2.56%

R1278
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 3
117.00 120.00 3.00 2.56%

R1279
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 4
152.00 157.00 5.00 3.29%

R1280
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 5
190.00 196.00 6.00 3.16%

R1281
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 6
228.00 235.00 7.00 3.07%

R1282
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 7
259.00 263.00 4.00 1.54%

R1283
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 8
296.00 301.00 5.00 1.69%

R1284
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 9
333.00 338.00 5.00 1.50%

R1285
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 10
360.00 360.00 0.00 0.00%

R1286
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 11
374.00 387.00 13.00 3.48%

R1287
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 12
390.00 400.00 10.00 2.56%

R1288
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 1
49.00 50.00 1.00 2.04%

R1289
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 2
98.00 100.00 2.00 2.04%

R1290
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 3
147.00 151.00 4.00 2.72%

R1291
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 4
188.00 197.00 9.00 4.79%

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Page 31 of 62Page 53



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1292
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 5
235.00 246.00 11.00 4.68%

R1293
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 6
282.00 295.00 13.00 4.61%

R1294
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 7
322.00 330.00 8.00 2.48%

R1295
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 8
368.00 378.00 10.00 2.72%

R1296
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 9
414.00 425.00 11.00 2.66%

R1297
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 10
450.00 452.00 2.00 0.44%

R1298
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 11
473.00 486.00 13.00 2.75%

R1299
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 12
490.00 502.00 12.00 2.45%

Home Watch

R445 Home Watch Sign Consents 38.00 40.00 2.00 5.26% Per Sign

Parking

R446 Parking Dispensations 37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41%

Parking Permits

R443 Residents 0.00 50.00 (or free)

R444 Visitors 0.00 10.00 (or free)

Parking Suspensions

R447 Pay & Display Bays 37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41% Daily Rate Plus £39 Admin Fee

R448
Limited Waiting Bays / Disabled 

Bays / Loading Bays / Taxi Ranks
37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41%

Min Charge Per Vehicle Up To 7 Days 

& £5 Thereafter

Six Day Car Park Passes

R1204
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 1
56.00 57.00 1.00 1.79%

R1205
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 2
112.00 115.00 3.00 2.68%

R1206
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 3
168.00 172.00 4.00 2.38%

R1207
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 4
216.00 226.00 10.00 4.63%

R1208
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 5
270.00 283.00 13.00 4.81%

R1209
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 6
324.00 339.00 15.00 4.63%

Increased In Line With Parking 

Charges (via Cabinet Report January 

2011) Min Charge Per Vehicle Up To 

7 Days & £5 Thereafter

There is no current charge for Parking 

permits for residents and a report will 

be required to Cabinet to approve the 

introduction of a charge

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Page 32 of 62Page 54



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1210
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 7
364.00 381.00 17.00 4.67%

R1211
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 8
416.00 436.00 20.00 4.81%

R1212
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 9
468.00 490.00 22.00 4.70%

R1213
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 10
510.00 517.00 7.00 1.37%

R1214
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 11
539.00 556.00 17.00 3.15%

R1215
Bus Station / The Holme Class 1  - 

Month 12
600.00 628.00 28.00 4.67%

R1216
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 1
66.00 68.00 2.00 3.03%

R1217
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 2
132.00 135.00 3.00 2.27%

R1218
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 3
198.00 203.00 5.00 2.53%

R1219
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 4
256.00 265.00 9.00 3.52%

R1220
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 5
320.00 331.00 11.00 3.44%

R1221
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 6
384.00 397.00 13.00 3.39%

R1222
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 7
434.00 445.00 11.00 2.53%

R1223
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 8
496.00 508.00 12.00 2.42%

R1224
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 9
558.00 572.00 14.00 2.51%

R1225
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 10
600.00 608.00 8.00 1.33%

R1226
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 11
638.00 654.00 16.00 2.51%

R1227
Bus Station / The Holme Class 2  - 

Month 12
660.00 676.00 16.00 2.42%

R1252
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 1
36.00 37.00 1.00 2.78%

R1253
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 2
72.00 74.00 2.00 2.78%

R1254
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 3
108.00 111.00 3.00 2.78%

R1255
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 4
140.00 145.00 5.00 3.57%

R1256
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 5
175.00 181.00 6.00 3.43%

R1257
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 6
210.00 217.00 7.00 3.33%

R1258
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 7
238.00 243.00 5.00 2.10%

R1259
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 8
272.00 277.00 5.00 1.84%

R1260
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 9
306.00 312.00 6.00 1.96%

Increases in parking charges already 

approved via a report to Cabinet 

dated January 2011

Page 33 of 62Page 55



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1261
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 10
330.00 332.00 2.00 0.61%

R1262
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 11
341.00 357.00 16.00 4.69%

R1263
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 1  - Month 12
360.00 369.00 9.00 2.50%

R1264
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 1
47.00 48.00 1.00 2.13%

R1265
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 2
94.00 96.00 2.00 2.13%

R1266
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 3
141.00 145.00 4.00 2.84%

R1267
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 4
180.00 189.00 9.00 5.00%

R1268
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 5
225.00 236.00 11.00 4.89%

R1269
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 6
270.00 283.00 13.00 4.81%

R1270
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 7
308.00 317.00 9.00 2.92%

R1271
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 8
352.00 362.00 10.00 2.84%

R1272
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 9
396.00 408.00 12.00 3.03%

R1273
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 10
430.00 434.00 4.00 0.93%

R1274
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 11
451.00 467.00 16.00 3.55%

R1275
Six Day Car Park Passes 

Middleton Class 2  - Month 12
470.00 482.00 12.00 2.55%

R1300
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 1
45.00 46.00 1.00 2.22%

R1301
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 2
90.00 92.00 2.00 2.22%

R1302
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 3
135.00 138.00 3.00 2.22%

R1303
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 4
176.00 181.00 5.00 2.84%

R1304
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 5
220.00 226.00 6.00 2.73%

R1305
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 6
258.00 271.00 13.00 5.04%

R1306
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 7
294.00 303.00 9.00 3.06%

R1307
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 8
336.00 347.00 11.00 3.27%

R1308
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 9
378.00 390.00 12.00 3.17%

R1309
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 10
410.00 415.00 5.00 1.22%

R1310
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 11
429.00 449.00 20.00 4.66%

R1311
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 1  - Month 12
450.00 461.00 11.00 2.44%

Increases in parking charges 

approved by Cabinet on a report 

dated January 2011

Page 34 of 62Page 56



Appendix 6B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Highways

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R1312
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 1
55.00 56.00 1.00 1.82%

R1313
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 2
110.00 113.00 3.00 2.73%

R1314
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 3
165.00 169.00 4.00 2.42%

R1315
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 4
212.00 222.00 10.00 4.72%

R1316
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 5
265.00 278.00 13.00 4.91%

R1317
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 6
318.00 333.00 15.00 4.72%

R1318
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 7
364.00 371.00 7.00 1.92%

R1319
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 8
416.00 424.00 8.00 1.92%

R1320
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 9
468.00 477.00 9.00 1.92%

R1321
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 10
500.00 508.00 8.00 1.60%

R1322
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 11
528.00 546.00 18.00 3.41%

R1323
Yelloway / Whitworth Rd / High St 

Class 2  - Month 12
550.00 564.00 14.00 2.55%

Street Café Licences

R440 Annual Licence 380.00 397.00 17.00 4.47%

R441 28 Day Licence 230.00 241.00 11.00 4.78%

R442 Annual Renewal Of Licence 119.00 124.00 5.00 4.20%

Traffic Regulation Orders

R432 Permanent / Experimental Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable

R433 Temporary / Emergency 740.00 774.00 34.00 4.59% + Any Works Costs Required

R434

Temporary Carnivals, Fetes & 

Similar Events I.E. Charity Or Non-

Commercial/Non-Profit Making

110.00 115.00 5.00 4.55% + Any Works Costs Required

R435 Permanent Road Closures Negotiable Negotiable Negotiable

R436 Road Marking Requests 270.00 282.00 12.00 4.44%

R437

Application For Privately Funded 

Temporary Direction Signs 

(Housing Dev't Signs)

110.00 115.00 5.00 4.55%

R438 Non Commercial 235.00 246.00 11.00 4.68%

R439 Commercial 390.00 408.00 18.00 4.62%

Increases in parking charges 

approved by Cabinet on a report 

dated January 2011

Page 35 of 62Page 57



Appendix 7A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Learners & Young People

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Sandra Bowness
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Learners & Young People are set out in the table shown in 

Appendix 7B.

The following fees and charges are no longer levied by the Service because these services have either been closed or 

transferred to another service as at Phase 3 efficiencies:

1. Castleton After School Club - Closed

2. Meanwood After School Club - Closed

3. Littleborough After School Club/Breakfast Club/Holiday Club - transferred to school

The fees and charges quoted for 'Doorstep 2012/13' have been amended to reflect the business plan agreed as part of 

the Authority's Phase 3 efficiency process.

There are no financial implications associated with the Discretionary Fees & Charges for this Service.

Page 36 of 62Page 58



Appendix 7B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Learners & Young People

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Children's Centres

Other

R781
Doorstep - Vehicle Hire (per 

session per day)
0.00 78.00 78.00

R782 Doorstep - Vehicle Hire (Evening) 0.00 90.00 90.00

R783
Doorstep - Vehicle Hire 

(Weekend)
0.00 100.00 100.00

R784
Doorstep - Vehicle & 2 Staff 

(Session)
0.00 134.00 134.00

R785 Doorstep - Vehicle & 2 Staff (Day) 0.00 250.00 250.00

R786
Doorstep - Vehicle & 2 Staff 

(Evening)
0.00 150.00 150.00

R787
Doorstep - Vehicle & 2 Staff 

(Weekend)
0.00 340.00 340.00

R788
Doorstep - Vehicle & 3 Staff 

(Session)
0.00 170.00 170.00

R789 Doorstep - Vehicle & 3 Staff (Day) 0.00 320.00 320.00

R790
Doorstep - Vehicle & 3 Staff 

(Evening)
0.00 200.00 200.00

R791
Doorstep - Vehicle & 3 Staff 

(Weekend)
0.00 470.00 470.00

Playgroup

R475
Children's Centres - Playgroup

(per session)
5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00%

Room Hire

R473
Children's Centres Room Hire - 

Large (per hour)
25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

R474
Children's Centres Room Hire - 

Small (per hour)
15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

Other

Misc

AM1153
Penalty Notices For Non-School 

Attendance
50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00%

The Service is unable to alter this 

fee as it is set centrally.

AM1154 Court Costs Varies Varies

AM1155

Charges For Schools For 

Additional Education Welfare 

Service

Varies Varies

AM1156
Charges For Basic Safeguarding 

Training To Private Schools
50.00 52.00

AM1158
University Of Manchester - 

Student Placement
Varies Varies

AM1159 Contributions To Training Courses
Varies (max 

£10)

Varies (max 

£10)
Max £10

AM1160 Contributions From Young People Varies Varies

New Service / Charge (provision of 

service/materials to 

Schools/Community Centres)

Page 37 of 62Page 59



Appendix 8A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Legal & Democratic

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Linda Fisher
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Legal & Democratic are set out in the table shown in Appendix 

8B.

The Local Land Charge full search fee has been left at the 2011/12 level as the Council is only entitled to recover the 

cost of the service in any three year period. In 2010/11 the Service over recovered the cost of the service by £10k.

Based on the volume of transactions in 2011/10 the additional income generated by a 4.6% increase would be £5,739. 

However as the housing market is starting to improve slightly it is envisaged that there will be an additional 40 

transactions which should cover the loss of income. In addition there are currently court cases on-going regarding 

charges to Personal Search agents and this may effect future income. Following the outcome of the court case the fee 

will be reviewed for 2013/14.

With the exception of Local Land Charges the income generated by the Legal and Democratic Service through 

discretionary fees is very low (£16k in 2010/11), compared with other income for Legal work on projects and Court Costs 

(£176K in 2010/11). Therefore any increases in fees will not have any significant effect on the Services budget.

Page 38 of 62Page 60



Appendix 8B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Legal & Democratic

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Deeds

Support Charges

R181 Residential 590.00 617.00 27.00 4.58%

R182 Commercial 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%
£1,172 Or 1% of works value - 

whichever is the greater

General

R165 Mortgage Questionnaires 155.00 162.00 7.00 4.52%

R166 Deeds Of Postponements 190.00 199.00 9.00 4.74%

R179
Variation, Rectification And All 

Other Similar Items
590.00 617.00 27.00 4.58%

R180 Surrender 590.00 617.00 27.00 4.58%

Min £617.00 or 1% of premium or 

revised premium - whichever is the 

greatest

Elections

Electoral Register

R830
Charge for Confirmation letter - 

Electoral Register - Current Year
5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00%

R831
Charge for Confirmation letter - 

Electoral Register - Historic 
20.00 21.00 1.00 5.00%

R832

Confirmation on official documents 

to prove they are on the Electoral 

Register. For Example: Overseas 

pension forms.

5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00%

General

Building Agreements

R186 Building Agreements 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%

Min £1,172.00 or 1% of works value 

- whichever is the greater.

Developers (occasionally 

individuals) want to build on Council 

land.

Charities Administrative Charges

R199
Committee Services Meeting 

Charge
195.00 204.00 9.00 4.62%

Highways Act 1980 Section 38 Agreements

R183 Adopt Highways 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64% New housing estates

Page 39 of 62Page 61



Appendix 8B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Legal & Democratic

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Leases

R193 Premiums - Residential 570.00 596.00 26.00 4.56%
£596.00 or 1% of consideration - 

whichever is greater

R194 Industrial Leases - Commercial 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%
£1,172 or 1% of works value - 

whichever is the greater

Licences

R176
Community & Residential 

Commercial
570.00 570.00 0.00 0.00%

Retained at 2011/12 level.

Increases may discourage 

investment in the Borough 

R177 Licence To Assign 780.00 816.00 36.00 4.62%

R178
Licence To Sublet (Multiple 

Licences)
1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64% Min £1,1720.00

Prosecution

R200 Prosecution Costs

Legal Costs + 

Investigation

Costs At The 

Appropriate

Rate

Legal Costs + 

Investigation

Costs At The 

Appropriate

Rate

Public Path Orders

R195

Public Path Orders - Within 

General Range ( Plus Advertising 

Costs)

1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%

R196
Additional Rates On A Per Hour 

Basis As Required
120.00 126.00 6.00 5.00%

Redemptions

R163 Redemptions - One Per Charge 160.00 167.00 7.00 4.38%

R164 Redemptions - Two Charges 310.00 324.00 14.00 4.52%

Section 106 Agreements

R184 Planning Agreements 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%
£1,172 or £112.00 per hour on 

complex agreements

Section 278 Agreements

R185 Highway Works 1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%
Comparable with other AGMA 

Authorities

Street Closure Order Under Section 116 Of The Highways Act 1998

R197
Within A General Range Plus 

Advertising Costs
1120.00 1172.00 52.00 4.64%

Page 40 of 62Page 62



Appendix 8B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Legal & Democratic

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R198
Additional Rates On A Per Hour 

Basis As Required
120.00 126.00 6.00 5.00%

Title Questionnaires

R167 Up To 20 Questions 85.00 89.00 4.00 4.71%

R168A Above 20 Questions 85.00 89.00 4.00 4.71%

R168B
Price Per Additional Question 

(Over 20)
6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

Sale of Land & Property

Cost Paid And Received By Council On Disposals Other Than Leases And Slum Clearance

R151 Cost Under £5,000 675.00 706.00 31.00 4.59%

R152 Cost £5,001 - £10,000 675.00 706.00 31.00 4.59%

R153 Cost £10,001 - £15,000 675.00 706.00 31.00 4.59%

R154 Cost £15,001 - £20,000 985.00 1030.00 45.00 4.57%

R155 Cost £20,001 - £25,000 985.00 1030.00 45.00 4.57%

R157 Cost £25,001 - £30,000 985.00 1030.00 45.00 4.57%

R158 Cost £30,001 - £60,000 1205.00 1260.00 55.00 4.56%

R159 Cost £60,001 - £100,000 1530.00 1600.00 70.00 4.58%

R160 Cost £100,001 - £250,000 2050.00 2144.00 94.00 4.59%

R161 Cost Over £250,000 2600.00 2700.00 100.00 3.85%
1% Of Consideration (Min 

£2,700.00)

General

R162
% Of Consideration re: income 

from Auctions
3% 4% 1.00%

Min of £2,000 or 4% which ever is 

higher

R175 Shop  Leases 470.00 492.00 22.00 4.68%

Local Land Charges Search

R187 Full Search 135.00 135.00 0.00 0.00%

The Council is only permitted to 

cover its costs over any 3 year 

period LLC's and in 2010/11 we 

over recovered the cost of the 

service by  £10k. However the price 

has remained the same as currently 

there are court cases on-going 

regarding charges to Personal 

Search agents and this may effect 

future income. Following the 

outcome of the court case the fee 

will be reviewed for 2013/14

R188 Part 2 Enquiries 25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

R189 Additional Enquiries 28.00 29.00 1.00 3.57%

R190 Extra Parcels Of Land 28.00 29.00 1.00 3.57%

Page 41 of 62Page 63



Appendix 8B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Legal & Democratic

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R191 Fax Fees 17.00 18.00 1.00 5.88%

R192 Copy Searches 17.00 18.00 1.00 5.88%

Registration Fees

R170 Commercial 155.00 162.00 7.00 4.52%

R171 Private 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

R172 Sealing Fee 55.00 58.00 3.00 5.45%

R173 Copies For Solicitors 55.00 58.00 3.00 5.45%

Providing copies of official 

documents to solicitors. Min 30 

minutes

RTB Sales

R174 Copies Of Documents 0.60 0.65 0.05 8.33% Min 10 Sheets

R169 Engrossments 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

Page 42 of 62Page 64



Appendix 9A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Performance & Transformation

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Jane Silvester
Acting Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Performance & Transformation are set out in the table shown in 

Appendix 9B.

For room hire charges at Centre for Learning and Development, the average charge is proposed to increase by £15.00 

per room per day (15.15%). This is to cover increases in costs. This is the first year of increased charges since the 

centre opened.

The charge for cancellation of training courses is proposed to increase from £50.00 to £75.00 (50% increase). This 

charge had already been raised during the year, due to the increasing number of individuals securing places on courses 

and then not turning up, which is wasting tight resources.

For training fees, the maximum charge for non-council employees (i.e. Link4Life, Impact) is proposed

to increase to £49.00 (42.24% increase) to cover actual cost of training courses.

This will bring charges more in line with costs.

Page 43 of 62Page 65



Appendix 9B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Performance & Transformation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Accommodation Hire

Room Hire

R203A Training Room Hire (per day) 99.00 114.00 15.00 15.15%

R203B Meeting Room Hire (per day) 66.00 75.00 9.00 13.64%

Other

Requests

AM1075 Data Protection Costs 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%
This is the maximum allowed by 

legislation

Training

R202
Cancellation Of Training Courses 

(per person/day)
50.00 75.00 25.00 50.00%

This has already been increased to 

£50 (mid year) for cancellation of 

routine courses with less than 5 

days notice, due to the increasing 

numbers of individuals not turning 

up for courses.  We recommend 

increase fee to £75, to bring it in line 

with other training organisations

Training Fees

R201 Training Fees (per person/day) 116.00 165.00 49.00 42.24%

Negotiable particularly if it is a 

bespoke training day.  This is the 

maximum we charge non-Council 

employees for attending courses.

Actual cost varies from course to 

course based on cost of facilitator.  - 

Increased to ensure comparability 

with the private sector.

Increased to cover increases in 

costs.  First year that charges have 

increased since the Centre for 

Learning & Development opened.

Page 44 of 62Page 66



Appendix 10A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Peter Rowlinson
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Planning & Regulation are set out in the table shown in Appendix 

10B.

The main issue facing the service is the need to balance increases in income against the wider economic position of key 

client groups. The decision has been taken that in the majority of cases the proposed rise of 4.6% is an acceptable figure 

but variations from this are proposed in three areas.  These are Taxi Licensing, Animal Welfare and Registrar's.

The issue facing the Service in relation to taxi fees is that there is considerable trade opposition to increasing fees. We are

putting forward an increase following two years of standstill but in some cases e.g. annual plate fee we are again 

proposing to maintain fees at last year's level.

In the case of Animal Welfare, we have restructured the service and made minor amendments to fees largely to round off 

figures but we have also benchmarked against neighbouring authorities.

We have assessed the likely implications of these changes and feel that overall there will be little or no impact from these 

on income against a 4.6% target.

Past experience has shown that a standstill in some taxi charges has not held back income as the number of licenses has 

continued to grow thereby offsetting a standstill in charges. There is a risk of lower income from Registrar's but we feel 

that had we increased charges in certain areas there would have been a loss of trade to neighbouring areas and therefore 

an even greater risk of a loss of income.

1.  Minor charges to taxi drivers e.g. lanyards, replacement badges - up to 50% increase.

2. An increase in charges for the Roche Suite and increases in charges for some technical documents

(e.g. SHLAR).

Charges for car boot sales have been an additional area where changes are proposed. The proposal is to abolish charges 

for charities and good causes. This is the subject of a separate report to Cabinet. The financial cost of this in a full year is

estimated to be £8000.

With regard to Registrar's the move of maternity services to Oldham has opened the service up to greater competition so 

we have undertaken a benchmarking exercise against neighbouring authorities.  This has shown that our fees are out of 

alignment in a number of areas where they are higher. We have therefore proposed that some fees for attendance at 

weddings be reduced to match competitors but in other cases fees have been increased (e.g. hire of Roche Suite). Again 

this is a product of benchmarking against charges in neighbouring authorities. Other than minor rounding's to the nearest 

pound which in some cases has increased fees by slightly more than 4.6% the only areas where we propose to increase 

fees above 4.6% are:

Page 45 of 62Page 67



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Environmental Health

Admin / Search Fees

R250
Administration Fee For Work In 

Default (Per Property)
35.00 37.00 2.00 5.71%

Fee is charged in addition to an 

hourly rate for the officer time 

incurred in carrying out the work in 

default. Therefore it is seen as 

reasonable to charge the rounded 

figure of 37.00 rather than the AGMA 

average which we do not believe 

includes an office time charge.

R251

Information Search Fee - 

Minimum Charge (Up To First 

Hour)

78.00 82.00 4.00 5.13%

R252

Information Search Fee - Each 

Subsequent Hour Or Part 

Thereof

31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

R253 Stray dog reclamation fee 81.00 85.00 4.00 4.94%

 In case of exceptional circumstance 

and hardship the fee may be 

reduced to statutory minimum of 

£25.00.

General

R941
Individual Export Certs up to 1 

hr
52.00 54.00 2.00 3.85%

R942
Env health each subsequent 

hour of part thereof
31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

R943

Batch Certs only applicable in 

strictly limited circumstances 

(inc low risk product and 

subject to QA audit system

104.00 109.00 5.00 4.81%

Licensing

Car Boot Sales

R362
Licensed Car Boot Sales - Per 

Car
3.10 3.10 0.00 0.00%

R363
Council Car Boot Sales - Per 

Car
3.10 3.10 0.00 0.00%

General Licensing / Registration

R234
Ear Piercing / Tattooing / 

Acupuncture
112.00 117.00 5.00 4.46%

R235 Animal Boarding 124.00 130.00 6.00 4.84%

R236 Dog Breeding 96.00 100.00 4.00 4.17%

R237 Pet Shop 124.00 130.00 6.00 4.84%

R238 Riding Establishment 124.00 130.00 6.00 4.84%

No change - this is subject to 

separate report to Cabinet

Page 46 of 62Page 68



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R239 Dangerous Animals 124.00 130.00 6.00 4.84%

R240 Sex Establishments 7252.00 7586.00 334.00 4.61%

C2
Renewal Fee for Sex 

Establishment Licence
3526.00 3757.00 231.00 6.55%

R241
Registration Of Motor Salvage 

Operations
103.00 108.00 5.00 4.85%

R242
Certified Copy Of Single 

Register Entry
17.00 18.00 1.00 5.88%

Public & Private Hire

R204 Drivers Initial Application 86.00 90.00 4.00 4.65%

R205 Drivers Renewal 58.00 61.00 3.00 5.17%

R206 Drivers Combined Initial 133.00 139.00 6.00 4.51%

R207 Drivers Combined Renewal 100.00 105.00 5.00 5.00%

R208 Drivers Area Knowledge Test 28.00 35.00 7.00 25.00%

New area knowledge testing 

procedure more officer time and 

handouts

R209 Drivers Replacement Badge 14.00 15.00 1.00 7.14%

R210 Drivers Della Check 10.00 15.00 5.00 50.00% Admin time and checking increased

R211 Drivers Duplicate Licence 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%

R212 Drivers Replacement Lanyard 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00%

R213 Drivers  Declaration 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

R214 Vehicles Annual Fee 284.00 293.00 9.00 3.17%

R215 Vehicles Plate Fee 28.00 30.00 2.00 7.14%

There are different systems used by 

LA to produce plates. This fee 

covers the cost of production . 

R216 Vehicles Change Of Vehicle 87.00 100.00 13.00 14.94%

R217 Vehicles Change Of Owner 27.00 30.00 3.00 11.11%

R218 Vehicles Retest Charge 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00%

R219 Vehicles Duplicate Licence 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%

R220
Vehicles Replacement Window 

Stickers
5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00%

R221 Vehicles Dash Numbers 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00%

R222
Private Hire Operators 1 

Vehicle
165.00 173.00 8.00 4.85%

R223
Private Hire Operators 2 - 10 

Vehicles
315.00 329.00 14.00 4.44%

R224

Public & Private Hire:- Private 

Hire Operators: 11 - 20 

Vehicles

442.00 462.00 20.00 4.52%

R225
Private Hire Operators 21 - 30 

Vehicles
567.00 593.00 26.00 4.59%

R226
Private Hire Operators Over 30 

Vehicles
693.00 725.00 32.00 4.62%

R227

Misc Information Letter (Cost 

Includes Up To 1 Hours Work 

And A Cost Of Letter)

74.00 77.00 3.00 4.05%

R228

Misc Information Check (Each 

Subsequent Hour Or Part 

Thereof)

18.00 19.00 1.00 5.56%

R229 Misc: Insurance 37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41%

Further increase may lead to 

potential legal challenge

Page 47 of 62Page 69



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R930
Pre - application consultation 

fee
25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

R931
Street Trading - Change of 

vehicle
44.00 46.00 2.00 4.55%

R230 Annual Consent 750.00 785.00 35.00 4.67%

R231 Annual Licence 1084.00 1134.00 50.00 4.61%

R232

Street Trading - Consent To 

Cover Trading At Specific 

Event: Up To 5 days

174.00 182.00 8.00 4.60%

R233

Street Trading - Consent To 

Cover Trading At Specific 

Event: Up To 2 days

70.00 73.00 3.00 4.29%

Planning & Building Control

Administration Charges / Fees

R340 Building Control Fee Refunds 26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R341

Charges To Building Owners 

For Inspection / Specification 

For Securing Buildings Open 

To Access / Dilapidated

95.00 99.00 4.00 4.21%

Planning & Building Control

R327

Building Regulation Decision 

Notice Enquiry (Including Copy 

Of Any Notice)

26.00 27.00 1.00 3.85%

R328

Building Completion 

Notice/Certificate Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any Notice)

26.00 30.00 4.00 15.38%

R329

Planning & Building Control:- 

Tree Preservation Order Notice 

(Copy)

28.00 29.00 1.00 3.57%

R331

Printed Copy Of Scanned 

Planning Application (Up To 10 

Documents) - Excluding Large 

Format Plans (Over A4 Size)

23.00 24.00 1.00 4.35%

R332
Copy Of Large Application 

Plans (Over A4 Size)
6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

R333

Photocopies Of 

Correspondence And Other 

Papers On Planning 

Application Files, Up To A4 

Size

0.11 0.15 0.04 36.36% In line With DCLG Guidance

R336A
Dangerous Building Call Out 

For The 1st Hour
150.00 157.00 7.00 4.67%

R336B
Dangerous Building Call Out 

Charge Each Hour Thereafter
60.00 63.00 3.00 5.00%

Page 48 of 62Page 70



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R339

Provision Of Late Completion 

Inspections & Issue Of 

Completion Certificates

95.00 99.00 4.00 4.21%

Planning Site Hisitory Search

R334
Minimum Charge Up To First 

Hour
78.00 82.00 4.00 5.13%

R335
Each Subsequent Hour Or Part 

Thereof
31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

R944 Dangerous Building Call Out 75.00 150.00 75.00 100.00%

Provision Of Building History Data Relating To Building Regulations Issues

R337
Minimum Charge (Up To First 

Half Hour)
37.00 39.00 2.00 5.41%

R338
Each Subsequent Hour Or Part 

Thereof
31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

Public Health

Pest Control - Commercial (All VAT Inclusive)

R243

Commercial Premises - Pest 

Control Work -  price per hour 

minimum charge of 1 hour 

(Based on historical data, if 

new data identifies that the full 

unit cost/hourly

84.00 88.00 4.00 4.76%

R244

Commercial Premises - Wasp 

Nest - price per nest with 

advanced payment

58.00 61.00 3.00 5.17%

RS1

Commercial Premises - Wasp 

Nest - price per nest invoice 

requested

0.00 98.00 98.00 0.00% New charge

R246

Domestic Premises - Insect 

pests with advanced payment - 

i.e. wasps, ants, bedbugs, flies, 

cockroaches

49.00 51.00 2.00 4.08%

RS2
Domestic Premises - Squirrel 

Treatment
0.00 87.00 87.00 0.00%

RS3

Domestic Premises - call out 

charge if treatment 

inappropriate

0.00 35.00 35.00 0.00%

RS4
Domestic Premises - advisory 

visit - no treatment
0.00 35.00 35.00 0.00%

RS5

Domestic Premises - re-

booking fee - to rebook/ 

change an appointment time

0.00 20.00 20.00 0.00%

RS6
Domestic Premises - 

cancellation of appointment
0.00 20.00 20.00 0.00%

New charge

Page 49 of 62Page 71



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Registration Of Births, Deaths & Marriages / Civil Ceremonies

Attendance At Partnership Ceremonies At Approved Venues

R306 Mon-Fri 237.00 248.00 11.00 4.64%
Increased in line with North West 

average

R307 Saturday 261.00 273.00 12.00 4.60%
Increased in line with North West 

average

R308 Sunday 295.00 308.00 13.00 4.41%
Increased in line with North West 

average

Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues

R297 Mon-Fri 313.00 327.00 14.00 4.47%

R298 Saturday 324.00 339.00 15.00 4.63%

R299 Sunday 347.00 363.00 16.00 4.61%

Certificates

R316 Change Of Name Adult 45.00 47.00 2.00 4.44%

R317 Change Of Name Child 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00%

R318

Purchase Of Additional 

Certificate

(Birth/Death/Marriage etc.)

6.00 10.00 4.00 66.67%

R325A
Copy Of Birth, Deaths & 

Marriage Certificates
7.00 7.00 0.00 0.00% Statutory fee 

Citizenship Ceremonies

R320 Personal Ceremonies: Mon-Fri 126.00 132.00 6.00 4.76%

R321
Personal Ceremonies: 

Saturday
189.00 198.00 9.00 4.76%

R322 Personal Ceremonies: Sunday 256.00 268.00 12.00 4.69%

Civil Naming & Renewal Of Vows Ceremonies

R310 Register Office: Mon-Fri 114.00 119.00 5.00 4.39%

R311 Register Office: Saturday 152.00 159.00 7.00 4.61%

R312 Sunday 204.00 213.00 9.00 4.41%

R313 Approved Venues: Mon-Fri 171.00 179.00 8.00 4.68%

R314 Approved Venues: Saturday 209.00 219.00 10.00 4.78%

R315 Approved Venues: Sunday 238.00 249.00 11.00 4.62%

Copy of Birth, Death & Marriage Certificates

R326
Coroners - Copying Of Official 

Records
1.20 1.26 0.06 5.00%

Page 50 of 62Page 72



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Licensing

R319
Licensing Of Venues Of Civil 

Ceremonies
1018.00 1065.00 47.00 4.62%

Partnerships Ceremony Fees (Excl Certificate)

R301 Roche Suite: Mon-Thurs 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

R302 Roche Suite: Friday 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

R303 Roche Suite: Saturday 130.00 136.00 6.00 4.62%

R304 Roche Suite: Sunday 178.00 186.00 8.00 4.49%

Roch Suite

R292 Mon-Thurs 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

R293 Friday 80.00 84.00 4.00 5.00%

R294 Saturday 130.00 136.00 6.00 4.62%

R295 Sunday 178.00 186.00 8.00 4.49%

Trading Standards

Hourly Rate For Work Not Included Below

R254

Trading Standards - Hourly 

Rate For Work Not Included 

Below

87.00 91.00 4.00 4.60%

Linear Measures

R257 Not Exceeding 3 Meters 9.00 9.00 0.00 0.00%

R258
Capacity (Without Division): 

Not Exceeding 1 Litre
180.00 188.00 8.00 4.44%

R259
Capacity (Without Division): 

Cubic Ballast
29.00 30.00 1.00 3.45%

R260
Capacity (Without Division) 

Liquid Capacity: Templates
53.00 55.00 2.00 3.77%

Poisons Act 1971

R289 Initial Registration 61.00 64.00 3.00 4.92%

R290 Renewal 29.00 30.00 1.00 3.45%

R291 Initial Registration Alteration 25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

Road Tanker Fuel Above 100 Litres

R283 Meter System - Wet Hose 204.00 213.00 9.00 4.41%

Page 51 of 62Page 73



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R284 Meter System - Dry Hose 228.00 238.00 10.00 4.39%

R285
Dipstick System - To 7600 

Litres
179.00 187.00 8.00 4.47%

R286 Dipstick System - Initial 24.00 25.00 1.00 4.17%

R287 Dipstick System - Spare 24.00 25.00 1.00 4.17%

R288 Dipstick System - Replace 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00%

Trading Standards

R270 Liquid Fuel And Lubricants 77.00 81.00 4.00 5.19%

Unsubdivisional Container

R271 Multigrade - Single Outlet 107.00 112.00 5.00 4.67%

R272 Price Adjustment - Other 192.00 201.00 9.00 4.69%

R273
Price Adjustment - Other 

Single Outlet
85.00 89.00 4.00 4.71%

R274 Price Adjustment - Other  115.00 120.00 5.00 4.35%

R275 Multi Outlets - 1 Meter 124.00 130.00 6.00 4.84%

R276 Multi Outlets - 2 Meters 202.00 211.00 9.00 4.46%

R277 Multi Outlets - 3 Meters 276.00 289.00 13.00 4.71%

R278 Multi Outlets - 4 Meters 348.00 364.00 16.00 4.60%

R279 Multi Outlets - 5 Meters 424.00 444.00 20.00 4.72%

R280 Multi Outlets - 6 Meters 495.00 518.00 23.00 4.65%

R281 Multi Outlets - 7 Meters 582.00 609.00 27.00 4.64%

R282 Multi Outlets - 8 Meters 647.00 677.00 30.00 4.64%

Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units

R261 Up To (No Suggestions) 31.00 32.00 1.00 3.23%

R262 Up To (No Suggestions) 45.00 47.00 2.00 4.44%

R263 Up To (No Suggestions) 58.00 61.00 3.00 5.17%

R264 Up To 1 Tonne 111.00 116.00 5.00 4.50%

R265 Up To 10 Tonne 176.00 184.00 8.00 4.55%

R266 Up To 30 Tonne 368.00 385.00 17.00 4.62%

R267 Up To 60 Tonne 551.00 576.00 25.00 4.54%

Weighing Instruments Intoxicating Liquors

R268 Up To (No Suggestions) 22.00 23.00 1.00 4.55%

R269 Other 23.00 24.00 1.00 4.35%

Weights

R255 Up To keg 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

R256 Above keg 8.00 8.00 0.00 0.00%

Page 52 of 62Page 74



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Car Boot Sales

AM1115
Licensed Car Boot Sales - Per 

Car
3.10 3.10 0.00 0.00%

Members set fee and cannot be 

increased

Environment Economy / Retail

R359 Retail Database 28.00 29.00 1.00 3.57%

R360

Rochdale Retail Study, Sept 

2006 (CD & Hard Copy 

Version)

116.00 121.00 5.00 4.31%

R361
Rochdale Retail Study, Sept 

2006 (CD Version)
82.00 86.00 4.00 4.88%

General

R364 Photocopies Per Copy 0.21 0.25 0.04 19.05%

Local Development Framework

R347
Local Development Scheme, 

March 2009
11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09%

R348
Annual Monitoring Report, 

December 2008
11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09%

R349

Rochdale Borough Core 

Strategy - Issues & Options 

Report

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R350

Affordable Housing 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, March 2008

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R351

Biodiversity & Development 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, Jan 2008

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R352

East Central Rochdale (Ecru) 

Area Framework 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, May 2008

14.00 15.00 1.00 7.14%

R353

Energy & New Development 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, May 2008

13.00 14.00 1.00 7.69%

R354

Provision Of Recreational 

Open Space In New Housing 

Document, March 2008

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R355

Rochdale Town Centre East 

Area Framework 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, Dec 2007

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R356

Urban Design Guidance 

Supplementary Planning 

Document, Sept 2007

12.00 13.00 1.00 8.33%

R932
Heywood Green Infrastructure 

Study
20.00 21.00 1.00 5.00%

R933 Public Art Strategy 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%

Page 53 of 62Page 75



Appendix 10B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Planning & Regulation

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

R934
LDF Core Strategy - 

Publication Draft 2010
0.00 15.00 15.00 0.00%

R935 LDF Background Paper 2010 0.00 20.00 20.00 0.00%

R936
LDF Report on Consultation on 

preferred options
0.00 30.00 30.00 0.00%

R937
LDF Statement of Community 

Involvement
0.00 11.00 11.00 0.00%

R938
LDF Core Strategy Preferred 

Options report
15.00 16.00 1.00 6.67%

R939 SHLAA site plans >10 0.00 25.00 25.00 0.00% New charge

R940 Employment Land Study 112.00 117.00 5.00 4.46%

Research Papers Housing

R357

Strategic Housing Land 

Availability Assessment (Shale) 

March 2009

77.00 81.00 4.00 5.19%

R358
Supply & Development Of 

Residential Land, Apr 2005
42.00 44.00 2.00 4.76%

Rochdale Borough Unitary Development Plan

R342 June 2006 45.00 47.00 2.00 4.44%
Price comparable with other GM 

Authorities.

Supplementary Planning Guidance

R343

Guidance & Standards For 

Residential Development, Feb 

1995

8.00 8.00 0.00 0.00%

R344

Guidelines For Shop Fronts & 

Associated Advertisements, 

Feb 1995

8.00 8.00 0.00 0.00%

R345
Guidelines For Wind Power 

Developments, June 1998
8.00 8.00 0.00 0.00%

R346
Littleborough Town Design 

Statement
3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00%

Price not increased as these 

documents are reletively old and 

there is limited demand.  Price is 

comparable with other GM 

Authorities.

New charge (based on printing 

costs)

Page 54 of 62Page 76



Appendix 11A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Regeneration

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Penny Sharp
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Regeneration are set out in the table shown in Appendix 11B.

The Service has increased its discretionary fees and charges in accordance with the 4.6% requirements.

The increase in proposed prices meets the minimum 4.6% and it is expected that the level of income received will 

increase by a similar amount.

Page 55 of 62Page 77



Appendix 11B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Regeneration

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Accommodation Hire

Jumbo & Stannycliffe Community Centre

R365 Main Hall: Mon-Thurs 22.00 23.00 1.00 4.55%

R366 Main Hall: Friday 25.00 26.00 1.00 4.00%

R367 Main Hall: Saturday 28.00 29.00 1.00 3.57%

R368 Main Hall: Sunday 34.00 36.00 2.00 5.88%

R369 Meeting Hall: Mon-Sat 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.00%

R370 Function Room 89.00 93.00 4.00 4.49%

R371
Concessionary Hire: Mon-Fri(jam-

up)
6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

R372 Charity Fundraising 32.00 33.00 1.00 3.13%

Page 56 of 62Page 78



Appendix 12A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Schools

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Sandra Bowness
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Schools are set out in the table shown in Appendix 12B.

The majority of fees have been increased above 4.6%. This is to allow for rounding and ensure consistency / 

comparability between charges.

There are no Financial Implications associated with the Discretionary Fees & Charges for this Service.

Page 57 of 62Page 79



Appendix 12B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Schools

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Music Service

Individual Lesson

RS7 15 Mins 6.35 6.60 0.25 3.94%

RS8 20 Mins 8.45 8.80 0.35 4.14%

RS9 30 Mins 11.25 11.80 0.55 4.89%

RS10 45 Mins 17.50 18.30 0.80 4.57%

RS11 60 Mins 24.00 25.10 1.10 4.58%

RS12 Theory 6.00 6.30 0.30 5.00%

RS13 Performance 35.00 36.60 1.60 4.57%

RS14 Family Charge 50.00 52.30 2.30 4.60%

Page 58 of 62Page 80



Appendix 13A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Strategic Housing

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Donna Bowler
Acting Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Strategic Housing are set out in the table shown in Appendix 

13B.

The Homelessness Accommodation Charges are increased in line with Council dwelling rents which are subject to a 

separate report in February 2012. Hire charges for the Roch Vale Caravan Park and Homelessness Accommodation 

Service Charges are currently under review by the Service. Changes will be presented in a Cabinet report in February 

2012.

At this stage the Service anticipates that overall its income levels will increase broadly in line with the overall 4.6% 

agreed by Members and will maintain budgeted income levels providing that the level of demand remains the same.

Page 59 of 62Page 81



Appendix 13B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Strategic Housing

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Accommodation Hire

Roch Vale Caravan Park

R381 Licence Fee Per Plot 81.00 85.00 4.00 4.94%

Inspection / Licensing

Houses In Multiple Occupation Licensing Scheme Fees - Mandatory Service

R387 Landlord's First Application 750.00 785.00 35.00 4.67%

R388 Landlord's Subsequent Application 650.00 680.00 30.00 4.62%

Houses In Multiple Occupation Licensing Scheme Fees - Supplement For

R389 Five Yearly Inspection Per Room 34.00 36.00 2.00 5.88%

R390 Inadequate Applications 125.00 131.00 6.00 4.80%

R391 Initial Refusal Of A Licence 734.00 768.00 34.00 4.63%

R392 Managing Agent Fee 140.00 146.00 6.00 4.29%

R393 Variations To A Licence 250.00 262.00 12.00 4.80%

R382 Inspections Fee 112.00 117.00 5.00 4.46%

Immigration Housing

R456
Leopold Court Weekly Rental 

Charge
0.00 0.00 0.00

R457
Great Howarth Weekly Rental 

Charge
0.00 0.00 0.00

R458
Dispersed Flats Weekly Rental 

Charge
0.00 0.00 0.00

Homeless Accommodation Service Charge

R383 Leopold Court 28.00 28.00 0.00 0.00%

R384 Great Howarth 23.00 23.00 0.00 0.00%

R385 Dispersed Flats 20.00 20.00 0.00 0.00%

R386 Dispersed Flats With Card Meters 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.00%

To Be Increased In Line With 

Council Dwelling Rents

Revised fee for 2012/13 to be 

decided later in the year following 

final decision on stock transfer.

Page 60 of 62Page 82



Appendix 14A

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Learning Disabilities, Mental Health & Vulnerable Adults

Background

Summary of Main Issues

Financial Implications

Dianne David
Service Director

The 2012/13 proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges for Vulnerable Adults are set out in the table shown in Appendix 

14B.

This report proposes no new chargeable services.

No increase to R150 - "Support Charges for Learning Disabilities Supported Living Service" has been included in this 

report as no management decision has yet been taken about charging levels for next year. Any change will be reported 

to Cabinet under separate cover before any future increase.

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Page 61 of 62Page 83



Appendix 14B

Proposed Discretionary Fees & Charges 2012/13

Service    Learning Disabilities, Mental Health & Vulnerable Adults

Current

Charges (£)

Proposed

Charges (£)

Increase £ 

/ p

Increase

% Notes

Social Care

Support Charges

R150
Charges For LD Supported Living 

Services
130.00 130.00 0.00 0.00%

Awaiting Management Decision re: 

future charge level

Page 62 of 62Page 84



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 21 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
Subject:  Common Housing Policy and 

policy amendments  
 
 

Status:  For Publication 

Report to:   
Cabinet 

 

Date:       31st October 2011 
  

Report of: Helen Bellis (Strategic Housing 

Services) 
 

Email: 

helen.bellis@rochdale.gov.uk 
 

Tel: 01706 92 4460 
 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Robinson   
Portfolio Holder for: Health, Adult Care and Housing  
  

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer approved – no comments  
Monitoring Officer approved – no comments  

Key Decision:   Yes  
 
Forward Plan  X General Exception   Special Urgency    

 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of the proposed Common Housing Allocation Policy 

being adopted by partner housing providers. 

1.2 For Cabinet to agree the Housing Allocation Policy amendments. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 2.1 For Cabinet to approve the policy.  

 
MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ CONSULTATION 

CARRIED OUT 
 

Common Housing Register  
3.1 To make best use of the social housing stock in the borough, work is 

underway with partner registered providers to develop a common 

housing register, housing allocation policy and application process for 
the borough. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 85



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 21 

 

 
3.2 A common housing register will: 

• ensure the council and other housing providers makes best use of 
the limited social housing stock within the borough 

• ensure there is a common approach for customers to access housing 
across all providers 

• aid work towards a sub regional scheme 

• ensure a ‘no wrong door’ approach for people needing to apply for 
housing 

• give the council and providers access to more in depth 
knowledge/information that we can use to inform strategic decisions 
on housing development, identify the true housing need in the 

borough etc 
 

3.3  Initially Riverside Housing, Great Places Housing Group, Regenda 
Housing, St. Vincent’s Housing and English Churches Housing Group 
will join the Council’s housing register; with further development 

work to include all registered providers operating in the borough. 
Registered providers will collapse their housing registers and all 

applicants wishing to be rehoused in the borough will be registered 
on the councils housing register.  

 
3.4 All available properties will be advertised on RBH’s HomeChoice 

website; applicants will also be advised what properties are available 

by RBH’s HomeChoice Team and via the council customer services 
centre staff. Customers will apply for social housing via the one 

application process and applicants will be short listed using the 
councils housing allocation policy. 

 

Policy Amendments 
3.5  In a period of increasing pressure on housing stock and statutory 

services, it is essential that the allocations reflect our desire to 
continue to help those households in most need and balance it 
against the need to develop and maintain sustainable communities 

and enable people to achieve independence.  
 

3.6 With the adjusted priorities we can still ensure that those with the 
most pressing needs are supported; we can extend our housing 
options by promoting and encouraging people to take a greater 

control of their housing and minimise the perverse incentive that has 
been seen in other districts, of people seeking to use homelessness 

as a way to gain advantage, and continue to meet our statutory 
needs.  

 

3.7 Below are the proposed amended priorities homeless/threatened 
with homelessness applicants will be awarded:  

 
Band A 
• Serious risk of harm 

Households made homeless or at risk of homelessness as a result of serious 
risk of harm will continue to be given the highest priority. This includes 

Page 86



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 21 

 

households in the borough experiencing domestic abuse that want or need 
to move from their home quickly. 

 
Band B 

• Move On 
This covers all households that are homeless or at risk of being homeless 
and are considered or can demonstrate that they will be able to resettle 

and sustain their home. This recognises that a proportion of households 
that become homeless do so as a result of unmet needs, failure to address 

issues or just through lack of the necessary skills needed to sustain a 
home. By being proactive people can improve their prospects and it 
ensures that vulnerable people moving on to independent living will have a 

package of support.  
 

Band C 
• All priority homeless applicants including 16/17yr olds and 

former relevant child. 

• Non-priority households to whom the authority may have a duty 
if homelessness cannot be prevented. 

The council is required to offer statutory homeless households preference 
and also recognise that some households can avoid becoming homeless by 

timely access to alternative housing. By consolidating all homeless 
applicants in this band the council is providing equal access to all 
homelessness applicants other than those at serious risk of harm. Any one 

wishing to improve their prospects can do so by demonstrating that they 
have the necessary skills or support to sustain independent living, or who 

are engaged in a planned programme of resettlement or are employed 
where upon they would be able to have their status enhanced to Band B.    

 

• Households that are in a priority group but are assessed as being 
intentionally homeless. 

The council is still required to offer a preference to a household in a priority 
group even though they may have become homeless as a result of actions 
that they have or should have taken other than in cases where someone 

has lost their home as a result of serious anti social behaviour. However, by 
placing the household at the bottom of Band C we are sending a clear 

message that if they wish to improve their prospects, they must choose to 
address any issues and engage in activities that will enable them to 
demonstrate that they will be able to sustain a future tenancy. 

 
3.8 The above amendments will encourage homeless applicants or those 

threatened with homelessness to engage with the relevant support 
services before crisis point; the amendments will recognise those 
proactive applicants. Those most vulnerable applicants who are 

homeless or threatened with homelessness due to domestic violence 
or racial harassment will continued to be recognised as needing 

emergency rehousing and will still awarded Band A priority.  
 

3.9 Since the new allocation policy and CBL scheme were implemented in 

September 2010, there has been an increase in the number of lets to 
applicants in Bands A to Band C; therefore proving that the homeless 

Page 87



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 4 of 21 

 

priority amendments will not disadvantage applicants accessing 
housing.  

 
3.10 The following table shows the percentage of applicants in each band 

for May 2011 and the percentage of properties that are being let to 
each group; this clearly demonstrates the availability of properties 

for the 3 priority bands (A-C); this is a typical example since the 
implementation in September. 

  

  

 

Priority 
Band   

 

Average % of 
applicants on the 

housing register who 
have been awarded this 
priority 

 

Average % of properties 
allocated to each Band 

 

Band A 1% 1% 

Band B 2% 11% 

Band C 13% 21% 

Band D 84% 67% 

 

 
Alternatives considered 

 

 3.11 None. 
 

Consultation proposed/undertaken 
 
3.12 Consultation with the relevant Council and RBH teams has taken 

place; the proposed amendments have been welcomed.  
  

3.13 Consultation with the councils partner registered providers has also 
been undertaken in light of development of the common register. 

Registered providers are also in agreement with the amendments. 
 

 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 There are no financial implications to the council.  

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 None. Legal Services are happy with the approach, as the councils 

statutory duties will continue to be fulfilled.  
 
6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 A resource has been identified within RBH to undertake the work 

generated by the common housing register. 

6.2 Registered providers will be charged for the advertisement of their 
available properties and the short listing of applicants.  

Page 88



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 5 of 21 

 

 
7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 
7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising 

from this report. 
 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 

 
 8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 

 
 There are no workforce equality issues arising form this report. 

 

 8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
 

 An EIA was undertaken before the policy was approved and 
implemented in September 2010. No further equality issues should 
arise from the amendments to this document; as explained in 3.10.  

 
 

 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Common Housing Allocation Policy  

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 89



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 6 of 21 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Rochdale Borough 
Council and Partners 

 
Housing Allocation Policy 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 90



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 7 of 21 

 

 
 
 
OWNERSHIP OF POLICY  
 
This is Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council’s housing allocation policy.  
 
The council and its partner registered providers share this policy to ensure the best 
use of all socially rented housing stock within the borough, to offer customers ease of 
access and a common approach to the housing application process.  
 
This document was developed by the council, its partners and Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing in consultation with elected members, tenants, applicants and other 
stakeholders. 
 
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing is responsible for the implementation of the policy. 
References within the policy include those functions carried out by Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing on behalf of the council and registered providers.  
 
CONTENTS 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
2. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE ALLOCATION POLICY AND THE 

REHOUSING SYSTEM 
 

3. LEGAL FRAMEWORK 
 

4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY STATEMENT 
 

5. DATA PROTECTION 
 
6. APPLICATION PROCESS 

 
7. APPLICANT CRITERIA 

 
8. INELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
 
9. PRIORITY AND HOUSING NEED  
 
10. OFFERS AND EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST 
 
11. REVIEWING APPLICANTS 
 

Page 91



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 8 of 21 

 

12. LETTINGS CRITERIA AND OFFERED PROPERTIES 
 

13. PROPERTY QUOTAS 
 
14. LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  

 
15.  JOINT APPLICANTS 

 
16. MONITORING AND REVIEWING OF THE POLICY 
 
17. OTHER HOUSING OPTIONS 

 
18. HOW TO MAKE A COMPLAINT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 9 of 21 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The council and other registered housing providers within the borough operate a 

common housing register and allocate accommodation to the criteria set out within 
this common housing allocation policy.  

 
1.2 The council and its partners allocate their housing stock through a choice based 

lettings scheme.  
 
1.3  In developing this policy the council and its partners have taken due regard for 

legislation, government guidance and responses from extensive consultation.  
 
1.4 Government guidance promotes the view that  those decisions on the allocation of 

social housing, which have a profound impact at national and at local level, should 
be taken in a framework which balances both national and local interests. 

 
2. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE ALLOCATIONS POLICY  
 
2.1 The key aims and objectives of this policy are to: 
 

• contribute to the development of sustainable communities 

• assist the council and its partners in meeting statutory duties and corporate 
aims 

• prevent people becoming statutory homeless 

• meet national, regional, sub regional and local priorities 

• provide flexible and affordable accommodation options which meet needs and 
expectations 

• maximise choice for applicants 

• make the housing process and its policies more accessible to customers 

• let council and other registered provider’s accommodation fairly and in an open 
and transparent way 

• responsibilities towards the borough’s residents 

• minimise property void periods 

• seek to promote social inclusion 

• promote and achieve equality of opportunity 
 
3. LEGAL FRAMEWORK 
 
3.1 The Allocations Policy complies with the following legislation. This is together with 
any relevant regulations or orders made under that legislation.  
 

• The Housing Act 1985 

• The Housing Act 1996 

• The Homelessness Act 2002 

Page 93



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 10 of 21 

 

• The Housing Act 2004 

• The Human Rights Act 1998 

• The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 

• The Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 

• The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 

• The Data Protection Act 1998 

• The Gender Recognition Act 2004 

• The Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004 

• The Equality Act 2010 

• Childrens (Leaving Care) Act 2000 
 
3.2 This Allocations Policy is based on housing need as defined in the Housing Act 
1996, as amended. 
 
3.3 The reasonable preference categories set out in s.167 (2) are: 
 
a) People who are homeless (within the meaning of the Part 7 of the 1996 Act); this 
includes people who are intentionally homeless, and those who do not have a priority 
need for accommodation.  
 
b) People who are owed a duty by any local authority under s.190(2), s.193(2) or 
s.195(2) of the 1996 Act (or under s.65(2) or s.68(2) of the Housing Act1985) or who 
are occupying accommodation secured by any local authority under s.192(3).  
 
c) People occupying insanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise living in 
unsatisfactory housing conditions. 
 
d) People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including grounds 
relating to a disability, and  
 
e) People who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the local authority, 
where failure to meet that need would cause hardship (to themselves or to others). 
 
3.4 This Allocations Policy has been written to meet the duties of Part 6 of the 
Housing Act 1996, as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002. 
 
3.5 Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996 covers: 
 

• allocating local authority properties to new tenants  

• transfers that are requested by local authority tenants  

• exclusions and suspensions from the housing register 

• the right to review an exclusion decision  

• information that is held on the housing register 

• allocating local authority properties to current tenants of registered social 
landlords 

• nominations that the Council makes to registered social landlords 
  

Page 94



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 11 of 21 

 

3.6 This policy takes account of the Allocation of Accommodation Code of Guidance 
for Local Housing Authorities, November 2002 revision and the Fair and Flexible 
Guidance December 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal responsibility 
 
3.7 The council and/or Rochdale Boroughwide Housing will be responsible for the 
conduct and costs of any legal challenge relating to the council’s housing allocation 
policy.  
 
3.8 A partner registered provider will be responsible for the conduct and costs of any 
legal challenge relating to the individual partner registered provider local lettings 
policy.   
 
4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY STATEMENT 
 
4.1 This policy recognises, respects and responds to the different and diverse housing 
needs of the Borough.  It offers equality of opportunity for everyone regardless of race, 
ethnic origin, nationality, religion, cultural background, gender, sexual orientation, 
domestic circumstances, age, disability or illness. 
 
4.2 This policy complies with RMBC’s Equality and Diversity Policy, aims to support 
Rochdale Borough’s Local Strategic Partnerships’ vision and complies with the 
Commission for Racial Equality's Code of Practice in Rented Housing.  
 
4.3 This policy enables all eligible applicants to access the Housing Register.  It ensures 
that we assess each applicant for housing on the basis of individual need.  In addition, 
our assessment will seek to identify and meet any special requirements. For example, if 
a language barrier exists or if an applicant has certain disabilities or learning difficulties 
which requires them to need the services of other agencies or support from families.   
 
5. DATA PROTECTION 
 
5.1 The Data Protection Act 1998 governs the way RMBC and its partners use 
personal information in relation to housing services. It covers all personal data that is 
processed, whether recorded in a manual or computerised form. 
 
5.2 Personal data will be held securely and only those staff authorised, including 
authorised staff employed by the partners who have adopted this policy, will have 
access to relevant information. 
 
5.3 Information will only be held as long as necessary and in accordance with the 
appropriate retention policies in place. 
 
5.4 Information will not be disclosed to third parties unless a legal basis is satisfied.  
 

Page 95



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 12 of 21 

 

5.5 Appropriate procedures are in place to ensure that applicants are able to exercise 
their right to access any information held about themselves. See Disclosure Section 
(5.8) 
 
5.6 It is the responsibility of both staff and applicants to ensure that all information that 
is held within the information systems is accurate and up to date. 
 
 
Keeping information 
 
5.7 The type of information kept by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) and 
registered providers, about each eligible applicant includes but is not limited to: 
 

• Full details of the applicant and moving family including for example, name, 
date of birth, address, ethnicity, immigration status, employment status, welfare 
and medical conditions  

 

• Information relevant to the housing application including details of existing and 
previous accommodation and previous tenancy conduct  

 
Disclosure 
 
5.8 An individual (the data subject) is entitled to be informed by RBH and registered 
providers whether it holds any personal data on a data subject, and is allowed to see 
any personal data. To prevent unauthorised disclosure the following steps are taken: 
 

• All requests are made in writing.  
 

• Where the request is made by the tenant/applicant, they will be asked to 
provide written confirmation of ID;  

 

• Where a request for disclosure is received from someone acting on behalf of a 
tenant/applicant, such requests must be made in writing. The person 
concerned will be asked to provide proof of identity and confirmation from the 
data subject i.e. Power of Attorney or similar, that he/she is acting on behalf of 
the subject. 

 
5.9 Where information has been provided by a third party and a disclosure requested, 
the third party must consent to the disclosure or direct requests to the third party will 
also be accepted. 
 
5.10 Only authorised staff will be permitted to access personal information. 
 
6. APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
6.1 All applicants must submit a completed housing application form for assessment. 
 
6.2 Once an application has been submitted, all applicants are assessed for any 
factors that determine housing need and to establish if a duty is owed.  
 

Page 96



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 13 of 21 

 

6.3 If the applicant is eligible for rehousing, the application will be made live on the 
Housing Register and priority awarded if necessary.  
 
6.4 Once an application is live, the applicant can express an interest in available 
accommodation. 
 
6.5 An applicant can be ineligible for rehousing for a number of reasons, please see 
Section 8. An applicant can request an appeal of this decision, which must be made 
within 21 days. 
 
6.6 Under section 171 of the Housing Act 1996, a person who provides false 
statements or withholds information could be liable on summary conviction to a fine 
not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale. They will also be deemed ineligible for 
rehousing. If the person has already been rehoused when the offence is discovered, 
steps may be taken to regain possession of the property.  
 
7. APPLICANT CRITERIA 
 
7.1 All applicants are deemed eligible unless specifically stated as ineligible by statute 
or direction of the Secretary of State.  
 
7.2 Those specifically stated as ineligible are: 
 

• Applicants subject to immigration control and prescribed by the Secretary of 
State as ineligible or who are not habitually resident in the Common Travel 
Area (i.e. the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the 
Republic of Ireland, The Channel Islands and the Isle of Man), and/or; 

 

• Cases where the applicant, or any member of his/her household, has been 
guilty of unacceptable behaviour serious enough to make him/her unsuitable to 
be a tenant. This includes those owing housing related debt (rent arrears, court 
costs and/or costs involved in repairing residential property) and those involved 
in anti-social behaviour/nuisance/harassment. 

 

• Applicants guilty of unacceptable behaviour which have been serious enough 
to lead to the granting of an outright possession order (or equivalent serious 
legal action); the behaviour is the fault of the applicant or members of the 
household applying for rehousing and is/was not caused by factors outside 
his/her control; and the circumstances and behaviour have not changed and 
improved since the unacceptable behaviour occurred.  

 
However, under some special circumstances, such as where there may be an 
overriding housing need to be met or a duty to a statutory homeless person, then 
these eligibility rules may be waived.   
 
7.3 For applicants owing housing related debt(s) the following applies: 
 

• In all cases of housing related debt, including those over £250, account will be 
taken of all relevant factors including record of repayment and willingness by 
the applicant to clear and reduce outstanding debt, improve behaviour and 

Page 97



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 14 of 21 

 

provide assurances about future performance.  
 
Immigration and habitual residence 
 
7.4 Passports, immigration papers and other relevant documentation must be 
produced at the interview to assess immigration status.  A decision will be based on 
these documents in accordance with the legal requirements. All evidence produced in 
support of the application must be original. 
 
16/17 year olds    
  
7.5 The council and its partners will only offer housing to an applicant who is aged 16 
or 17 if he/she is: 
 

• Classed as homeless or threatened with homelessness, eligible for homeless 
assistance, in priority need and not intentionally homeless under the Housing 
Act 1996 (as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002) 

 

• Owed a duty to provide accommodation under the Children (Leaving Care) Act 
2000; or 

 

• Has a form of income sufficient to meet their housing costs and their everyday 
living needs. Applicants will be required to provide proof, which can mean 
evidence of wages, receipt of benefits, an employer’s letter, etc.  

 
7.6 If accepted for housing, a support package/network must be identified to assist the 
applicant in managing accommodation. 
 
Applicants from outside of the Borough 
 
7.7 Applicants from outside the Borough who have a strong local connection with the 
Borough will be assessed for reasonable preference.   
 
7.8 A strong local connection can be demonstrated by evidence of social and/or 
immediate family ties; or employment that is more than temporary/casual; or a past 
term of residence (of not less than 6 months in the past 12, or not less than 3 years in 
the past 5); or support needs affecting the applicant or a resident/s of the borough.  
 
7.9 All out of Borough applicants who have been identified as having a strong local 
connection will be invited to a housing options interview.  
 
7.10 If an applicant does not live in the borough and does not have a strong local 
connection with the Rochdale borough, then he/she will be awarded Band D priority 
(no housing need); see Section 9 for details.  
 
Applicants leaving the Armed Forces 
 
7.11 All Armed Forces applicants must have a strong local connection to Rochdale, as 
defined in 7.8.  
 

Page 98



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 15 of 21 

 

Applicants leaving prison 
 
7.12 All applicants leaving prison must have a strong local connection to Rochdale, as 
defined in 7.8. When an application is received RBH will make enquiries with the 
Probation Services and once the applicant is cleared their application is made live and 
the applicant can begin to express an interest immediately.  
 
All applicants  
 
7.13 All applicants are expected to indicate their willingness to comply with tenancy 
conditions, and to understand that the Council and its partners expect all tenants to 
respect the rights of their neighbours to a peaceful and quiet enjoyment of their homes 
and environment. 

8. INELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 

 
8.1 Applicants may be removed from the Housing Register for the following reasons: 
 

• At the applicant’s request  

• If the applicant is no longer contactable and has moved from the address given 
on their application form 

• If an applicant no longer/has never been eligible for rehousing 
 
8.2 An applicant has the right to request a review of any decision as to his/her 
eligibility for assistance. 

8.3 If an applicant has requested a review and is:  

• dissatisfied with the decision on the review, or  

• not notified of the decision on the review within the time prescribed  

he/she may appeal to the county court on any point of law arising from the decision or, 
as the case may be, the original decision. 

8.4 For further details, please see relevant literature available.  
 
9. PRIORITY BANDS AND HOUSING NEED 
 
9.1 Once an applicant’s level of housing need has been assessed, an application will 
be placed in one of four priority bands; Band A to Band D, ranging from applicants 
who are in urgent housing need in Band A, to applicants in Band D who will have no 
housing need. 
 
9.2 The following table lists the categories of housing need and clearly sets out which 
priorities fall within the 4 bands. 
 
 

Band A 

• Serious medical – life at risk 

• Serious risk of harm - domestic violence, racial and hate crime, severe 

Page 99



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 16 of 21 

 

harassment 

• Anyone facing imminent discharge from hospital or a specialist provision 

• Clearance (property is subject to CPO) 
 

Band B 

• Unsuitable condition of privately rented property with a vulnerable age group 
present 

• Under occupation and/or or for an adapted property which is now not required 

• Move On 

• Care management  

• Learning Disability 

• Severe & Enduring Mental Health 

• Physical Disability 

• People with HIV & Aids 
 

Band C 

• Homeless applicants where there is a statutory duty to provide housing 

• Applicants threatened with homelessness where the council would have a 
statutory duty to rehouse 

• 16/17 yrs old homeless and vulnerable 

• 16/17yrs old owed duty and/or leaving care 

• 18-21 year old homeless (other than a ‘relevant student’) who is a ‘former 
relevant child’ 

• Applicants that are homeless or threatened with homelessness but not in a 
priority group 

• Learning Difficulty 

• Carers, registered foster workers and key support workers 

• Medical condition 

• Overcrowded – one bed lacking + another hazard (i.e. mixed sex sharing a 
room) 

• Overcrowded – 2 bed+lacking 

• Unsuitable condition of privately rented property without a vulnerable age 
group present 

• Moving for work  

• Mental illness 

• Parents under 18 yrs old requiring support 

• Leaving prison 

• Leaving the armed forces 

• Hardship, as defined in s.167 of the 1996 Housing Act 

• Applicants that are homeless or threatened with homelessness but are 
deemed to be intentionally homeless 

 

Band D 

• Applicants without a housing need who are in employment  

• Applicants without a housing need who are not in employment  

• Applicants with a physical disability who are adequately housed 
 

 

Page 100



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 17 of 21 

 

 
9.3 Applicants across all bands who express an interest in a property will be short 
listed according to: 

• Priority need  

• If they currently live within the borough/have a strong local connection 

• Length of waiting time on the Housing Register 

• If they are in employment 

• If they have financial means to secure accommodation otherwise 
 
9.4 Whilst the council and its partners aims to achieve clarity and transparency in 
setting the bands, there will be a discretion to provide a degree of flexibility in the 
implementation of the policy in considering the merit of individual cases. 
 
10. OFFERS OF ACCOMMODATION AND EXPRESSING INTEREST IN A 
PROPERTY 
 
10.1 Once an application becomes live applicants can start to place expressions of 
interest on properties advertised on the Homechoice website.  
 
10.2 Properties will be advertised on a weekly cycle, with all expressions of interest 
taken in this time being treated equally, regardless of when placed.  
 
10.3 All applicants can express an interest for properties of their choice. No direct 
offers will be made except for extenuating circumstances, where an applicant needs to 
be moved in an emergency situation. 
 
10.4 Each applicant can place up to 3 expressions of interest at any one time within a 
weekly advertising cycle. 
 
10.5 Each applicant will have a number of opportunities dependant on their priority to 
refuse an offer of a property on which they have actively expressed an interest in; as it 
is expected that if an applicant has made the choice to express an interest on a 
property then they are actually interested in that accommodation. 
 
10.6 At the end of the weekly cycle, all eligible expressions of interests will be short 
listed by applicants needs. Time on list, local connection and whether the applicant 
can adequately house themselves will all be deciding factors too.  
 
10.7 In the case of Band D applicants expressing an interest on properties, as these 
are applicants who have no housing need, being in employment, local connection and 
waiting time on the Housing Register will be the main deciding factors for allocation, 
along with whether an applicant has the financial means to secure accommodation by 
other means. 
 
10.8 All applications will be subject to any last minute checks affecting their 
application before the final offer is made. An offer of rehousing is not binding until the 
tenancy agreement is signed and completed, and can be withdrawn at any time before 
that event.  
 
11. REVIEW OF APPLICANTS 

Page 101



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 18 of 21 

 

 
11.1 All applicants’ expression of interest activity will be reviewed regularly to identify 
any need for support in the process. 
 
11.2 All medical applications will be assessed by a panel. The panel will take account 
of each individual’s circumstances. All decisions are subject to review. 
 
11.3 Special needs cases will be assessed in conjunction with other relevant 
agencies. All decisions are subject to review. 
 
11.4 All applicants will be assessed regularly to ensure they are still relevant. 
Applicants may be deemed to have become ineligible or have a reduced priority for 
reasons including but not limited to, if there has been a change in their housing 
circumstance, if they have been identified as not actively expressing an interest in 
appropriate properties or refusing properties on which they have actively expressed 
an interest. 
 
11.5 All decisions to remove priority status are subject to review. 
 
12. LETTINGS CRITERIA AND TYPES OF PROPERY OFFERED.  
 
12.1 All offers of accommodation will attempt to make maximum use of the stock, by 
ensuring wherever possible that applicants’ household details configure as closely to 
the attributes of the property. E.g. three-bedroom house would be offered to an 
applicant whose details indicate that a three-bedroom house is the most effective 
means of making best use of the property and satisfying the requirements of the 
applicant.  
 
12.2 Accommodation within a scheme where there are 3 or more floors and where 
there is no lift readily available will not be considered suitable for offer to families with 
children under the age of 10. Where the applicant or another agency indicates that 
they be considered for accommodation above the first floor and the children are aged 
11 years and over, they may be offered such accommodation.  
 
12.3 Families with children of the same sex who are sharing a bedroom, where at 
least one is aged over 16 years old, will be considered as needing a further bedroom. 
 
12.4 Families with children of different sexes who are sharing a bedroom, where one 
child is aged 10 years old or above, will be considered as needing a further bedroom.  
 
12.5 The type and size of property usually offered to applicants will depend on the 
size, age and household make-up of the family. The following table shows how 
properties are offered to a range of household types, though individual circumstances 
of the applicant may be taken into account for a different property. 
 

 
HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

 

PROPERTY TYPE 

Single person  1 Bed Flat/Bed-sit 
1 Bed house 

Page 102



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 19 of 21 

 

Single older person/disabled person 1 Bed Flat 
1 Bed Bungalow 
1 Bed Sheltered Flat 
1 Bed Sheltered Bungalow 
Sheltered Bed-sit 
1 Bed house 

Couple without children 1 Bed Flat 
1 Bed house 

Older couples/disabled people 1 or occasionally 2 Bedroom Bungalow/Flat 
(where a 2nd Bedroom is justified) 
Sheltered Accommodation Flat / Bungalow 
I Bed house 

Families with a child expected,1 child or 
2 children of the same sex 

2 Bedroom House 
2 Bedroom Maisonette 
2 Bedroom Flat with entrance at ground 
floor 

Families with 2 children of opposite sex 
(1 over the age of 5) 
Families with 3 children 
Some families with 4 children 
(dependent on sex and ages) 

3 Bedroom House 
3 Bedroom Maisonette 

Some families with 4 children 
(dependent on sex and ages) 
Families with over 4 children 

4 or 5 Bedroom House (depending on the 
number of children) 
 

 
12.6 Exceptions to this table may include:  
 
1. Where a local lettings scheme is in operation, there maybe some changes to the 

above framework. Please refer to section 14.  
 
2. When an applicant has downsized their accommodation (RBH or registered 

providers properties only) giving up a desirable larger property, but who still wishes 
to have a spare room.  

 
Sheltered accommodation 
 
12.7 Allocation of sheltered accommodation will also be based on the support needs 
of the applicant. 
 
Extra Care 
 
12.8 The allocation of Extra Care housing falls outside this policy. 
 
13. PROPERTY QUOTAS 
 
13.1 All council and registered providers housing stock will be available through the 
choice-based lettings system, Homechoice, unless specifically excluded for the 
following situations; (however, there may be other circumstances from time to time, in 
which stock is not available) 
 

Page 103



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 20 of 21 

 

• Required for decant purposes associated with major works of repair and 
refurbishment; 

• Asylum-seeker accommodation; 

• Rehousing required for specific management reasons; 

• Emergencies; 

• Temporary accommodation for the homeless; and 
Properties required for strategic development (e.g. conversions into special 
needs units). 

 
14. LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY 
 
14.1 At times there may be a need to introduce a local lettings policy to meet 
particular local needs. Such initiatives must consider legal and equality requirements 
and the wider council rehousing policy.  
 
14.2 Examples of local lettings schemes are: 
 

• Reserving certain property types, numbers of properties or parts of a housing 
area for a particular age group, family size or economically active applicants 

• Relaxing property size requirements to allow, for instance, a household with a 
two bedroom need to be considered for a three bedroom house 

• Introducing a community agreement for all tenants to sign 

• Positive local lettings schemes, aimed at encouraging certain groups of  people 
to move into housing areas 

      
14.3 Any restriction to property lettings will be advertised when each individual 
property becomes available.  
 
14.4 The council’s local letting schemes will be subject to formal approval.  
 
14.5 Local lettings schemes implemented by the council’s partners will be subject to 
approval within each relevant organisation and in consultation with the council.  
 
15. JOINT TENANTS 
 
15.1 Where a joint tenant serves a Notice to Quit for their part of the tenancy, RBH 
and partners will use its discretion in deciding whether to grant a sole tenancy to the 
remaining tenant. In exercising discretion, RBH and other registered providers will 
ensure that there are no adverse implications for the use of the housing stock and its 
ability to meet other housing needs by applying the lettings criteria.  
 
16. MONITORING AND REVIEWING THE POLICY 
 
16.1 The policy and implementation will be monitored to ensure: 

• it is meeting the stated aims 

• it is meeting its targets 

• it is collecting and submitting the required information for the government and 
other statutory bodies 

• it is being reviewed regularly 

• it is meeting its equality and diversity obligations  

Page 104



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 21 of 21 

 

 
16.2 The monitoring covers a wide range of subjects, including: 

• priority 

• offers  

• refusals 

• number of applicants 

• vulnerability of applicants 

• ethnicity of applicants  

• use of adapted properties 
 
16.3 Customers and stakeholders will be consulted on proposed changes to the 
policy. 
 
17. OTHER HOUSING OPTIONS 
 
17.1 There are many other housing options within the Borough. Please refer to the 
relevant literature available. 
 
18. COMPLAINTS 
 
18.1 The Council and its partners are committed to delivering the best possible 
service. If an applicant is unhappy with the service provided they can make a 
complaint via the usual methods.  
 
 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 7 

 

 
 

 
  

CABINET  

 
 
Subject:                         Implementing Anti 
Social Behaviour Policy 

 

Status:  For Publication 

Report to:  Cabinet 
  

 

Date: 13th October 2009 
  

Report of: Kylie Thornton/Community 

Safety 

Email:

 kylie.thornton@rochdale.
gov.uk 
 

Tel: 01706 924691 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Martin Burke Portfolio Holder for Internal and  

Environmental services 

Comments from  

Statutory Officers: Yes 

Section 151 Officer  

Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   No 
 

Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 The following report seeks to gain approval for an updated policy and an 
updated procedure. The updated Anti-Social Behaviour Policy for 2011-
2014 outlines the council’s policy in relation to the current delegated 

management of its council houses and tackling anti social behaviour within 
the private sector. The additional private sector procedure outlines how 

anti-social behaviour will be tackled specifically within the private rented 
sector.  

 
1.2 These are designed to complement current approaches, increase action 

against those perpetrating anti social behaviour and raise confidence in the 

community that we are tackling the problems associated with anti social 
behaviour. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 107



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 7 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Cabinet approves the implementation of: 

• A revised Anti-Social Behaviour Policy which sets out the councils policy 

in relation to the delegated management of its council houses and 
tackling ASB within all tenures of the private sector.  

• An amended procedure outlining how the council will tackle anti social 

behaviour within the private rented sector. 

2.2 A specific procedure and/or guidance are attached to this document for 

each policy and procedure referred to above.  

2.3 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership, of which the Local Authority is a 
lead partner, has six Strategic Objectives, one of which is Preventing and 

Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour. 

2.4 From April 2009, the Partnership took a decision to monitor the volume of 

all forms of anti-social behaviour, against the GMP target to reduce this 
volume by 3% from the 2009/10 baseline figure by March 2010. We have 
so far achieved a 13% reduction on this baseline; we would like to continue 

on this successful trend of reduction by implementing the two pieces of 
policy. 

2.5 A recent review by the ombudsman of our private sector policy resulted in a 
recommendation for an internal review of the procedure to ensure all tools 

are being fully utilised. 

 
 

MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ CONSULTATION 
CARRIED OUT 

 
3.1      Impact of current range of actions on performance 
 

3.1.1 As referred to in point 2.4 the Partnership has achieved some impressive 
reductions in both anti social behaviour and associated crimes such as 

criminal damage, with an overall reduction of 23% being achieved in 
criminal damage since the 2009 baseline. The table below demonstrates 
this reduction: 

 
 
 
 

 
   
 

3.1.2 From April 2008, the Partnership took a decision to monitor the volume of 
all forms of anti-social behaviour against the GMP target to reduce the 
volume by 3% from the 2007/08 baseline figure by March 2009. As the 

table shows, this was achieved and then built on in 2009/10.The method of 
counting anti social behaviour changed for 2010/11, with the focus just 

being on the seven most prevalent forms of anti social behaviour referred 
to in the British Crime Survey. As a result the baseline was revised. The 
downward trend in volume of incidents has continued, with a 16.5% 

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

7230 6560 6332 4881 

Page 108



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 7 

 

reduction being seen from the revised figure. This data is shown in the 
table below. 

 

2007/08 

Baseline (no 
of incidents) 

Apr – 

Jun 
2008 

July – 

Sept 
2008 

Oct – 

Dec 
2008 

Jan – 

Mar 
2009 

Year-

end 
total 

Reduction 

from 
baseline 

25860 6809 6742 5615 5918 25084 3.0% 

 Apr – 

Jun 
2009 

July – 

Sept 
2009 

Oct – 

Dec 
2009 

Jan – 

Mar 
2010 

Year-

end 
total* 

Reduction 

from 
baseline 

 6013 5782 4884 4460 21139 18.26% 

 Apr – 

Jun 
2010 

July – 

Sept 
2010 

Oct – 

Dec 
2010 

Jan – 

Mar 
2011 

Year-

end 
total 

Reduction 

from 
baseline 

 4687 3656 2955 3125 14423 44.23% 

 Apr – 

Jun 
2011 

July – 

Sept 
2011 

Oct – 

Dec 
2011 

Jan – 

Mar 
2012 

Year-

end 
total 

Reduction 

from 
baseline 

 3593      

 * A revised baseline of 17292 for 09/10 due to changes in the coding of ASB incidents. 
 

3.1.3 As well as seeing reductions in actual levels of anti-social behaviour 
Rochdale has also seen a reduction in the perception of anti-social 
behaviour. Rochdale was one of over 50 CDRPs in the country where over 

25% of people were found in the Place Survey to feel that there was a high 
level of anti-social behaviour in their area. Results from the Neighbourhood 

Survey Report show that perceptions of anti-social behaviour have fallen to 
7.2%, the lowest they have ever been and under this years target (10%). 
When compared to this time last year this shows a significant reduction of 

51%. 
 
 

3.1.4 The graph below shows performance relating to ‘Perceptions of Anti-Social 
Behaviour’, the graph also shows GMP Force target over the last 3 years. 

 
- GMP Force target in 2009/10 was 21% 

- GMP Force target in 2010/11 was 12% 
- GMP Force target this year (2011/12) is 6.7%  
 

Page 109



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 4 of 7 

 

asb1 - Percentage of people who percieve there to be 

high levels of ASB in their area

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

20
09
/1
0 
(Q
1)

20
09
/1
0 
(Q
2)

20
09
/1
0 
(Q
3)

20
09
/1
0 
(Q
4)

20
10
/1
1 
(Q
1)

20
10
/1
1 
(Q
2)

20
10
/1
1 
(Q
3)

20
10
/1
1 
(Q
4)

20
11
/1
2 
(Q
1)

Yr/Qtr

N
o

Rochdale

GMP Force Target

 
3.2 Summarising the tools and powers  

3.2.1 Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) has delegated the 

management of its’ council houses, including the management of anti-social 
behaviour, to its Arms Length Management Organisation, Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing. 

3.2.2 This policy sets out both the ways in which the Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing administers the council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Policy through 

working with its partners through its own procedures, attitudes and general 
approach to seek to deliver on this commitment. As well as the way the 
council administers its private sector protocol and minimum standards. 

3.2.3 Rochdale Council has established the Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership (RSCP) to deal with all forms of anti-social behaviour. Rochdale 

Boroughwide Housing as managing agent for the council’s housing is a 
member of this partnership an as such is committed to taking positive 

action in conjunction with partners, to deal with all forms of ASB. 

3.2.4 As part of this commitment to tackle nuisance and anti-social behaviour a 
dedicated multi-disciplinary team of Legal and Enforcement Officers, has 

been established to provide a coordinated and timely response to these 
issues.  

 

3.2.5 The updated policy aims to outline how the council will tackle anti-social 
behaviour across all tenures based on the previously agreed minimum 

standards: This means that we will endeavour to respond to high priority 
complaints with one working day, medium priority complaints within two 

working days and standard priority complaints within 5 working days. There 
are a number of measures at the council’s disposal to tackle anti-social 
behaviour ranging from warning letters to Anti-Social Behaviour Orders (for 

a comprehensive list of all measures refer to the document). These actions, 
which include fast track responses in serious cases, are incremental in 

Page 110



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 5 of 7 

 

nature, with the emphasis being on bringing about real changes and 
improvements in behaviour of those who commit anti-social behaviour. The 

updated policy will allow us to maintain a consistent approach to all tenures 
with regards to anti-social behaviours helping us to continue to reduce the 

actual levels and perceived levels of anti-social behaviours within the 
borough.  

 

3.2.6 The amended Private Rented Procedure outlines how the council will 
approach anti-social behaviour incidents within the private rented sector. It 

will outline the Anti-Social Behaviour team’s level of involvement with anti-
social behaviour within the private rented sector from initial actions to 
follow up actions. The procedure will ensure a clear distinction between the 

council’s anti-social behaviour team and the Private Rented Sector. 

3.2.7 It is proposed that these policies and procedures be reviewed on an annual 

basis with any changes being agreed by the head of service. 

 
3.3  Alternatives considered 

As referred to above it has been identified that we should be utilising all 
remedies available to us. We have relied upon informal and voluntary 

engagement from private landlords. Continued reliance on these 
measures rather than a documented formal process for the use of 

legislative tools will impact on our ability to tackle anti social behaviour 
and residents’ confidence in the robustness of the partnership‘s 
approach to these issues.  

 

3.4  Consultation proposed/undertaken 

 
All key partners of the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership and 
members of the Strategic Priority Group (Preventing and Tackling Anti-

Social Behaviour) have been consulted, the following key partners have 
agreed to the implementation of the legislation: 

• Greater Manchester Police 

• Community Safety Team 

• Portfolio holder (Internal & Environmental Services) 

• RBH Legal Services & Enforcement Team (commissioned to carry out        
legal and Enforcement activity regarding ASB on behalf of the 

partnership) 

• Members of Rochdale Housing Initiative 

• Rochdale Town Centre Management Company 

• Local Authority Strategic Housing Team 

• Public protection Team 

• Final sign off was gained via delegated decision making of the RSCP     
statutory members 

 

 
 

Page 111



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 6 of 7 

 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1    The cost of any necessary applications will be financed from existing 
budgets; the effect upon these budgets will be minimum and monitored. 

Any significant impact will be further addressed by the Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership. 

 
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 The policies will be implemented using the relevant Crime and 

Disorder, Anti Social Behaviour Legislation. Any legal formalities 
arising from the implementation of the policies will be undertaken as 
per the current arrangements of the partnership.  

5.2 Legal Services have had sight of the documents and have offered no 
significant comments. 

 
 

6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 There are no personnel implications relating to this report, consultation has 

taken place with relevant personnel representatives. 

 

 
7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising 
from this report. 

 
 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 

 

 8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 

 There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising form this 
report. 

 

 
 8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 
 
 There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising form 

this report. The Community Safety Service has undertaken a full 
Equality Community Impact Assessment in relation to the Anti Social 

Behaviour Services we offer and currently we sit at Level Four. No 
further equality issues should arise from the proposals within this 
report. 

 
 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Page 112



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 7 of 7 

 

 
 

 

 
Or there are no background papers (delete where applicable) 

 
 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Anti Social Behaviour Policy 
  

1. Policy Statement 
 

The following document sets out the councils Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) policy in 
relation to the delegated management of its council houses and tackling ASB within 
the private sector (including private rented sector). 
  
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) has delegated the management of 
its’ council houses, including the management of ASB, to its Arms Length 
Management Organisation, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing.  
 
Rochdale MBC recognises that all residents have a right to the peaceful enjoyment of 
their home. Equally every resident has the responsibility not to interfere with their 
neighbour’s right to the peaceful enjoyment of their home. 
  
This policy sets out both the ways in which the Rochdale Boroughwide Housing 
administers the Council’s ASB Policy through working with its partners and through 
its own procedures, attitudes and general approach to seek to deliver on this 
commitment. As well as the way the council administers its private sector protocol 
and minimum standards. 
  

2.      Introduction 
  
Rochdale Council has established the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
(RSCP) to deal with all forms of ASB. RBH as managing agent for the Council’s 
housing is a member of this partnership and as such is committed to taking positive 
action in conjunction with partners, to deal with all forms of ASB. 
 
The policy recognises the relationship between ASB, the demand for housing and the 
sustainability of neighbourhoods.  The policy demonstrates a commitment to 
proactive actions to combat ASB in the interests of individual residents and 
communities and consider that such actions have a direct impact on the sustainability 
of communities and neighbourhoods.  
  
As part of this commitment to tackle nuisance and ASB a dedicated multi- disciplinary 
team of Legal and Enforcement Officers, has been established to provide a co-
ordinated and timely response to these issues. 
 
In tackling Anti Social Behaviour we will make use of the powers, orders and 
mechanisms contained in legislation and regulations to deal with problems 
appropriately. We will make use of the powers made available to us through: 
  

• Local Government Act 1972: injunctions to promote the wellbeing of residents 
of the Borough 

• Housing Act 1985 (as amended): possession proceedings 

• Housing Act 1996 (as amended): anti-social behaviour injunctions 

• Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended): Anti-social behaviour orders 

• Police Reform Act 2002 (as amended): Anti-social behaviour orders on 
conviction 

• Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003: demoted tenancies   

• Local Criminal Justice Bill 

Page 115



 

 2

• Housing Act 2004 
 
We recognise that the causes and effects of ASB are wide ranging and varied and 
can affect all members of the community. We will therefore always seek to work in 
partnership with other agencies to ensure that all the measures available are used 
effectively to tackle ASB problems, regardless of who owns the property. Our 
partners include: 

• Police 

• Community Safety 

• Youth Offending Team 

• Drug Action Team 

• Environmental Health 

• Strategic Housing 

• Fire Service 

• Victim Support 

• Education Services 

• Social Services 

• Children and Young Adults Mental Health Service (CAMHS) 

• Rochdale Primary Health Care Trust 

• Rochdale Federation of Tenants and Residents Associations 

• All other Social Landlords and Private Landlords 

• Public Protection Unit 

• Rochdale Housing Initiative 
  

The policy will also ensure that our policy and procedures comply with and 
compliment the Council’s strategic objectives and in particular, will have regard to 
and play a part in the delivery of the RSCP Anti-Social behaviour strategy.  
  
The policy will have regard to the Council’s Housing Strategy and in particular the 
impact that this policy has on achieving the strategic housing aim of creating 
sustainable neighbourhoods.   
  
The policy will also have regard to RMBC’s wider obligations, including the 
prevention of Homelessness, the protection of children and young people and the 
care of vulnerable people. 
  
The policy recognises and actively promotes diversity within the community and will 
therefore; ensure that when taking any action it will consider the needs of 
disadvantaged groups.   
  
The policy will always seek to ensure that everyone has equal access to the services 
available, regardless of who owns their home. 
  
The policy recognises the rights of individuals to a fair hearing and that there should 
be a presumption of innocence until the facts about any complaint of ASB have been 
established. 
  
The Policy and the accompanying procedures will be reviewed at least bi-annually, in 
consultation with all relevant stakeholders.   

  
 
 
 
 

Page 116



 

 3

3.      Definitions 
  
It is helpful to establish what constitutes conduct which can amount to ASB.  
  
‘Behaviour that causes or is likely to cause harassment, alarm or distress to one or 
more persons not of the same household as (the perpetrator).’ 
  
Behaviours that are classed as ASB by the British Crime Survey include: 
  

• Vandalism, graffiti and other deliberate damage to property  
• Noisy neighbours or loud parties  
• People being drunk or rowdy in public places  
• People using or dealing drugs  
• Teenagers hanging around on the streets  
• Rubbish or litter lying around  
• Abandoned or burnt out cars  
∗ 

 Other ASB’s include: 
  

• Aggressive Begging  
• Prostitution  
• Setting of fireworks late at night  
• Uncontrolled pets and animals  
• Trespassing  

  
As is apparent from the above list, not all ASB behaviour is criminal. That is not to 
play down the effect ASB can have on people’s lives but instead to create an 
awareness of this issue when trying to find solutions to the problem. 
  

4.      Putting the Policy in Context 
  
This Policy exists in the context of both National legislation and Local Strategies and 
Policies. The Policy has been prepared in order to take account of and to provide 
consistency with obligations imposed by legislation and other relevant Policies in this 
area. The following have been identified and taken into account in the preparation of 
this Policy in order to inform the content of the Policy and procedure and to ensure 
compatibility. These consist of: 
  
Children and Young Persons Act 2008   
By virtue of section 17 of the Act every local authority has a general duty to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children in need in their area. 
By section 27 a local authority may ask a housing authority to assist it in the exercise 
of these functions and the housing authority shall assist if it can do so consistently 
with its own duties. The local authority Community Safety Team will ensure all 
corporate safeguarding procedures are followed. 
  
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
This Act contains many relevant provisions but the overriding duty imposed upon 
Local Authorities by section 17 to have regard in all its actions to the prevention of 
crime and disorder is of fundamental importance to the Safer Communities 
Partnership and Community Safety Service.  
  
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 

                                                 
∗
 Currently under review 

Page 117



 

 4

This act further increases the power available to local authorities to be able to tackle 
ASB.  
  
Homelessness Act 2002 
The Homelessness Act places a duty on the local housing authority to work together 
with its statutory partners to prevent homelessness. This obligation will inform the 
policy both in relation to the actions which may be attempted to remedy ASB before a 
possession order will be sought and in relation to the action which will be taken to 
combat behaviour which might otherwise drive residents from their homes. 
  
Disability Discrimination Act 2005 
By virtue of this Act it is unlawful to discriminate against a disabled person by evicting 
him or subjecting him to any other detriment. 
  
Human Rights Act 1998 
This Act defines basic human rights and protects these rights from abuse. 
Particularly relevant is the fundamental right to respect for private and family life and 
the home which must not be interfered with unless the interference is in accordance 
with the law and necessary for the protection of public safety or prevention of crime 
and disorder. 
  
Race Relations Act 1976 
Section 71 imposes a duty on local authorities to have regard to the need to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity and good relations 
between people of different racial groups in the way in which it carries out its 
functions. 
  
“Pride of Place” Community Strategy for Rochdale Borough 2007 – 2010 
Sets out the local strategic partnerships vision and aims for the borough in 2021 
shows what needs to be done, when it will be done by and who is responsible for 
making it happen. It contains specific aims for the reduction of crime, drug misuse 
and neighbourhood problems. 
  
“Delivering Change” Rochdale Borough Council’s Housing Strategy  2006-2010 
This sets out the Council’s Strategic Aims in relation to Housing within the Borough. 
In addition to improving the quality and choice of accommodation on offer the 
Strategy seeks to improve the quality of life for residents in the borough by creating 
sustainable neighbourhoods. This involves taking appropriate action against anti-
social behaviour. It also aims to meet the needs of vulnerable people, which can 
involve the prevention of anti-social behaviour by supporting individuals with chaotic 
lifestyles.   
  
RMBC Private Sector Housing Renewal Review and Strategy Report 2007 
This report presents Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council’s plans for improving 
the quality of the district’s private sector housing stock.  It identifies priorities for 
action and sets out how the Private Sector Housing Team and other partners intend 
to deliver decent quality housing for all of Rochdale's residents living in private sector 
housing.   
 
Safer Communities Plan 2008-2011 
Setting out strategies and structures for tackling crime and disorder throughout the 
Borough. 
  
 
 

Page 118



 

 5

Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy 2010-2014 
Designed to provide a balanced and co-ordinated approach to the prevention, 
identification and rectification of anti-social behaviour throughout the Borough of 
Rochdale.  
  
The Drug and Alcohol Team  
Have a number of strategic plans which directly or indirectly impact upon ASB, these 
include:    

Alcohol Strategy (National and local) 
                                   Drug Strategy (National) 
                                   Young persons substance misuse plan (local) 
                                   Drug & Alcohol Priority Action Plan  
  
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Tenant Participation Strategy 2011 
Sets out how RBH works with its tenants individually or collectively. It provides 
explicitly that RBH will consult with tenants on ASB Policies and sets standards for 
the nature and quality of consultation. 
  
Equality and Diversity Policy “No Matter Who”  
Designed to ensure that no-one receives less favourable treatment because of race, 
ethnic origin, nationality, religion, cultural background, sex, sexuality, disability, 
domestic circumstances, illness, age, employment status, membership of trade 
unions or political beliefs. This Policy represents the commitment of Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing to deliver this Equality Policy in the context of ASB 
enforcement. We will commit to: 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment  

• Promote good relations between persons of different racial and ethnic groups  

• Maximise the reporting of racial incidents 

• Support complainants and their families 

• Take action against perpetrators 
             
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council Housing Allocations Policy 
The allocations policy will take account of applicant’s record of committing Anti-social 
Behaviour and recorded instances of responsibility for ASB may lead to the Company 
refusing to allocate housing or making an allocation on conditions.  
  
Domestic Violence: A Strategy for the Borough 2011-2014 
A borough-wide strategy that intends to further promote and develop over the next 
three years a co-ordinated and effective approach  to preventing and tackling 
domestic violence across the borough. 
  
RMBC: Private Sector ASB Policy 
The Council’s policy for dealing with ASB in the private sector. It outlines how the 
council will work with private landlords to target ASB in privately rented households. 
  

5.      Our Approach 
  
For tenants of RBH, housing associations, homeowners or private tenants the council 
will work in conjunction with these organisations to deal with all forms of ASB. We will 
investigate complaints and then deal with issues as outlined in the previously agreed 
minimum standards: 
  
 
 

Page 119



 

 6

When a Complaint is Received  
  
Your Local Housing Office or the council’s ASB team will: 
 

• Confirm the details of what has happened with you and tell you the name of 
the officer who will work on your case and keep you informed of progress. 

• Carry out the initial assessment of your complaint and assign it to a priority 
response level. 

• Contact you to agree a plan of action to deal with the anti-social behaviour 
within 1, 2 or 5 working days, depending on the priority level assigned. 

• Give you advice and support in resolving the issue yourself if you feel able to. 

• Carry out an investigation into your complaint on your behalf. 

• With your consent, share your information with other agencies who may be 
able to help with resolving the issues. 

• Help you to gather evidence to prove anti-social behaviour has occurred and 
give you diary sheets to record details of further incidents. 

• In some cases, arrange and fit extra security measures to your home and 
offer personal protection measures (like panic alarms) when it is necessary. 

• Arrange the removal of any abusive, obscene or threatening graffiti.  

• Provide, or organise emotional and practical support for you throughout the 
case. 

• Take action to tackle the behaviour if there is evidence. 

• Keep you informed of progress and monitor your satisfaction with the way we 
have dealt with your case. 

  
During Investigation/Building a Case 
  
Where we can, and with enough evidence, we’ll always seek to take enforcement 
action against those people making life miserable for victims and communities. Our 
legal officers will: 
 

• Carry out more detailed investigations into the most serious cases. 

• Identify the full range of legal and other action that might be taken against the 
individuals or group causing the problem. 

• Prepare and present court cases. 

• Keep you informed about progress with the case and provide you with the 
updates (within timescales agreed by you). 

• Contact you via telephone e-mail, text, letter, or in person by agreement with 
you. 

• Support witnesses and complainants reporting ASB. 

• Offer to transport and escort you to and from any court hearings. 

• Offer you a tour of the court that you are attending prior to any hearing. 

• Offer you the use of a private room (subject to availability) while at court. 

• Monitor those people who have had warning letters, have signed contracts 
about acceptable behaviour, or who have been given a court order because of 
their ASB. 

• Monitor your satisfaction with the way we’ve dealt with your case. 
  
Use of Available Measures 
  
A detailed set of procedures has been developed in conjunction with this policy.  The 
procedures outline the type of actions that can be taken and the likely timescales for 
such actions. 

Page 120



 

 7

  
The actions, which include fast track responses in serious cases, are incremental in 
nature, with the emphasis being on bringing about real changes and improvements in 
behaviour of those who commit ASB. 
  
However, if there is no change and/or improvement in the behaviour we will have no 
hesitation in taking any appropriate further action. 
  
In conjunction with our partners, we will use a wide range of measures that are 
available to us. These include: 

• Approaching the perpetrator and discussing the problem behaviour 

• Warning letters 

• Formal Warnings/Cautions 

• Acceptable Behaviour Contracts 

• Parental Control Agreements 

• Parenting Orders 

• Environmental Health Action for Statutory Nuisance (e.g Noise Abatement 
Notices) 

• Undertakings 

• Injunctions 

• Anti-Social Behaviour Orders (ASBO) 

• Possession Proceedings 

• Dispersal Orders via the Police 

• Closure of Premises Orders via the Police and/or Environmental Health 

• Individual Support Order (ISO) 

• Intervention Order (DIO) 

• Crack House Closure Order 

• Brothel Closure Order 

• Designated Public Place Order 

• Special Interim Management Orders 

• Gating Order 

• Dog Control Order 

• Litter Clearing Notice 

• Graffiti/Defacement Removal Notice  

• Direction to leave 
  
This is not an exhaustive list and we will always work with our partners to look at the 
whole range of options available to us. 
  
 6. Support of Witnesses and Complainants 
  
We recognise the important role our complaints and witnesses play in assisting us to 
tackle ASB problems. The success of any action to deal with a problem is often 
dependent on the participation of the witnesses involved. We recognise that a 
demonstrable record of success in dealing with ASB cases is fundamental to building 
confidence and trust in witnesses 
  
Having ensured that witnesses have the confidence to come forward with complaints 
we will ensure that that confidence is maintained by dealing with their complaint 
promptly, keeping them informed about action taken and providing support where this 
is appropriate or ensuring that support is provided by other agencies.  
  

Page 121



 

 8

We have developed a set of minimum standards that we will fulfil when responding to 
complaints of ASB. Complaints will be categorised into three levels: high priority, 
medium priority, and standard priority. For a standard priority complaint, which will 
typically concern ASB issues such as environmental crimes and nuisance we will 
contact you within five working days. For a medium priority, which will typically 
concern ASB causing disruption, damage to property or possessions we will contact 
you within two working days. For a high priority complaint, which will typically be 
reports of serious ASB involving violent acts, threats of violence or hate crime we will 
contact you within one working day. 
  
7. Prevention of ASB, Rehabilitation of Perpetrators and Support for the 
vulnerable 
  
When tackling ASB the overall aim of the council and its partners is to challenge the 
unacceptable behaviour and bring about real changes, without recourse to legal 
action wherever possible. If perpetrators can be deterred or prevented from ASB this 
is preferable to having to deal with the consequences of their behaviour. 
  
Opportunities to prevent ASB from arising will be taken whenever and wherever they 
arise. We will have regard to the need to prevent and deter ASB in all aspects of its 
work. This may be by the provision of alternative or diversionary activities or by the 
design and development of the environment so as to improve security and 
discourage ASB. Where perpetrators of ASB show a willingness to address the 
underlying causes of their conduct we will offer them assistance and support in this. 
  
These considerations are particularly important when dealing with perpetrators who 
are vulnerable by reason of one or more of the following factors: 

·         Drug abuse 
·         Alcohol abuse 
·         Mental health issues 
·         Disability 

  
Young people may also be considered to be vulnerable by reason of their youth or 
home and family circumstances. Experience shows that contrary to popular belief 
such tenants and residents are more likely to be the subject of ASB than to be the 
perpetrators. 
  
We will engage with a wide range of processes and agencies to ensure that support, 
prevention and rehabilitation is offered appropriately to each case 
  
However, when dealing with all cases of ASB, the needs of the community will 
always be our primary concern. Therefore, if interventions have been tried and failed 
or are considered inappropriate we will seek to resolve the problem through taking 
enforcement action as outlined above. 
  
8.  Prevention and Publicity. 
  

a)      The Council and its partners will work with other agencies to map Hate      
Crimes to detect trends and identify 'hot spots'. 
 
b)      We will use 'target hardening' measuring and provide additional    
security measures where appropriate (with the help of the Strategic Housing 
and housing providers) to protect vulnerable tenants in their homes. 
  

Page 122



 

 9

c)      We will distribute ASBO leaflets to communities informing of the 
purposes and practicalities of the ASBO in reducing ASB in their area. 

  
9.  Enforcement Actions. 
  

a)      The Safer Communities Partnership (SCP) will use 'Without Notice 
Injunctions' to protect victims and witnesses in every situation, where threats 
of violence are made against them by identifiable perpetrators. 
  
b)      The SCP will take initial action (completing a reporting from, ordering 
the necessary repairs arising from Hate Crime etc) within 24 hours of 
receiving the complaint. 
  
c)      The SCP will consider using the full range of civil and legal remedies 
against    Perpetrators, including injunctions, anti-social behaviour orders, 
proceedings, when dealing with Hate Crime.  
  

d)      Where appropriate RBH and other housing providers will initiate legal 
action for breach of tenancy conditions. 
  
e)      For private tenants the council will work with landlords and their legal 
and enforcement team to address ASB. 

  
10. Multi Agency Working 
  
Police Liaison Meetings  
Officers from the SCP meet once each month with the Township Inspectors for each 
of the four township Policing areas in Rochdale. At the Police Liaison Meetings 
specific problems are discussed, trends are identified and a planned response is 
agreed according to which agency has the most appropriate means of response.  
  
Case Intervention Group 
Agencies will refer perpetrators of anti-social behaviour to the Case Intervention 
Group which is a meeting organised by the Community Safety Department to co-
ordinate and organise the intervention in cases of ASB. 
  
Multi-Agency Racial Harassment Forum 
The SCP stakeholder will continue to contribute to the work of and sit on this panel 
which coordinates responses to incidents of racial harassment and takes a strategic 
overview of race issues. 
  
ASBO Threshold Panel 
The SCP will continue to administer the Threshold Panel, a body set up to conduct 
the statutory consultation required prior to making any application for an ASBO and 
which is a primary opportunity for investigation with other interested agencies as to 
whether they have any potential for intervention in ASB cases. 
  
Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference (ASBRAC) 
Community Safety will coordinate and administer the ASBRAC, which is an 
intervention that combines risk assessment and a multi-agency approach to victims 
of ASB. 
  
Partnership Business Group (PBG) 
This is a multi-agency action group. It meets every six weeks and is designed to 
deliver timely and effective responses to tackle new and emerging crime and disorder 

Page 123



 

 10

issues outside of the scope of the strategic priority group’s annual action plans. The 
PBG uses a mix of professional crime mapping, analysis and intelligence 
management to inform implementation of rapid responses to problems in ‘hot-spot’ 
areas.  
   
Tactical Tasking Groups (TTG’s)  
Each Township has a Tactical Tasking Group which is integral to the Partnership’s 
structure. Meeting every six weeks and on an as required basis to tackle priorities; 
they operate as a multi agency sub group of the Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership (RSCP) under the strategic and operational direction of the Partnership 
Business Group (PBG 
  
  
11. Data Protection, Information Exchange and Confidentiality 
  
We will, where appropriate, share information with our partners (such as the Police) 
for the purposes of prevention and detection of Crime and Disorder (C&D Act 1998). 
  
We have entered into an Information Sharing Protocol with Greater Manchester 
Police and other bodies which provides for the exchange of information within the 
parameters of the Act. A further wider protocol is in the process of being concluded. 
All information will only be shared in line with the Information Sharing Protocol. 
  
Confidentiality is a fundamental element in developing a relationship of trust with 
Complainants. We guarantee that, within the law, any information given to us will not 
be disclosed to any other party or agency without their consent. 
  
We understand that this is particularly important so far as disclosure of complaints to 
the perpetrator is concerned. We understand the fear of retaliation which 
complainants experience and we undertake to respect the complainants wishes 
about what is disclosed and to whom.  
  
We guarantee to complainants that they can specify what level of disclosure we may 
make of the information they give to us: 
 

• If they give us information but do not want us to disclose it we will guarantee 
that we will not do so. 

• If they give us information and agree that we may disclose it, but not disclose 
their identity as the informant then we will guarantee that we will not disclose 
their identity. 

 
In this way complainants can speak to us with the confidence that their complaints 
will go no further unless they have explicitly agreed. 
 
 12.Training our staff 
  
To ensure that we are able to fulfil all our commitments outlined in this policy, we will 
provide a comprehensive training programme to our staff. 
  
The training programme will ensure all staff: 
 

• Are aware of the issues surrounding ASB, Harassment and Hate Incidents 

• Understand the legislation surrounding ASB, Harassment and Hate Incidents 
and the powers available to us 

Page 124



 

 11

• Understand the importance of dealing with such problems promptly 

• Are able to record details of reported incidents fully and accurately 

• Understand the need to pass the details to the appropriate member of staff 
promptly 

• Are able to provide the complainant with practical information, advice and 
support 

• Are fully aware of the need to treat the complaint sensitively and 
confidentially.   

• Understand and are sensitive to issues of diversity. 
 

• It will also ensure that staff who are responsible for investigating reports of 
ASB: 

• Are able to effectively prioritise complaints and deal with them appropriately 

• Understand the need to act promptly and fully investigate a complaint 

• Are aware of all the options available to them and are able to use these to 
deliver an effective, proportionate and timely response to problems.  

• Are aware of the options available to support victims and witnesses and are 
able to utilise these effectively. 

 
We will also strive to raise awareness of the issues surrounding ASB across 
Rochdale by providing training and participating in briefing events with Tenants and 
Residents Groups, Councillors, Greater Manchester Police and other 
agencies/departments as may be required.  
  
  
13. Protecting our Staff 
  
Our staff is at the forefront of our service. It is acknowledged that they are frequently 
asked to deal with people who are under pressure and in stressful circumstances. 
They will always deal with such situations in a patient tactful and diplomatic manner. 
Nevertheless it is unfortunately the case that they occasionally face behaviour which 
exceeds anything which they might reasonably be expected to endure. In these 
circumstances we will not hesitate to take action to protect our staff. We consider that 
verbal and physical threats, foul and abusive language or behaviour, damage to 
property and above all physical violence are unacceptable and will be met by an 
appropriate level of response. At a lower level such behaviour will be met by a ban 
from the relevant office. At more serious levels such conduct on the part of tenants 
will constitute a breach of the tenancy agreement and will be met by Injunction 
proceedings to enforce the tenancy terms where this is necessary to protect a 
member of staff. In the case of such conduct by non-tenants Injunctions under 
Section 153A Housing Act 1996 will be deployed in order to control such conduct. 
  
 
A Final Word 
  
This policy has been approved in consultation with the key stakeholders within the 
safer communities partnership and elected members. The policy will be reviewed on 
a three yearly basis in line with the local authorities Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy 
and minimum standards. If you have any further questions or require further 
information pleas contact Kylie Thornton on 01706 924691 or 
kylie.thornton@rochdale.gov.uk.  
 
 
 

Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

Protocol for Anti-Social Behaviour Cases in the Private Rented Sector 
 
 

Introduction 
Rochdale Council has established the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership (RSCP) to 
deal with all forms of ASB The following protocol is in addition to the council Anti-Social 
Behaviour (ASB) policy. The protocol provides detail of how the safer communities’ 
partnership will respond to reported incidents of ASB within the private rented sector (PRS). 
 
The protocol 
The following outlines the stages involved in the protocol for dealing with ASB cases in the 
private rented sector. There are two stages of action for each the ASB team and the private 
rented sector. The protocol will ensure a clear distinction between the councils ASB team and 
the Private Rented Sector when dealing with ASB cases. 
 
Before any of the following stages are acted upon the responding officer must be sure to 
communicate with all partners who may hold the relevant information for the premises and the 
occupier. They will obtain as much intelligence/information relating to the allegations before 
continuing on to the first stage.  
 
Anti-Social Behaviour Team 
 

Stage one: 
The ASB team (assisted by Community Safety Officers) will take initial action involving 
tenant, landlord or letting agent- e.g. 

-warning letter to tenant (if complainants are of a serious nature i.e. involving 
violence/threats of violence/criminal issues then the landlord will be contacted 
at this stage) 
-Contact management agencies where tenant is identified as being housed in 
asylum seeker property. 
-Contact support agency (if applicable), where tenant is housed in a supported 
lodging or a bond board property. Check with PRS if the premises are 
licensable by the local authority (House of Multiple Occupancy- HMO) 
-Carry out a joint visit with the private rented sector at this stage if incidents are 
of a serious nature or there are issues with the accommodation (for example 
with regards to safety). 

 
Stage Two: 
The ASB team will then take the following follow up action: 

-Inform tenant and landlord of the further reports received and request  
-Warning interview with both parties present 
-Carry out warning interview with tenant/ landlord/ PRS 
-Carry out joint warning with support providers were tenants are in supported 
lodgings. 
-Referral of victim/ witness to ASB Victims Champion if appropriate 

  
Private Rented Sector 
 

Stage One: 
Role of Private Rented Sector initial action; 

- Provide details of tenants and any property history to the ASB team within 
four working days (unless as above complainants are of a serious nature) 
-Where the property is identified as housing asylum seekers provide details of 
the accommodation provider (no tenancy agreement exist) 

Page 127



 

 2

-Contact Licence Holder if House of Multiple Occupancy (HMO) to inform them 
of the issues. 
-Inform Landlord of possible option when dealing with tenants causing ASB- 
(e.g. enforcing tenancy conditions) 
-Offer Landlord Accreditation Scheme (LAS) incentives. 
-Provide details of landlord, landlord history, tenant and letting agent to ASB 
team within four working days 

 
Stage Two:  
Follow action by PRS Team; 

-Carry out warning interview with tenant / landlord / ASB Team 
-Consider alternative action if landlord fails to engage / make contact 
-Provide ASB Team with alternatives to engaging with supporting providers 
when other actions have failed to result in a resolution.  

 
Should complaints continue after these steps have been taken a further warning letter will be 
sent (jointly) by the ASB Team and PRS Team informing both tenant and landlord that 
complaints have continued, a request for contact will be made to discuss further action. 

 
The case will then be referred to the Legal Service and Enforcement Team if all available 
actions have been exhausted as outlined above, all available evidence must be provided with 
details of expected action. 
 
Should a Landlord / letting agent fail to engage with the process at the initial stages we 
will continue to make attempts to engage throughout the rest of the process. The 
partnership will then seek advice regarding the appropriateness of Closure Orders 
where the evidence supports this course of action. 
 
Our policy will follow both the overarching ASB policy and the local authority’s minimum 
standards when responding to report of ASB. The minimum standards are as follows: 
 

Priority Level Nature of complaint Response Deadline 

High priority complaints 
Level 1 
 
Contact to be made with the 
tenant, landlord and letting 
agent immediately (Stage 2) 

Will typically be reports of 
serious anti-social behaviour 
involving violent acts, threats 
of violence or hate crime 

Contact will be established 
within: 
 
One working day 
 

Medium priority complaints 
Level 2 
 
Contact with tenant only 
(Stage 1) 

Will typically concern anti-
social behaviour causing 
disruption, damage to 
property or possessions. 

Contact will be established 
within: 
 
Two working days 
 

Standard priority complaints 
Level 3 
 
Contact with tenant only 
(stage 1) 

Will typically concern anti-
social behaviour issues such 
as environmental crimes and 
nuisance. 

Contact will be established 
within: 
 
Five working days 
 

 
While the stages described above are reflected as best practice the response must be 
proportionate to the reports received and the information gained form other agencies. This 
could result in stages being acted upon out of sequence. 
 
 

Page 128



 

 3

 
 
GMP Requests for action 
 
Where information is provided by Greater Manchester Police in regards to nuisance at a 
privately rented property the following has been agreed; 
 

• If the complaints relate to criminality but also include issues of anti social behaviour the 
referring officer will provide specific details of the incidents of anti social behaviour. 
The officer will also provide details of complainants who are able to verify the affects of 
the behaviour on the household. Alternatively the ASB Team details can be provided 
to complainants, the protocol would implemented as above once all details have been 
received. 

• If the complaints relate solely to issue of criminality (alleged drug dealing / housing 
stolen goods) and specific details or incidents of ASB cannot be provided the Private 
Rented Sector Officer will provide details of the Landlord / Letting agent responsible for 
the property to GMP (this is covered by the Safer Communities Partnership’s 
Information Exchange Protocol). The GMP officer investigating the case will then 
contact the landlord / letting agent directly. 

 
NB (please note it is also the role of the PRS team to try and halt unnecessary evictions within 
the private rented sector. Therefore at the 1st or 2nd stage if the ASB Team is contacted by a 
landlord subsequent to sending the letter and the landlord indicates they intend to evict the 
tenant at this stage it is recommended that the investigating officer instigates an interview with 
the landlord and PRS). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



 

 4

 
ASB Team Protocol (flow chart summary) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Anti Social 
Behaviour Team- 
Community Safety 

Receive reports of 
ASB involving a 
PRS tenant 

Gain details of Landlord 
tenant, letting agent via 
Private Rented Sector 
Housing. (Stage 2) 

Details of supporting agency 
provided if the tenant is 
identified as asylum seeker, 
bond board tenant or supported 
lodgings (e.g Newbarn) 

Warning letter written to 
tenant informed of 
reports- contact 
requested at this stage 
(Stage 1) 

Further warning letter and 
letter to Landlord / letting 
agent, should complaints 
persist. (Stage 2) 

Contact support 
provider, managing 
agency as appropriate.  

Refer landlord to 
PRS for advice re 
taking 
enforcement 
action if 
necessary.*  

* This may be ongoing in conjunction with any action perused by the Local 
Authority. 

Page 130



 

 5

 

PRS Team Protocol 

 

 

Support Landlord in 
finding more suitable 
tenant.  

 

Facilitate the landlord in handing 
over the management of the 
property to an Accredited 
Landlord 

Private Sector Team to carry out a joint  
visit with ASB Officer ascertain property  
conditions and standards of 
management.  

Encourage landlord using incentives 
available through the Accreditation 
Scheme to improve property 
conditions and better management of 
the property/tenants 

Proceed with Enforcement Action: 
Management Orders 
Property Conditions 

Private Sector Team to support 
Landlord if the ASB case is 
progressed against the tenant   

 

Private Sector 
Development 

Team 

Use Housing Act 
Powers of entry to 
facilitate visit 
where appropriate 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 7 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
Subject:  Gating Orders 

 
 

Status:  For Publication 

Report to:  Formal Cabinet 
   

 

Date: 31st October 2011 
  

Report of: Diane Alletson, Principal 

Burglary Reduction Officer, Community 
Safety, Housing & Regeneration 

Email: 

diane.alletson@rochdale.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 01706 92 4683 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Martin Burke   
                               Portfolio Holder for Internal and Environmental Services 

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer X 
Monitoring Officer X 

Key Decision:   Yes / No 
 

Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 To adopt the use of Gating Orders by this authority, approve the 

attached Gating Order Protocol and authorise 20K of the Capital 
Alleygating budget to be allocated to the implementation of Gating 
Orders.  

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet consider adopting the use of Gating 
Orders within the borough by means of Section 129A of the 
Highways Act 1980.   

2.2 It is further recommended that Cabinet approve the attached Gating 
Order Protocol. 

2.3 It is further recommended that Cabinet authorise 20K of the Capital 
Alleygating budget to be allocated to the implementation of Gating 
Orders. 

 
 

MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ CONSULTATION 
CARRIED OUT 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 133



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 7 

 

 
3.1 The Council has a well established “Alleygating Project” run by the 

Burglary Reduction Team within the Community Safety Unit.  This 
initiative gates off alleyways to the rear of properties, removing 

public access by implementing a permanent closure of the highway 
(where necessary). 

3.2 Despite this project there is an increasing demand to close certain 

highways which do not fall into the Alleygating criteria ie paths, 
passageways, designated footpaths, cut throughs, snickets, rear and 

side streets or walkways. 
3.3 This report details the legislation available to the Council relating to 

the closure of these highways and also recommends the usage of 

such legislation in order to adopt a Gating Order Protocol.   
3.4 Gating Order Legislation  

Section 2 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 
introduced a new power that allowed councils to make, vary or 
revoke Gating Orders in respect of highways within their area. This 

was achieved by inserting new sections 129A to 129G into the 
Highways Act 1980 and Regulations, enabling councils to restrict 

public access to certain highways by gating them (at certain times of 
the day if applicable), without removing their underlying highway 

status. Councils are now able to make “Gating Orders” on grounds of 
anti-social behaviour as well as just crime. 

3.5 The effect of the legislation is to give Councils the power to gate 

certain types of route where the Council is satisfied that levels of 
crime and disorder justify such action. An Order may close the 

highway at all times or for certain times or periods as may be 
appropriate to the circumstances, but can exclude designated 
persons, bodies or organisations from the restrictions (e.g. residents 

requiring access to maintain property boundaries, utility companies, 
emergency services etc)   

3.6 The Clean Greener Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 
provisions enable a council to gate a highway if they are satisfied 
that:-  

(a)  premises adjoining or adjacent to the highway are affected by 
crime or anti-social behaviour  

(b) the existence of the highway is facilitating the persistent 
commission of criminal offences or anti-social behaviour  

(c) it is in all circumstances expedient to make the order for the 

purposes of reducing crime or anti-social behaviour 
3.7 The restricting of access to “residents only” by means of a Gating 

Order has proved to be a successful strategy in both reducing crime, 
anti social behavior and the fear of crime for many other local 
authorities.  

3.8 The powers do not permanently extinguish public rights of way, 
making it possible to subsequently alter or revoke the restrictions 

and re-instate the use of the public right of way in the future.   
 
Alternatives considered 

 
3.9 The use of Gating Orders to restrict access to highways are only to 

be considered by the Council after appropriate consideration has 

Page 134



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 7 

 

been given to other methods of ASB, crime and disorder reduction 
and prevention.  It must be clearly evidenced that other methods 

have been considered or carried out prior to implementing a Gating 
Order.  

3.10 In light of this the alternatives to Gating Orders are already in place.  
Gating orders would be option for the Council as a last resort. 

3.11 At present the Council and partner agencies use various means to 

tackle the crime and disorder issues eg, police patrols of the area, 
dispersal orders, installation of CCTV cameras, enforcement action 

via Safer Communities Partnership, youth engagement via Youth 
Services, deterrent options such as anti-vandal paint, environmental 
improvements such as increased lighting / making the area more 

visible etc….. 
3.12 These alternatives are already actively in place however the use of 

Gating Orders is a tool for the Council should the above be 
inappropriate or unsuccessful.      

 

Consultation proposed/undertaken 
3.13 Consultation has taken place with Community Safety Unit, Greater 

Manchester Police, Highways & Engineering, Legal Services, Planning 
& Regulation, Environmental Management, other local authorities. 

3.14 All internal departments and agencies are supportive of the adoption 
of Gating Orders and required internal departments and agencies 
have approved the proposed Gating Order Protocol [see attached].  

 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The initial cost of implementing a Gating Order incorporates Planning 

Permission costs, Legal fees, administration costs and the 
manufacture of the gates.  Each Gating scheme cost would vary 

dependant on time spent and the number and size of gates installed.  
However an estimated cost to implement a standard Gating Order is 
£5,000 [ a more accurate figure could be determined in the future 

once a number of schemes have been implemented ]. 
4.2 Provision must be made for the ongoing costs of a Gating Scheme.  

The ownership of the gates remains with the council and therefore 
allowance must be made for ongoing maintenance.  The Gating 
Order is temporary and therefore there are funding implications 

should the Gating Order be altered or revoke.  The legal process 
would follow the lines of its initial implementation and therefore a 

figure around £2,000 would be anticipated.  Based on other local 
authorities experience the alteration or revocation of an Order has 
never been deemed necessary. 

4.3 The usage of the Gating Orders could make savings on other 
resource intensive measures which in some cases are very short 

term solutions ie continued police patrols, numerous dispersal 
orders, temporary CCTV cameras. 

4.4 It is very difficult to quantify the costs of dealing with the crimes 

undertaken within the problem areas however the Economic & Social 
Costs of Crime has confirmed the unit costs detailed below:- 
- Criminal Damage £866 

Page 135



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 4 of 7 

 

- Domestic Burglary £3,268 

- Common Assault £1,440 

- Robbery £7,282 

In addition to these the average cost of implementing an Anti-social 
Behaviour Order is £5,350 [ Implementing Anti-social Behaviour Orders – 

Home Office ].  The average cost to our Community Safety Unit for 
implementing a CCTV system on a small highway is approximately 
£2,000 for CCTV equipment and £150 for each time installed 
(cameras are moved to locations in response to priority areas – average 

time span in situ is 3 months).  Each proposed Gating Order is unique 

in its levels of crime and disorder but given that the criteria is that 
the location must be suffering from persistent criminal offences or 
anti social behaviour the costs are likely to be in excess of the costs 

to implement a Gating Order.       
4.5 As the Gating Orders would be implemented in high crime / ASB 

locations it is anticipated the savings would be more significant and 
the gates would have greater impact than other short term, highly 
resource intensive options. 

4.6 If authorised, the Alleygating Budget will allow funding of 20K per 
annum, for the duration of the project, to implement Gating Orders 

boroughwide.  Any proposed schemes beyond this funding allocation 
would need to be presented to Township Tasking Groups, Partnership 
Business Group, Ward Councillors etc … with funding requests.  No 

proposed schemes would be actioned beyond initial investigations 
without secured funding in place. 

4.7 Should the Alleygating Capital Funding cease beyond the current 
financial year the Gating Order would still be available to the council 
however funding would need to be secured from the alternative 

sources detailed in 4.6 above. 
4.8 The anticipated maintenance costs are minimal as the gates carry a 

25 year guarantee.  Foreseeable costs relate to replacement / repair 
costs of the locking mechanism.  Ongoing maintenance costs of the 
gates will be met from the Community Safety core revenue budget. 

 
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 The Gating Orders will be processed using Part VIIIA section 129A-G 

of the Highways Act 1980.  Legal formalities for the Gating Order will 
be undertaken by the Legal Services Team, Highways Services and 

the Burglary Reduction Team. 
5.2 Legal Services and Highways Services have approved the proposed 

Gating Order Protocol attached.  
 

 

6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are no personnel implications as Gating Orders would be 
processed by existing staff within the Community Safety Unit 
together with Internal Departments within the Council.  

 
 

Page 136



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 5 of 7 

 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  
  

7.1 All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report 
involve risk considerations as set out below: 

 
7.2 Non allocation of funding beyond March 2013 

Mitigation – 

üüüü Report to be submitted to Cabinet in due course to secure 
Capital funding beyond 2013. 

üüüü Identify other streams of funding in addition to allocation 
from Alleygating budget ie TTG, PBG, ward funding  

üüüü Look into option of private schemes ie processed by the 

Council but funded by private companies or residents 
collectively. 

üüüü Creation of an exit strategy should the funding cease. 
üüüü Ensure reserve fund set up with Community Safety to cover 

possible future maintenance. 

 
7.3 Objections from internal departments, organisations, residents etc…. 

 Mitigation – 
ü Consultation with all relevant departments and 

agencies prior to submission of Gating Order. 
ü Consultation with residents at the outset of the 

scheme, offering further information, home visits etc to 

address any issues / reservations residents may have.  
ü Agreement of protocol attached prior to implementation 

of Gating Orders. 
ü Regular reviews of Gating Order protocol / criteria / 

process with internal departments ie highways. 

 
7.4 High level of requests for Gating Orders  

 Mitigation – 
ü Thorough investigations into necessity of Gating Order 

undertaken by Community Safety Unit – their approval 

required at outset. 
ü Referrals to TTGs if necessary to determine priority lists. 

ü Consider whether they fit criteria for Alleygating as they 
may be able to fall into the Alleygating project. 

 

7.5 Incorrect usage of gates ie. being left open or locked at wrong times 
 Mitigation – 

ü Spot checks of the gates to ensure being used correctly 
ü Signs on gates to report to Council if not open / closed 

at specified times. 

ü Warnings to residents / responsible persons if the gates 
are not being used correctly. 

ü Revocation of the Gating Order and removal of the 
gates to be used elsewhere. 

 

7.6 Future maintenance costs  
 Mitigation –  

Page 137



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 6 of 7 

 

ü Annual inspections of the gates to provide necessary 
upkeep/ service requirements. 

ü Reserve fund to allow for any possible maintenance 
costs. 

ü Notify residents that replacement costs of keys lies with 
them and not the Council. 

 

 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 

 
 8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 

 

 There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising form this 
report. 

 
 
 8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 
 The following equality/community issues arise from the issues raised 

and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk considerations 
as set out below: 

 
• The closure of highways can in some cases increase the 

pedestrian route.  The impact on pedestrians, in particular 

disabled persons, will be considered for each proposed Gating 
Order.  The crime and disorder in the area will be weighed 

against the inconvenience caused to the public ie pedestrians, 
cyclists etc.  This is formally considered by Highways during 
our consultation as they undertake a usage survey and an 

equality impact assessment.  Consultation is also undertaken 
with relevant organisations relating to the use of the highway 

ie ramblers associations, open spaces society etc….  All 
affected members of the public are consulted on the proposed 
Gating Order.  They are notified of planning permission by 

means of correspondence, advertisement in the press and 
online, legal closure by means of press, online and notices are 

placed on the ends of the highway subject to closure.  
• Gating Orders are considered based on the level of crime and 

disorder and therefore targeting the areas most in need / 

people most in need ( ie victims of crime ). 
• There are various means of raising a request for Gating Orders 

to ensure there are no barriers in accessing the service ie. 
requests through the police, ward councilors, direct to 
Community Safety, through township etc.  Areas are also 

targeted on recommendation from agencies such as the police 
to ensure the initiative is implemented where needed, even if 

residents are unaware of Gating Orders. 
• To ensure wider awareness of the initiative, once initial Gating 

Orders are implemented, press coverage will be undertaken on 

their existence and success.       
 

 

Page 138



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 7 of 7 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Alleygating Policy, Procedure & Protocol 
 

Gating Order Protocol  

 

Community Safety Unit 
 

See attached 

 

 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 1 of 9       

 
         

                            

 
 
      

 
 

ROCHDALE MBC       
 

 

 

GATING ORDER PROTOCOL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 141



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 2 of 9       

 

 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

This document has been produced with regard to the appropriate 
legislation, Regulations and Home Office Guidance. It is intended to 
provide assistance to practitioners for the assessment and implementation 
of Gating Orders using the powers given to local authorities under the 
Clean Neighbourhoods & Environment Act 2005 (CNEA). 
 
It must be read as a whole so that all aspects of Gating Orders and the 
roles and responsibilities of the various parties can be understood and 
appreciated. However, there is no intention that the provisions of this 
document will apply in the same way to each case and practitioners 
should be conscious that each location will require individual detailed 
consideration. 
 
The Council and the Safer Communities Partnership is committed to 
reducing crime and disorder, fear of crime and anti social behaviour (ASB) 
in accordance with statutory duties under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
and in response to the concerns of Rochdale’s communities. 
 
The Council has a well established ‘Alleygating Project’ run by the 
Burglary Reduction Team within the Community Safety Unit.  This initiative 
gates off alleyways to the rear of properties, removing public access by 
implementing a permanent closure of the highway (where necessary).  
 
Gating Orders are, however, a tool to restrict access to paths, 
passageways, designated footpaths, cut throughs, snickets, rear and side 
streets or walkways which do not fall within the Alleygating criteria. 
 
Whilst Gating Orders are a valuable tool in tackling ASB, crime and 
disorder they are not the only solution.  As such, it is important that 
appropriate consideration is given to other methods of ASB, crime and 
disorder reduction and prevention.  

 
The Council’s primary responsibility in relation to these locations is to keep 
them open and available for use by the public.  
 
All applications for a Gating Order must contain appropriate supporting 
evidence that the route is an intrinsic contributor to the levels of ASB, 
crime and disorder in that locality and accordingly the application must 

Page 142



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 3 of 9       

also include Police Crime Incident information – It is therefore imperative 
that ALL incidents relative to the application are reported to the police. 
 
The involvement and consultation with Community Safety is crucial to the 
achievement of satisfactory outcomes to the justification, assessment and 
review stages of Gating Orders. Similarly, the engagement and support of 
the local Councillors and the local community are considered vital for the 
ultimate success of Gating Orders in reducing ASB and crime and disorder 
 
 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

Section 2 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 
introduced a new power that allowed councils to make, vary or revoke 
Gating Orders in respect of highways within their area. This was achieved 
by inserting new sections 129A to 129G into the Highways Act 1980 and 
Regulations accompanying this legislation came into force on the 1st April 
2006 to enable councils to restrict public access to certain highways by 
gating them (at certain times of the day if applicable), without removing 
their underlying highway status. Councils are now able to make 
“Gating” Orders on grounds of anti-social behaviour as well as crime. 
 
The effect of the new legislation is to give Councils the power to gate 
certain types of route where the Council is satisfied that levels of crime 
and disorder justify such action. An Order may close the highway at all 
times or for certain times or periods as may be appropriate to the 
circumstances, but can exclude designated persons, bodies or 
organisations from the restrictions (e.g. residents requiring access to 
maintain property boundaries, utility companies, emergency services)  
 
The restricting of access to ‘residents only’ by means of a Gating Order 
has proved to be a very successful strategy in both reducing crime and the 
fear of crime for many other local authorities.  
 
Access for occupiers of premises adjoining or adjacent to the route cannot 
be restricted, nor can a Gating Order be made if it forms the only or 
principal means of access to dwellings. If it forms the only or principal 
access to premises used for recreational or business purposes, it cannot 
restrict access during the times of day when those premises are normally 
used.  

  
The power does not permanently extinguish the highway, making it 
possible to subsequently alter or revoke the restrictions and reopen the 
route. This effectively means that the land cannot be converted for any 
other purpose and remains a highway asset.         

 

Page 143



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 4 of 9       

 

3. DEFINITION 
 

In this document the term “highway” for the purposes of Gating Orders 
shall be taken to mean any of the terms below:-  
 
Paths, passageways, designated footpaths, cut throughs, snickets, rear 
and side streets or walkways. 
 

4. POLICY 
 
A Gating Order may be made in respect of a highway that is facilitating 
persistent levels of crime and/or anti-social behaviour, which is adversely 
affecting local residents or businesses.  
 
Gating Orders shall be made pursuant to s129A-G of the Highways Act 
1980 (as amended) and in accordance Highways Act 1980 (Gating 
Orders) (England) Regulations 2006.  
 
A register must be maintained containing copies of all Gating Orders 
together with copies of all Notices proposing the making, variation or 
revocation thereof. The register must be available for public inspection 
during normal business hours.  
 
Details of making, revising or revoking Gating Orders, including 
consultation, notification and dealing with objections etc. are contained 
within the Regulations.  
 
Sections 129A to 129G have been inserted into the Highways Act 1980 by 
the CNEA, which provides powers to erect, or permit to be erected, a 
barrier (gate) to close public access to a highway over which the public 
would normally have access. Such highways may range from narrow 
footpaths or alleyways to those capable of accommodating vehicular 
traffic.  
 
A procedure note has been approved for the making of Gating Orders and 
contains the following principal points:  

 
1) The Highway Authority must be satisfied that the highway in question 

satisfies the criteria set out in the legislation to allow it to be considered 
for a ‘Gating Order’: 

• premises adjoining, or adjacent to, the highway are affected by 
crime or anti-social behaviour  

• the existence of the highway is facilitating the persistent 
commission of criminal offences or anti-social behaviour, and   

Page 144



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 5 of 9       

• it is, in all the circumstances, expedient to make the Order for the 
purposes of reducing crime or anti-social behaviour  

• The closure of the highway will not have a significant negative 
effect upon the options available for the public to use the highway 
network in the locality. 

 
Appropriate consultation must therefore take place with relevant 
stakeholders, including particularly the Community Safety Unit, Highways 
and Police. A body of evidence of the problems suffered should be 
compiled.  
 
2)  Any Order may close the highway:  

• at all times or for certain times or periods as may be specified, and  

• may exempt persons of a certain description from the restriction  
 
3) There are exceptions for occupiers and business premises in 

prescribed circumstances. 
 

Access for occupiers of premises adjoining or adjacent to the highway 
cannot be restricted, nor can a Gating Order be made if it forms the 
only or principal means of access to dwellings. If it forms the only or 
principal access to premises used for recreational or business 
purposes, it cannot restrict access during the times of day when those 
premises are normally used.  

 
4) There are also exceptions for certain people, such as emergency 

services and those with a legitimate reason for accessing any 
premises adjacent to a highway. In practice, this would involve the 
provision of access to such people, or the opening of the gates during 
certain times/periods when such people would expect to use the 
highway. The management of periodic and regular access will be an 
essential ongoing requirement and accordingly access arrangements 
must be appropriately considered within the overall assessment.  

 
5) The powers do not permanently close the highway, making it possible 

to subsequently alter or revoke the restrictions and reinstate the use of 
the highway by the public. This effectively means that the land cannot 
be converted for any other purpose and should still be maintained as a 
highway asset.  

 
6) Gating Orders on all highways, shall be administered, managed and 

reviewed by Impact Partnership Highways and the Community Safety 
Unit.  

 

Page 145



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 6 of 9       

7) The Highways and Community Safety Unit shall ensure that they keep 
each other appropriately informed and consulted at relevant stages of 
each Gating Order.  

 
8) A register of Gating Orders shall be maintained by The Council as 

Highway Authority as part of the Highways Register. 
 
 

5. REASONS FOR GATING  
 
 The early design and layout of housing estates means that they have 

many cut through / snickets which permit short pedestrian routes to and 
from shops, schools and community venues. 

 
Over time however a number of these locations have been subject to 
various forms of ASB, crime and disorder which, as a result, have 
impacted on the legitimate use of the highway.  

 
 The law has now made it easier for Councils to facilitate gating procedures 

and help prevent crime.  The new process does not involve the 
extinguishment of the legal status of the highway, but gives the Council 
the power to gate, providing it can be shown that persistent crime and 
anti-social behaviour is expressly facilitated by the use of certain 
highways.  
 

 

6. BENEFITS OF GATING ORDERS 
 

ü Gating Orders can be used to reduce ASB rather than just Crime.  
  
ü The closure of the highway is not permanent, subsequently making 

it possible to alter or revoke the restrictions and reopen the route. 
 

ü The highway can be gated and locked, either completely or for 
certain hours of the day / night only. 

 
ü Allows the Council to gate certain highways which do not fall under 

the criteria for Alleygating.   
 

ü The highway retains is status which means it cannot be enclosed or 
built upon by individual property owners. 

 

ü The access rights of adjoining property owners are preserved. 
 

ü If objections are made, the council can choose to press ahead with 
the order if the majority of the community are in favour. 

Page 146



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 7 of 9       

 
7. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
 Costs 

The costs involved in the making of a Gating Order include;- 

• The physical costs of gating the highway,  

• The administration costs for processing the order by Community 
Safety, 

• Service costs for Planning Permission and Gating Applications         
( including costs of advertising the Order ), 

• Possible costs of holding a public inquiry ( if the Council deem this 
course of action necessary ), 

• Future inspection costs, 

• Possible future maintenance costs , 

• Possible future alterations or removals of the Orders.   

 

All of the funding required for this will need to be identified by the 
applicant before being able to progress a full assessment of a location.  

As the closure of the highway with a Gating Order is not permanent the 
ownership of the gates remains with the Council.  

As any gates erected with a gating order will be a structure within the 
public highway an annual visual inspection will take place.  

 
 

Opening and Closing the Gates  
 If the Gating Order specifies a timed closure, the residents will be 

responsible for ensuring that the gates are opened and closed at the 
specified times, along with a contingency plan for illness/holidays.  If 
residents fail to open or close, the gates can be removed 
 
If the Council is continually called out as a result of the residents failing to 
open the gates, as the Order specifies, then it will consider revoking the 
order and removing the gates. 

   
  

8. CONSULTATION 
 

As part of any Gating Order application consultation should take place 
with relevant stakeholders.  These include:-  
 

ü Residents and Businesses affected by the Gating Order  

Page 147



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 8 of 9       

ü Various Council Departments ie Highways, Legal Services 
ü Emergency Services  
ü Rights of Way Groups  
ü Statutory Undertakers and Service Providers  

 (who may have operational plant under the highway subject to the Order)  

 
It is advisable to find out about any objections that may occur prior to the 
publishing of the proposed Order, so that the objections can be mitigated.  
Objections do not necessarily result in the withdrawal of a proposed 
Order.  Consultation with these stakeholders gives an opportunity to 
incorporate compromises into the draft Order, or to strengthen the 
justification for making the Order. 
  
However please note that if objections are received from certain 
organisations (ie chief officer of a police force, fire and rescue authority, 
NHS Trust or NHS Foundation or another local Council ) then it is a 
statutory requirement to hold a public inquiry. 

 
9. APPROVALS 
 
Requests for Gating Orders will undergo an initial assessment by the 
Community Safety Unit prior to being submitted.  Funding for the proposed 
Order must be identified at this stage. 
 
Guidance from the Home Office recommends that other methods of 
resolving issues of anti social behaviour/crime are to be considered prior 
to pursuing a Gating Order. This needs to be demonstrated as part of the 
assessment. 
 
In summary a Gating Order will be supported by the Council where there 
is sufficient evidence of: 

ü A high level of crime or anti social behaviour being facilitated by the 
highway 

ü A heightened fear of crime or perception of crime as a result of the 
highway 

ü Gating will not have disproportionate adverse effects in relation to 
pedestrian safety or journey times 

 
In order to prioritise applications so that the Council targets areas where 
the most impact will be made, applications will be assessed in light of: 
 

- Crimes occurring on the highway subject to the proposed Order  
-  Crimes occurring in the wider area of the highway subject to the 

proposed Order 
- Priority neighbourhoods  

           

Page 148



Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – Gating Order Protocol 

Page 9 of 9       

Any proposed gating scheme should be supported, where possible, by all 
residents / businesses affected by the erection of the gates.  However 
oppositions do not necessarily result in the withdrawal of a proposed 
Order.     
 
Planning Permission for the erection of the gates is required if the gates 
are in excess of 2 metres high or adjacent to a highway. 
 
Legislation dictates that there are certain organisations whose oppositions 
result in a public inquiry ( ie. chief officer of a police force, fire and rescue 
authority, NHS Trust or NHS Foundation or another local Council ).  The 
Council will seek to avoid holding a public inquiry as they prove extremely 
costly and time consuming. 
 
Formal Gating Orders will be drawn providing all evidence and, if 
approved, will be signed off by scheme of delegation. 
 

     
10.     REVIEWING OF GATING ORDERS 

 
Schemes will be reviewed annually to assess the effectiveness and 
appropriateness of the gates.  Levels of crime will be analysed together 
with sampling local opinion. 
 
The powers to gate are NOT permanent and can be altered / revoked by 
the Council if deemed necessary.  The process for variation or revocation 
is the same as that for introducing an order. 

 

 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Proposed Gating Scheme:- 
Location to be inserted 

 
Name   Age & 

D.O.B. 
 
 

Address  
( including  postcode )  

 

Daytime Phone  

 

Please circle one of the following –  
I am an owner occupier / tenant / absent owner / other ______________ (details) 

 

IF YOU ARE NOT THE OWNER of the property, please provide the details of the owner, the 
person you pay the rent to, or letting agent below   

 

 

[please delete as appropriate] 

I AGREE / DISAGREE to the installation of security gates to the highway 

detailed above. 
 
If you disagree please state your reasons why below……. 
_________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________ 

  
Your responsibilities:- 
Once the gates are erected I understand that my responsibilities will include: 
 

ü Ensuring the gates are open and closed at the specified times, where applicable. 
ü Not allowing any unauthorised people into the gated area when the restrictions are in 

place. 
ü To allow any statutory service providers (for example electricity, gas engineers etc) 

24 Hour access for any services that may be located on, over or underneath the 
gated area. This is a legal requirement.   

ü Not permanently obstructing within the gated area. 
ü Not to pass keys or codes to any unauthorised persons 

Name   

Address  

Phone   

GATING ORDER CONSULTATION FORM 
 

Section 129A-G of the Highways Act 1980  
(Clean Neighbourhoods & Environment Act 2005) 

Page 151



 

   
 

Crime / Anti-social Behaviour Details:- 
 
Is there a problem with crime or anti-social behaviour in your neighbourhood? 

 
YES     NO   Please circle your answer 

 
Do you think there is a problem with people using the alley for criminal activity? 

 
YES     NO   Please circle your answer 

 
If YES…. What type of activity? 
[please circle your answer] 

 
Burglary  Youth Annoyance  Violent Crimes  Malicious Fires  
 
Drug related  Fly Tipping    Other [ please specify ________]  
  
Please make any additional comments about the crime and anti-social 
behaviour which has taken place or is taking place in or from the alley:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Council is able to make a Gating Order, under Section 129A-G of the Highways Act 
1980, to reduce crime or anti-social behaviour where it can be shown that premises 
adjoining a highway are affected by crime or anti-social behaviour, made easier by the 
existence of the highway.  Your feedback is therefore important to us in processing the 
Gating Order. 

 

I hereby accept the responsibilities set out in this document and that the 
information I have supplied is correct to the best of my knowledge 
 
Signed  ________________________  Dated  _____________________  

 
The Data Protection Act protects all personal information entered in the consultation.  Please 
note however that information provided on crime or anti-social behaviour will be used in 
support of the Gating Order and may become available for public inspection. 

Page 152



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 3 

 

 
 

 
  

CABINET REPORT 
 

Subject:  Climate Change Adaptation 
Supplementary Planning Document 

 
 

Status:  For Approval to go out to 
consultation 

Report to:  Cabinet 
  
 

Date: 31st October 2011 
  

Report of: Andrew Eadie, Planning and 
Regulation 

Email: 
Andrew.eadie@rochdale.gov.uk 

 
Tel: 01706 924371 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Martin Burke, Portfolio Holder for Internal and 
Environmental Services 

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer  
Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   Yes / No 

 

Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for putting the 

draft Climate Change Supplementary Planning Document out for 

public consultation so that we can ensure that the views of all those 
with an interest in / likely to be affected by the document have been 

properly considered. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 it is recommended that the Cabinet: 

 
Authorises that the draft Supplementary Planning be put out to 

public consultation for a six week period, in accordance with the 
details set out in this report.  

 

3. MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ 
CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT 

 
3.1 The Climate Change Adaptation Supplementary Planning Document 

is a local response to the increasing need to ensure that new 

development is designed and constructed in such a way as to be 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 153



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 3 

 

resilient to the impacts of climate change and to assist in climate 
change adaptation generally. 

3.2 It is predicted that climate change will lead to hotter, drier summers, 
warmer, wetter winters, and the likelihood of more extreme weather 

events. National planning guidance indicates that the design and 
construction of new development can be an important element in 
helping us to adapt to these changes, to ensure that negative 

impacts, such as increased health and public safety risks, are 
minimised.  

3.3 The document provides guidance for developers and planners in 
terms of best practice. It describes different approaches and systems 
which may help in terms of climate change adaptation. For instance, 

orientation of new development to avoid temperature extremes, the 
use of permeable surfaces, water conservation measures and the use 

of green roofs are all described. Detail about how ‘whole life’ costing 
approaches can help adaptation as well as save costs are outlined.  

3.4 An important element of the document is to emphasise that there 

are various ways to achieve the ends required, and that the Council 
will be flexible in its approach to ensure that this document is not 

seen as presenting additional burdens to developers at a difficult 
time. However, it is also important that the issue of climate change 

adaptation is taken seriously in development design and this will also 
be emphasised. 

3.5 The document will be used as part of the Council’s statutory planning 

framework, and will carry weight in the determination of planning 
applications. 

3.6 We want to seek views from those with an interest in / who will be 
affected by this document in order to ensure that it is fair, robust 
and workable. This is proposed to be done via a six week public 

consultation exercise which would begin within a few weeks of 
Cabinet authorisation. Townships will be consulted as part of this. 

The draft document will then be reviewed in the light of comments 
received, and a publication version will then be produced and 
presented to Cabinet for approval. 

3.7 An informal consultation event has already been carried out with a 
number of stakeholders, and this has provided useful initial 

comments. This report has been circulated to the Executive 
Leadership Team for comments, and to the Portfolio Holder. It has 
also had comments from the Regeneration Service (Business 

Manager), who has asked if developers will be engaged with as part 
of the consultation – this will be the case. 

 
Alternatives considered 
 

3.8 There are no alternative ways of providing robust policy guidance for 
developers and decision makers other than using the Supplementary 

Planning Policy approach.  If the document was not prepared, the 
Council would miss the opportunity to secure, through new 
developments, a flexible range of measures to address the impact 

and causes of climate change.  
 

Consultation proposed/undertaken 

Page 154



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 3 

 

 
3.9 It is proposed to undertake consultation in line with best practice and 

the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (2010). This will 
mean that the document will be available at all libraries and 

customer service centres and on the Council’s website. We will also 
write to all relevant statutory bodies and organisations. Alongside the 
document will also be the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats 

Regulations Assessment, which will also be consulted upon. The draft 
document will also be taken to Township Committees for 

consultation.  
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 The document will be made available electronically, minimizing costs 

in terms of publication; the established printing budgets can be used 
to produce the limited number of hard copies which will be needed, 
and a charge can be made (equal to the printing cost) to persons 

requiring a paper copy of the document in order to recoup costs. 
4.2 Finance Services feel that there are no financial implications. 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 None. 
 

 
6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 

6.1 None. Confirmed by the Head of People Management. 
 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

  
7.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from 

this report. 
  

8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 
 

 8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 

 There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 

 

 8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
 

 There are no equality/community issues arising from this report. 
 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Climate Change Adaptation 
Supplementary Planning Document  

(Draft) 

Copies will be available in Member’s rooms 

1 week prior to the Committee date 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 6 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

Subject:  Customer Services – piloting 
new ways of working 

 
 

Status:  For Publication 

Report to:  Cabinet 
   

 

Date: 31st October 2011 
  

Report of: Paul Young 
Customers and Communications Service 

Email:kate.lindley@rochdale.gov.uk 
 

Tel: 01706 925685 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Peter Williams  

Portfolio Holder for Corporate Management and Economic Regeneration  

Comments from  

Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer  

Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   Yes / No 

 
Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 To seek approval to pilot a reduction in opening hours at the Rochdale 

Customer Service Site and access changes at Milnrow, in order to: 

  

- Effectively test proposed new ways of working (the successes and 

lessons from these will be fed back at the end of the consultation for 

the next phase of savings) 

- Support front line staff as overall staffing decreases 

- Retain talent and reduce potential future training costs 

- Reduce redundancy costs to the council 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet endorse the proposed approach and 

delegate responsibility for additional changes, within the framework set out 
in this proposal, to the Service Director – Customers and Communications. 

 
2.2 It is recommended that Cabinet request feedback on the pilot as part of the 

consultation feedback for the current phase of savings proposals. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 157



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 6 

 

 
 

3. MAIN TEXT INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED/ 
CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT 

 
 
3.1 Over the last 12 months, significant changes have been made to the way 

face to face services are delivered at customer service points across the 

borough. 

3.2 Management has been de-layered, self service has been prioritised and new 

ways of working have been established.  The aim of this has been to better 

manage customer demand and to ensure that as the council reduces in 

size, we prioritise face to face support for our most vulnerable customers 

by encouraging customers who have the means and skills to use more cost 

effective channels to do so. 

3.3 As a result of these changes, significant savings have been delivered and 

between April and September, approximately 5,000 transactions have been 

transferred to the phone or the web instead of face to face. 

3.4 At the next phase of savings, it is proposed that all existing stand alone 

customer service points close and that service is instead delivered on an 

appointment only basis from the nearest available libraries.  Phones and 

additional web terminals will be installed to enable easy access to 

alternative forms of provision. We are consulting on these proposed 

changes at the moment.    

3.5 Although as part of this, it is proposed that new roles are created, these 

would be fewer in number than the existing staff base - and there remains 

a potential risk of redundancy for existing staff.  As a result, all staff in the 

service have been formally notified that they are potentially at risk of 

redundancy and are being offered support during this period. 

3.6 In order for the next phase of change to be successful, managers in the 

service are working hard to implement improved processes to mitigate the 

impact on customers.  They are also working with partners to create 

opportunities and with the team to minimise job losses as far as possible.  

3.7 Because of this work, several staff have already been offered alternative 

employment.  Six staff have been offered work in the contact centre 

(replacing existing members of the team who have requested voluntary 

redundancy), two staff have been offered work in Revenues and Benefits 

and several have expressed an interest in voluntary redundancy/early 

retirement.    

3.8 Because staffing within Customer Services is already optimised (matching 

staff supply to customer demand), once these staff leave, there will not be 

enough staff available to cover existing opening hours. 

Page 158



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 6 

 

3.9 This leaves the service with two options: 

Option A: To invest time in training up new temporary staff (approx 30 

days per staff member, plus ongoing supervision) who would potentially 
then only be employed for four to five months if the next phase of changes 

is approved at the end of consultation. 
 
Option B: To use this as an opportunity to trial new ways of working and 

feed the findings of the pilot into the overall learning during the 
consultation.  This would require making some changes to access 

immediately and reducing overall opening hours as explained at paragraph 
3.12. 

 
3.10  The service’s preference is to implement Option B on a pilot basis. This has 

several benefits: 

- It allows us to obtain real feedback in relation to the proposed changes 

at the next phase of the savings programme and to use this to either 

amend plans as part of consultation, or to mitigate risks in the eventual 

implementation should the proposal be approved at a later date. 

- It balances the need to deliver continuity of service with the 

requirement to protect jobs and to fulfil our duty of care to staff. 

- It helps to ensure that avoidable costs are not incurred (e.g. additional 

training costs) as a result of proposed changes. 

- It helps us to retain talent and to reduce potential future training costs.  

 

3.11 Because these changes are proposed as a pilot, this will not undermine the 

ongoing consultation about future savings.  Members are not being asked 

to take a permanent decision, but to allow the service to progress a pilot 

project.  Learning from the changes made during the pilot will be fed back 

at the end of the consultation period. 

3.12 The changes proposed are as follows: 

Area 
Current opening 
times 

Provision 
Proposed changes  

Rochdale 

Customer Service 
Centre Floor 2, 

Municipal Offices, 
Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1LQ 

Monday 8.30am-

5.15pm 
Tuesday 8.30am-

4.45pm 
Wednesday 8.30am-

5.15pm 
Thursday 8.30am-

5.15pm 

Friday 8.30am-
5.15pm 

Phones available 

Web terminals 
available 

Quick enquiry 
service on demand 

Appointments for 
more complex issues 

Change opening hours to 9 

– 5 every day except 
Tuesday. 

Change Tuesday closing 
time to 3.45pm in line with 

other offices. 

(Note that the early closing 
on Tues allows time for 

staff training/support) 

Page 159



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 4 of 6 

 

Area 
Current opening 
times 

Provision 
Proposed changes  

(Mon – Fri) 

Middleton 

Customer Service 
Centre Council 

Offices, Sadler 
Street, Middleton, 

Manchester M24 
5UJ 

Monday 9am-

4.45pm 

Tuesday 9am-
3.45pm 

Wednesday 9am-
4.45pm 

Thursday 9am-

4.45pm 
Friday 9am-4.45pm 

Quick enquiry 

service on demand 

Appointments for 
more complex issues 

(Mon – Fri) 

 

No change  

Heywood 

Customer Service 

Centre The 
Phoenix Centre, 
1 Church Street, 
Heywood OL10 1LR 

Monday 9am-5pm 

Tuesday 9am-

3.45pm 
Wednesday 9am-

5pm 

Thursday 9am-5pm 
Friday 9am-5pm 

Web terminals 

available 

Quick enquiry 

service on demand 

Appointments for 
more complex issues 

(Mon – Fri) 

 

No change  

Milnrow and 

Newhey 
Customer Service 

Centre Milnrow 
Library, Newhey 

Road, Milnrow 
OL16 3PS 

 

Monday, 

Thursday and Friday 
- 9.30am-1pm, 

2pm-4.45pm 
 

Tues 9.30am-1pm,    

2pm-3.45pm 

 

Wednesday - Closed 

Saturday – 9.30am 

– 12.30pm 

Web terminals 

available 

Quick enquiries  

On demand face to 
face service (tiers 1 

and 2) 

 (Mon – Fri). 

Appointments as 
required. 

(Mon – Fri) 

Pilot next phase proposals 

to: 

 Introduce free phone 

access. 

Increase the number of 
web terminals available 

Remove face to face ‘on 
demand’. 

Make appointments 
available for more complex 

issues  

(Mon – Fri) 

 
3.13 Where changes are proposed to opening times, these are at the quietest 

time of day and where there is likely to be minimum customer disruption.   

3.14 It is also requested that should staffing further reduce significantly, that 

members delegate authority to the council’s Service Director – Customers 

and Communications (Paul Young) to approve the introduction of 4pm 

closing at the main customer service centres should this be required.  This 

will not be done unless necessary – and will only be done after 

communication with existing customers.  This approach allows the service 

Page 160



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 5 of 6 

 

flexibility to adapt as required to balance customer need with possible 

staffing pressures over the coming months. 

3.15 The changes above will allow us to deploy part time staff more effectively 

to cover demand.  Where full time staff are employed on fixed contracts, 

any additional hours that cannot be deployed to other sites will be used to 

fulfil benefits processing activity.  This will, in turn, further reduce demand 

by ensuring customers have accurate and timely benefits decisions, 

removing the need to chase progress.  

3.16 It is proposed that the pilot project starts from Monday 7th November. 

 
Alternatives considered 

 
3.17 It is not possible to maintain service ‘as is’ with known future staffing 

levels.  For this reason, we must either change opening hours, or train 
additional staff.  The former is considered more appropriate than the latter 
on the basis that it allows us to properly test future state proposals with 

limited risk. 
 

Consultation proposed/undertaken 
 

3.18 Consultation has been undertaken with the Head of Revenues and Benefits, 
whose service users are the main users of face to face services.   

 

3.19 Consultation has been undertaken with staff and union representatives in 
Customer Services.  Twenty one staff have formally responded.  Of these, 

twenty staff support the proposal.   
 
3.20 Discussion has taken place with the Operations Director at RBH in relation 

to the proposed changes at Rochdale and Milnrow.   
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this proposal as 

staff hours will remain unchanged. Any costs incurred in 2011/12 while re-
configuring the service, to implement the 2012/13 savings proposal, will be 

offset by staff savings resulting from staff finding alternative employment 
in 2011/12.    

  

 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1  Customer Services is not a statutory service and there are no legal 

implications as a result of this proposal. 

 

6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no personnel implications as a result of this proposal. 

Page 161



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 6 of 6 

 

 
 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  
  

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 
report. 

 

 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 

 
  Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 

8.1 There are no workforce equality issues arising form this report. 
 

 
 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 

8.2 There are no significant equality/community issues arising form this report. 
 

 
 

Page 162



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 3 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 
CABINET  

 
Subject:  Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 
                 Annual Update 

 

 

Status:  For Publication 

Report to:  Cabinet 

                 Health Overview and Scrutiny                 
Committee  

 

Date: October 2011 

 October 2011 

Report of: Colin Foster 

(Adult Social Care) 

Email: cfoster@rochdale.gov.uk 

 
Tel: x3025 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Linda Robinson, Portfolio Holder for ASC & 
Housing 

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer  
Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   No 

 
Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 To update members on changes to Adult Safeguarding Board 

arrangements, national policy direction and safeguarding trends and 
activity for 2010/11. It is also designed to ensure Cabinet have 

continued awareness and understanding of Adult Safeguarding issues 
given the Council’s lead role in this area of activity. It includes an 
update on the council’s activity in respect of its responsibilities under 

the 2005 Mental Capacity Act (IMCA) 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Cabinet to note the contents of the Adult Safeguarding Annual report 
2010/11 

2.2 Cabinet to confirm the portfolio holder for adult social care and 
housing as the member representative on the Rochdale Adult 
Safeguarding Board 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 163



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 3 

 

 
3.      MAIN TEXT  

 
3.1 Following the consultation event on the on 28/01/2011 and to reflect 

emerging best practice, it is proposed that the current Board 
structure is simplified from the past arrangements of the Board, 
Executive Committee and 9 sub groups to the more streamlined 

single board and 5 sub groups. Also agreed was the establishment of 
a partnership forum to ensure wider ownership and understanding of 

adult safeguarding processes. Details are provided in the 
accompanying Annual Report 

 

Alternatives considered 
 

Active consideration was given to a number of options and various 
models nationally were considered. The structure adopted 
represented the consensus view of key stakeholders 

 
Consultation proposed 

 
Further user/carer and wider stakeholder involvement will be driven 

via the partnership forum and underpinned by the communication 
sub group. 

 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 The Safeguarding Adult Board has a budget of £20k – predominantly 
to fund the independent chair. This is incorporated within existing 
Adult Social Care Budgets 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 There is currently no statutory basis for safeguarding investigations – 

but there is specific Department of Health guidance (No Secrets) 

giving a clear lead role to local authorities. It is anticipated that 
safeguarding responsibilities (and the Local Authority lead) will be 

place in statute with the comprehensive revision to social care law – 
anticipated to be put before Parliament in early 2012 

 

6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 None 
 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

  
7.1 All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report 

involve risk considerations as set out below: 
 

•••• As with Child Protection issues there is an ongoing risk to 

council reputation if a vulnerable adult suffers death or 
significant injury following abuse. The processes and 

Page 164



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 3 

 

proposals overseen by the Safeguarding board are designed 
to mitigate this risk 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 
 

 8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 
 There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising form this 

report. 
 

 8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
 

 Robust Adult Safeguarding systems across agencies are particularly 

vital to socially excluded and vulnerable individuals in the community 
most at risk of abuse because of their age, disability or illness. 

 . 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Annual Report of Rochdale Adult 

Safeguarding Board 2010/11 

Attached to this report 

 

 
 

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 26 

 
 
 

ROCHDALE ROCHDALE ROCHDALE ROCHDALE 

BOROUGH ADULT BOROUGH ADULT BOROUGH ADULT BOROUGH ADULT 

SAFEGUARDING SAFEGUARDING SAFEGUARDING SAFEGUARDING 

BOARDBOARDBOARDBOARD    

    

ANNUAL REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ANNUAL REPORT ANNUAL REPORT 

2010/112010/112010/112010/11    

    

    

    

Page 167



Page 2 of 26 

    
 

FOREWARD 

 
 
 

I am pleased to provide the Rochdale Adult Safeguarding Report which gives an 
overview of progress achieved in the field of Safeguarding Adults during the 
period (2010 -2011). 
 
The Report is intended to reinforce awareness of the issues surrounding Adult 
considered to be at risk of Abuse, consolidating national and local concerns that 
‘safeguarding’ is everyone’s business. The report also introduces the wider 
safeguarding prevention agenda where the role is to make Rochdale as safe a 
place as possible for its citizens – especially those who may be vulnerable. 
 
It catalogues progress and activity over the past years, outlining the recent re-
launch of the board and the clear intention to raise the profile of adult 
safeguarding within all agencies and organisations operating within the Borough.  
 
Whether it is by reporting concerns or allocating additional resources, we hope 
you are able to consider and implement ways in which your organisations can 
further contribute to Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults in Rochdale and making the 
Borough as safe a place as possible for all its citizens – especially those who 
might be vulnerable  
 

 

 

Sheila Downey 
Executive  Director of Adult Care Service 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168



Page 3 of 26 

NATIONAL POLICY 
 

“NO SECRETS” GUIDANCE (DH) 2000  
 

The “No Secrets” Guidance 2000 was issued by the Department of Health (DH), under 
Section 7 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970. 
 
The purpose of the Guidance review was to build upon respect for Human Rights and to 
detail the need for a National Policy and a multi-agency framework to ensure the Protection 
of Vulnerable Adults from abuse.    
 
The Guidance identified Local Authority Social Services Departments as having the co-
coordinating role to establish multi-agency Committees and to develop local multi-agency 
Policy Procedures and Practice Guidelines for Vulnerable Adult Protection work.    
 
The primary aim should be to prevent abuse where possible, however if the preventative 
strategy fails, then robust Procedures should enable a co-ordinated and proportionate 
response. 
 
The “No Secrets” Guidance 2000 remains under Review by the DH and an update was 
expected during 10/11.  
 
However, it may now be that the development of the local authority safeguarding oversight 
and co-ordination responsibility will now be enshrined in the expected fundamental review of 
adult social care legislation. The Law Commission recently reported (April 2011) and its 
recommendations are currently being considered by the current government.  
 
This specifically includes enshrining the adult safeguarding Board – and associated council 
and other stakeholder responsibilities on a statutory basis. Legislative change in this respect 
may well be in place during 2012/13 and it therefore remains imperative that we consolidate 
and develop local arrangements in a robust and sustainable way. 
 
ADASS GUIDANCE 
 
ADASS (Association of Directors of Adult Social Services) have regularly produced 
guidance for local authority social services departments which are deemed by most 
authorities as ‘best practice’ – especially pending the formal review  of ‘No Secrets’ and 
anticipated legislative change and associated DH guidance. These have certainly influenced 
recent developments in the board and its governance. Copies of the guidance are available 
from RMBC. 
 
 
PERSONALISATION AND SAFEGUARDING 
 

The way in which social care services are being delivered is undergoing a tremendous 
transformation following the launch of the ‘Putting People First’ concordat.   Safeguarding 
systems must also be operated in a personlaised way often working alongside individuals 
and their families and carers to ensure the critical outcome of ‘keeping safe’ is delivered in 
the context of an individuals situation and understanding of the risks that may be involved. 
The discovery of a potentially or actual abuse situation may also facilitate the production of 
an agreed package of care and support which may be delivered in a personalised way via a 
personal budget or direct payment. 

 
WHO IS COVERED BY ROCHDALE’S SAFEGUARDING ADULTS WORK? 

Page 169



Page 4 of 26 

 
All adults over 18 years of age but particularly those who are older people, have a physical 
or mental health condition or a learning disability that reduces their ability to protect 
themselves from significant harm and have an increased risk of mistreatment, exploitation 
and abuse by other people. Essentially it is designed to protect adults who are ‘vulnerable’ 
and this is likely to be the definition enshrined in any new legislation. 

 
DEFINITION OF ABUSE 

 
Abuse may consist of a single act or repeated acts.   It may be physical, verbal or 
psychological, it may be an act of neglect or an omission to act, or it may occur when a 
vulnerable person is persuaded to enter into a financial or sexual transaction to which he or 
she has not consented, or cannot consent.   Abuse can occur in any relationship and may 
result in significant harm to, or exploitation of, the person subjected to it. 

From:   p.9, Department of Health (2000) 
No Secrets.   London:   DH 

 

• Physical Abuse is: 
 

 Physical ill treatment of an adult, which may or may not cause physical injury.   This 
includes pushing, shaking, pinching, slapping, punching and force-feeding. 

 
 Physical abuse can occur in situations where people are caused unjustified physical 

discomfort.   This can be through withholding care, withholding access requirements or 
the application of inappropriate techniques or treatments.   It can include forced isolation 
and confinement, e.g. people being locked in their room and inappropriate methods of 
controlled restraint. 

 
 It also includes the improper administration of drugs or the denial of prescribed 

medication. 
 

• Sexual Abuse is: 
 
 Any form of sexual activity that the adult does not want and to which they have not 

consented, or which they cannot give informed consent. 
 
 Any sexual encounter that develops between adults where one is in a position of power, 

trust or authority in relation to the other; eg Day Centre Worker, Social Worker, Health 
Worker etc, will be regarded as sexual abuse. 

 
 Sexual abuse includes rape, buggery, incest and situations where the perpetrator 

touches the abused person’s body (breasts, buttocks, genitals) exposes his/her genitals, 
coerces the abused person into participating in or watching pornographic videos or 
photographs. 

 

• Financial Abuse is: 
 
 The exploitation, inappropriate use of, or misappropriation of a persons financial reserves 

or property. 
 
 This includes the withholding of money or the unauthorised or improper use of a person’s 

money or property, usually to the disadvantage of the person to whom it belongs. 
 

Page 170



Page 5 of 26 

• Neglect is: 
 
 The deliberate withholding of, or unintentional failure to provide help or support, which is 

necessary for the adult to carry out their activities of daily living. 
 
 Neglect also includes a failure to intervene in situations that are dangerous to the person 

concerned or to others.   This is particularly the case when the person lacks the mental 
capacity to assess the risk either to themselves or to others. 

 

• Psychological Abuse Is: 
 
 This may be intentional or unintentional;  it may involve the use of intimidation, 

indifference, hostility, rejection, threats, humiliation, shouting, swearing or the use of 
discriminatory and/or oppressive language, which results in: 

 

• The adults' choices, opinions and wishes being rejected. 

• The adult becoming isolated or over dependent. 
 

 Psychological abuse includes the denial of a person’s human and civil rights including 
choice, privacy and dignity and being able to follow their own spiritual and cultural beliefs 
or sexual orientation.   Furthermore it includes the intentional or unintentional withholding 
f information, eg information not being available in different forms/languages etc. 
 

• Discriminatory Abuse Is: 
 
 Includes racist, sexist, homophobic, that which is based on a person’s disability, ageism 

and other forms of harassment or intimidation. 
 

THE MULTI-AGENCY ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 
(RBSAB) 

 
The Board is a Multi-Agency Partnership which champions the development of Adult 
Protection work within Rochdale, Middleton and Heywood, in order to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of Vulnerable Adults. 

 
The RBSAB was established in March 2009 and has recently been re-launched with the 
new Service Director in Adult Social Care (Colin Foster) chairing the board pending the 
appointment of an independent chair. The aim was to refocus local stakeholders on the 
safeguarding agenda, give a higher profile within the borough and provide a governance 
framework within which procedures and processes could be updated to reflect the changing 
health and social care environment. Following a stakeholder consultation event in January 
2011 a revised structure and updated terms of reference were agreed and are outlined 
below – representing a consensus view of those present at the consultation event. The 
emphasis was on establishing a smaller board, with executive authority – representing key 
stakeholders but not too large and unwieldy to inhibit proper oversight and actions as 
required. 
 
It was also agreed that an Independent Chair should be appointed. However, with the 
possibility of shared services with Oldham MBC being explored an interim arrangement has 
been made with the independent chair of the Oldham Adult Safeguarding Board to also 
chair the Rochdale Board from July 2011 onwards. This independent chair will be funded by 
RMBC as the lead responsible authority for safeguarding. If/when it is decided that a 
separate Rochdale Board is to maintained – a wider, externally advertised recruitment will 
take place 

Page 171



Page 6 of 26 

 
 
Revised Terms of Reference for RBSAB  
 
AIMS OF THE BOARD 
 

• To work together to promote the prevention and protection of adults at risk of abuse by making 
sound strategic decisions and ensure that effective systems and processes are in place. 

 

• To determine and implement policy, ensure training is appropriate and monitor performance in 
Safeguarding 

 

• To ensure that the continued development of services empower and support people to make 
their own choices and that interventions are proportionate and the least intrusive response to the 
risk presented. 

 

• To coordinate good practice and learning and to raise awareness of Safeguarding to the general 
public to create a safer community for all. 

 

• To be accountable and transparent by making the function and work of the Board accessible to 
all. 

 
OBJECTIVES OF THE BOARD 

 

• To develop a Board strategic business plan and to agree, monitor, review and evaluate the 
outcomes of the plan to promote the health and well being of Adults and the awareness of 
Safeguarding with a particular emphasis on prevention and keeping people safe in  Rochdale.  

 

• To ensure there is a simple and effective reporting system in place to report concerns and there 
is a multi-agency system to respond and investigate allegations of adult abuse and neglect. 

 

• To ensure that Multi-agency policy and procedures are reviewed and updated in collaboration 
and consultation with all agencies and take into account the views and experiences of service 
users and their carers as well as reflecting national guidance and policy. 

 

• To link with other strategic groups, Boards and forums that have a responsibility for protecting 
those at risk, such as the Rochdale Safeguarding Children Board, Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership, Rochdale Domestic Violence Forum, Health and Well Being Scrutiny Board, Clinical 
Commissioning Consortia and the Health  Safeguarding Groups  to ensure effective joint 
processes are  in place to  develop strategies to prevent abuse from taking place.  

 

• To support organisations to inform and train staff members to confidently carry out their 
responsibilities under the policy and procedures and to develop and promote a comprehensive 
multi-agency training programme to support organisations to inform and train staff members to 
provide quality services to adults at risk of abuse. 

 

• To oversee and act on referral and activity data provided by Board Members to monitor the 
effectiveness of  awareness raising, policies and procedures, training and the outcomes of those 
subject to abuse. 

 

• To monitor that agencies change/ improve their working practices in response to the outcomes 
and recommendations of Serious Case Reviews and that policies and protocols are designed to 
bring about a common culture based on prevention and early intervention.  

 

• To ensure that the Partners of the Board operate to make best use of resources in order to 
deliver its strategy and priorities. 

 

Page 172



Page 7 of 26 

• To actively work with the voluntary, community and the independent sector to raise awareness of 
safeguarding and developing their role to support the work of the Board. 

 

• Co-operating with local Multi Agency Domestic Violence Arrangements (MARAC) and  

• co-operating with Local Multi-agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA). 
 

• To promote the work of the Board, including the publication of an annual report. 
 

Membership 
 

• RMBC- Adult Care, Legal, Strategic Housing, Safer Communities 

• Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Board 

• Elected Member 

• Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 

• NHS Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale 

• Pennine Acute Hospital Trust 

• Clinical Commissioning Consortia 

• GM Probation Service 

• CPS 

• GM Police 

• GM Fire and Rescue Service 

• GM Ambulance Service 

• Age UK 

• MIND 

• HM Prison- Buckley Hall 
 

By invitation-  other relevant agencies providing services or advocating on behalf of adult  
service users; organisations acting on behalf of carers; practitioners from relevant 
professions at the discretion of the Chair. 
 
Meetings of the board will be quarterly and the board will report to respective Agency 
Boards at Executive level and formally to the Rochdale Health and Well-Being Overview and 
Scrutiny Board and the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Board. The Board also 
hopes to establish explicit governance links with the Children’s Safeguarding Board to 
ensure joint and overlapping issues are properly and coherently addressed in a consistent 
manner (for example –safeguarding issues for those in transitions, vulnerable people who 
are also parents etc.) 

 
 
Sub Groups 

 
A series of sub-groups have been established which report to the Board every quarter. 
These have been revised following the recent re-launch of the board and now consist of the 
following: 

 

• Workforce Development 

• Quality Assurance, Audit and Performance 

• Operations 

• Communications and Publicity 

• Policy and Procedure 
 

Page 173



Page 8 of 26 

These groups were ratified at the recent board and chairs appointed. Precise Terms of 
Reference and action plans will be developed for each group and be reported to the next 
board. 
 
The policy and procedure group will have a specific remit to update and revise the current 
procedures which are generally seen as being difficult to follow and overly bureaucratic. 
However, they do provide a solid platform to underpin safeguarding investigation and activity 
in the Borough. A copy of this procedure can be found on the link below. 
 
www.rochdale.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/councillors,_democracy_and_ele/policies_an

d_plans/vulnerable_adults_-_procedures.aspx. 
 

PARTNERSHIP FORUM 
 

It was also agreed that a Partnership Forum will be established, which would disseminate 
information and best practice around adults at risk and adult safeguarding. It will provide a 
delivery mechanism for the Safeguarding Adult’s Board to engage with communities, 
partnerships and inform future development and priorities. It will also act as a 2 way 
information sharing platform.  It is proposed that these are fora run on a themed workshop 
style basis.  The Partnership forum would include all members from the Operational 
Leadership Group and representatives from their agencies, with stakeholders invited from: 

 

• Residential and  Nursing Care Providers 

• Domiciliary and Day Care providers 

• Supporting People providers 

• Voluntary organisations 

•  Housing bodies 

• Service user and Carer forums. 
 

This membership list can be altered depending on the theme of the event, to enable 
Stakeholders to target their attendance. Timing and venue will be important to ensure 
inclusivity of service users and carers.  Programme of events will be planned by the 
Strategic Board for the forthcoming year to reflect Board priorities and local need. We hope 
to hold the first forum meeting later in 2011. The Chair of the forum will be a member of the 
strategic board 

 
 
SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Specialist Team 

 
To enhance capacity and procedural response RMBC have restructured to create an adult 
safeguarding team to drive best quality local practice and also to create some (limited) 
capacity to identify and drive the preventive safeguarding agenda. This team will ensure, 
alongside other adult social care colleagues a consistent, effective and timely response to 
all adult safeguarding alerts in the borough.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174



Page 9 of 26 

Prevention 
 
It will also have the additional remit of promoting adult safeguarding issues within the 
borough – creating greater awareness and activity in steps to ‘prevent’ abuse.  Initial activity 
involves ‘Dignity in Care’ both in the development of an award system – but also within the 
procurement and commissioning of safety and dignity within care environments. 
Safeguarding and preventing abuse should also be an important outcome as an overall 
prevention and independence strategy is created fro the Borough. 
 
MENTAL CAPACITY ACT 
 
In October 2006, the strategic board agreed to adopt the function of the Local 
Implementation Team for the Mental Capacity Act (MCA) 2005. This includes the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) function implemented in 2009 as part of the Act. 
The MCA DoLS  provide further protection for vulnerable people who lack capacity around 
their care and treatment, and who are accommodated in hospitals or care homes in 
circumstances that amount to a deprivation of liberty.  

 
It is appropriate that the RBASB will continue to have oversight of activity in relation to these 
IMCA functions as they remain closely allied to the Adult Safeguarding agenda.   It follows 
that the Safeguarding Adult Agenda Infrastructure   e.g. .all the sub-groups identified above 
are also responsible for the local MCA/Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) .  
 
 
Local IMCA activity is outlined below, as is the safeguarding activity within the 
Borough during 2010/11. Also appended, for information, are three case examples of 
safeguarding activity recently undertaken in the Borough. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 175



Page 10 of 26 

ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD                
 
ACTIVITY  REPORT 2010/11 
 
 
Quarter 4 2010-11 Safeguarding Alert Report 

 

SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

 

This report outlines the Q4 figures for the Safeguarding Alerts in 2010-2011.  

The headline conclusions are: 

• The figures for Quarter Four are significantly improved from this 

point in the previous year and have given us a better projection for 

year-end compared to last year.  This is as a result of heightened 

awareness of the need to follow the process, as well as work carried 

out by partners to raise awareness of the need to follow through on 

alerts. 

• There are no significant anomalies on the remainder of the data compared with previous years 

• There are still some fields on forms which are not being completed or returned which presents an 

incomplete picture of activity and outcomes.  These are followed up on an individual basis. 

Safeguarding reporting may change in 2011-2012 to include more qualitative measures and these are being agreed 
with the Head of Safeguarding 

 

1 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Following the successful pilot of the AVA1 Safeguarding Return last year, 2010-2011 was 
intended to see quarterly reporting of Safeguarding Alerts information to the Audit and Scrutiny 
Sub-Group. 

 
1.2 Safeguarding Board arrangements have changed considerably throughout the course of the year, 

with Boards sitting less regularly and being subject to further revision in terms of function, 
membership and responsibility. 

 
1.3 This report continues to be produced for the overall Safeguarding Board to give an overview of 

Safeguarding alerts in the year and activity.  The report is also presented to Executive 
Management Team for Adult Care. 

 

2 PROCESS AND REPORTING CAPACITY 

 

2.1 Currently Adult Protection Alerts continue to be sent to the ‘Adult Protection Mailbox’ and are 
recorded on the Vulnerable Adults spreadsheet.   The spreadsheet currently being used has 
recorded all alerts from April 2009, and the data in this report is for Quarter Four of 2010-2011 
which covers the period from 1st April 2010 – 31st March 2010. 

 
2.2 Particular attention should be paid to the levels of reporting due to the shortfall experiences in 

2009-2010 where the baseline was 265 alerts – down on the previous year.  This has seen a 
significant increase in 2010-2011 as a result of increased alerts from partners and ease of 
process. 

 
2.3 From 2011-2012 a new Safeguarding module will go live on the ALLIS case reporting system, 

which ensures that we will be able to capture the details of alerts alongside case files or 
standalone alerts for people whom the alert concerns.  A dual process will continue to run until 
reports have been tested for accuracy, and we are confident in the data quality of reporting from 
the Safeguarding Module. 

 
 

 

Page 176



Page 11 of 26 

3 PERFORMANCE  
 
3.1 Totals of referrals received, by quarter and month 

The following numbers of alerts have been received since April 2010, broken down by quarter.  
This indicates improved performance and a projected trend which has increased from the 
previous year.  November was the month with the highest number of referrals with 49 being sent 
through.  February was the month with the lowest number of referrals with 24 being sent through. 

 

Month Number of Alerts 
Received 

Quarter One 98 

Quarter Two 111 

Quarter Three 113 

Quarter Four 92 

Grand Total 414 

Number of alerts by quarter in 2010-2011

98

111113

92 Quarter One

Quarter Two

Quarter Three

Quarter Four

 

Number of alerts by by month in 2010-2011

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

A
pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

S
ep

te
m
be

r

O
ct
ob

er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br
ua

ry

M
ar
ch

Month

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
le
rt
s

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 177



Page 12 of 26 

Source of Referral 
The referrals were received from the following sources: 

 

Source of Alert Total 

Care Quality Commission 4 

Day Care Staff 7 

Education/Training/Workplace 
Establishment 7 

Family member 51 

Friend/neighbour 6 

Health - Mental Health Staff 13 

Health - Primary/Community Health 
staff 45 

Health - Secondary health staff 26 

Housing 4 

Other 51 

Police 10 

Self referral 9 

Social Care - Domiciliary staff 45 

Social Care - Residential Care Staff 104 

Social Care - Self directed care staff 1 

Social Care - Social worker/care 
manager 31 

Grand Total 414 

 

The highest levels of referrals are from Residential Care Staff, Family Members and the ‘Other’ 
category.  This is in line with the same proportion of referrals for 2009-2010, although there has 
been a notable decrease in the number of referrals from the Care Quality Commission (16 last 
year, 4 this year)– this is likely attributable to the reduced inspection role of CQC and the move to 
risk-based compliance. 

 
3.2 Status of referrals 

There are a variety of routes which alerts can follow once they have come into the system.  
These include a decision being taken not to progress, an investigation being carried out and 
progression to discussion at conference.   The following table summarises the position for the 
414 cases at Year End.   

 

Current Status of Alert Number Summary 

Alert - no decision  1 
140 

Alert - no investigation 139 

Investigation - completed 197 

267 
Investigation -ongoing 20 

Progress to Conference 2 

Progress to Discussion 48 

No Information 7 7 

Grand Total 414 414 

 
The above tables demonstrate that 66% of all known alert outcomes have resulted in the alert 
progressing past the alert stage only, with investigations or discussions being carried out.  This is 
an increase from last year where 53% of alerts progressed past the alert stage. 

 
3.3 Gender and age group  

A further comparison can be made by breaking down gender by age group, demonstrating how 
many females in the various age groups were the subjects of alerts as opposed to males.  The 
below table shows that 70% of referrals were for females and overall 65.4% of alerts were for 
older people. 

 

Page 178



Page 13 of 26 

 
3.4 Female alerts in the 18-64 category is higher 

than the male category again at year end, 
and females have more alerts in all age bands 
than males. 

 
 
3.5 Ethnicity 

The following table shows the alerts broken 
down by ethnicity, and out of the 414 alerts, 
88% of these were White British. The next 
highest is ‘Any Other White Background’ with a 
substantially smaller number of 5.3%.  This is 
broadly in line with the patterns of the previous 
year. 

 

Ethnicity Number 

Any Other Ethnic Group 3 

Any Other mixed background (Mixed) 1 

Any Other White Background (White) 22 

Bangladeshi (Asian or Asian British) 2 

British (white) 366 

Information not yet obtained 6 

Irish (White) 4 

Pakistani (Asian or Asian British) 10 

Grand Total 414 

 
3.6 Client category 

The following table demonstrates a breakdown by Main Client Category, and reveals that the 
majority of the alerts (60.6%) were for those with the client category of Physical Disability, Frailty 
and/or temporary illness (although this also includes a majority of older adults). Following that are 
adults with Dementia (13.7%) and adults with Learning Disabilities (11.1%). 

 

Main Client Category Number 

Physical disability frailty and/or temporary 
illness 251 

Dementia 57 

Learning disability 46 

Mental health needs 41 

Other vulnerable people 13 

Substance misuse 4 

No information 2 

Grand Total 414 

 
3.7 Client category and Service Received 

The group previously asked for the client category to be cross referenced with the services 
received.  The services received with the most alerts are residential care (129), nursing care (61) 
and home care (84) which is unsurprising as these are the biggest services provided and have 
more personal contact time with service users.  However given that more people receive home 
care than residential care – the fact that residential has higher alert levels demonstrates that 
abuse is either a) more likely in a residential setting or b) more likely to be observed and reported 
in such a setting.  Interestingly 66 alerts (within the 68 shown in the table) are for allegedly 
abused people with ‘no services’ again indicating that the capture of potential abuse is going 
wider than the service user base – the other 2 had no information provided. 

 
Type of 
services Dementia 

Learning 
disability 

Mental 
health 

Other 
vuln 

Physical 
disability 

Subst. 
misuse 

No 
Info 

Grand 
Total 

Gender Age Group Number 

Female 
  
  
  

18 - 64 80 

65 - 74 24 

75 - 84 68 

85+ 116 

Female Total  288 

Male 
  
  
  

18 - 64 63 

65 - 74 17 

75 - 84 22 

85+ 24 

Male Total  126 

Grand Total  414 

Page 179



Page 14 of 26 

received by 
client 

needs people frailty 
and/or 
temporary 
illness 

Day Care 2 4 1         7 

Direct 
Payments   2   15   17 

Equipment      3   3 

Home Care 9 12 4 3 55 1  84 

Intermediate 
Care Bed 1       1 

Meals On 
Wheels 1       1 

No 
Services/Info 4 6 12 4 39 3 2 68 

Nursing Care 8 1 2  50   61 

Professional 
Support 2 3 13  2   20 

Reablement     1 1   2 

Residential 
Care 29 3 9 4 84   129 

Respite Care     1 2   3 

Supported 
Living 1 15      16 

Grand Total 57 46 41 13 251 4 2 414 

 
3.8 Services Received by Provider 

Following the previous meeting, some work has been done to identify providers against clients 
where alerts have been received and the alert pertains specifically to the service, employees or 
treatment from the service. (i.e. If an alert is raised on someone who receives home care, but the 
abuse is perpetrated by a husband or co-habiting partner – the service provider is not relevant).  
The complete list of providers is available at Appendix A and shows that Springfield Park, 
Fieldhouse Nursing Home and Oaklands are the providers with the highest number of alerts. 

 
3.9 Repeat referrals 

The following table reports on how many repeat referrals there have been at Quarter Four.  
Please note that this reports on all repeat referrals through to the team. 

 

Repeat Referral? Number 

Yes 60 

No 345 

Blank 9 

Grand Total 414 

 
3.11 These 60 repeat referrals were actually regarding 49 individuals.  Of the 60 repeat referrals, 26 

were not investigated after the initial alert, 23 have has investigations which are completed, 3 are 
ongoing, 6 have been progressed to discussion and 2 have no information available.  

  
For the 23 which had completed investigations, the outcomes for these were that 2 had increased 
or different care, 12 had no further action taken, 6 had increased monitoring recommended, 1 
resulted in and applications to the Court of Protection and 2 has a community care assessment 
and services put in place. 

 

3.12 Self Funders 
The following table shows the number of clients who are self-funders and there are some 
identified gaps in this information at Quarter Three, which may improve as a result of a new self-
funders process on ALLIS. 

 

Page 180



Page 15 of 26 

 
3.13 Placed by another Local Authority 

The table below shows where the client 
was placed by another Local Authority, 
and there are a few minor gaps in this 
information from cases reported so far in the 
year. 
 

 
 
3.14 Known to Adult Care 

The below table shows those clients known 
to Adult Care and there are relatively few 
issues collecting this information. 

 
 
 
3.15 Type of Abuse 

On the Alert and Monitoring form, multiple 
categories for the ‘type of abuse’ can be 
selected, as shown in the below table.  574 
different types of abuse have been selected for the clients where an alert has been progressed to 
discussion.   

 

Category of Alleged Abuse Number 

Neglect 167 

Emotional/Psychological 127 

Physical 110 

Financial/Material 106 

Institutional 47 

Sexual 16 

Discrimination 0 

Hate Crime 1 

Grand Total 574 

 
 
3.16 This year the categories of abuse are substantially different as last year physical abuse was by 

far the highest figure, followed by financial/material and neglect. At Quarter Four, the highest 
category is neglect (163) followed by emotional/psychological (127).  These figures could mean 
either that these are the types of abuse which are happening most often, or that these are the 
ones which people can most easily identify or are most comfortable alerting someone to. 

 
3.17 Location of Abuse 

The table below shows the locations of the alleged abuse.   Please note that this figure has much 
improved from the previous year in terms of the reduced level of blank fields. 

 

Location of Alleged Abuse Numbers 

Acute hospital 1 

Alleged perpetrators home 11 

Care home - permanent 136 

Care home - temporary 10 

Care home with nursing - 
permanent 53 

Care home with nursing - 
temporary 2 

Day centre/service 2 

Mental health inpatient setting 1 

Are they are Self Funder? Number 

Yes 31 

No 302 

N/A 67 

(Blank) 14 

Grand Total 414 

Were they placed by 
another Local Authority? Number 

Yes 41 

No 357 

Not applicable / No info 16 

Grand Total 414 

Known to Adult Care? Number 

Yes 360 

No 47 

No information 7 

Grand Total 414 

Page 181



Page 16 of 26 

Not known 8 

Other  9 

Own home 162 

Public Place 8 

Residential Home 1 

Supported accommodation 4 

No information available 6 

Grand Total 414 

 
3.18 The table demonstrates that the majority of cases are happening in the clients own home with 

care homes and nursing homes following on – this is in line with last year’s pattern.  
 
3.19 Location of abuse cross referenced with client age groups 
 The information on location of abuse can also be broken down to include the age groups of the 

clients for whom referrals have been made as shown in the below table: 
 

Location of alleged abuse 18 - 64 65 - 74 75 - 84 85+ Grand Total 

Acute hospital       1 1 

Alleged perpetrators home 6 2 3  11 

Care home - permanent 7 11 38 80 136 

Care home - temporary 4 1 2 3 10 

Care home with nursing - permanent 22 6 12 13 53 

Care home with nursing - temporary    2  2 

Day centre/service 2    2 

Mental health inpatient setting     1 1 

Not known 6  1 1 8 

Other  7 1 1  9 

Own home 76 19 28 39 162 

Public Place 6 1  1 8 

Residential Home 1    1 

Supported accommodation 4    4 

No information available 2  3 1 6 

Grand Total 143 41 90 140 414 

 
3.20 This table shows that in the 18-64 age bracket, the location of abuse is mostly the 

victim’s own home, and this stays the same for the 65-74 age band. For older people 
however, care homes are the primary location of abuse, with the victim’s own home 
coming secondary.  This is a continuing trend from the previous year. 

 
 
 
 
3.21 Relationship of perpetrator 

Where the cases have been progressed on the initial alert, and there is information on 
the alleged perpetrator, we can also look at what relationship this person was to the 
Vulnerable Adult.  Currently some of this information has not been provided but the 
following table shows the relationship information on the forms that have been collected.  
This reveals that of those where a relationship is known, the majority are related to social 
care staff, with family members, carers and neighbours or friends in the next highest 
categories. 
 
 
 

Page 182



Page 17 of 26 

 

Relationship of alleged perpetrator Total 

Health care worker 3 

Main Family Carer 46 

Neighbour/friend 33 

Other (inc Milk, Post, Taxi Person) 11 

Other family member 46 

Other professional 5 

Other vulnerable adult 1 

Partner 24 

Self 1 

Social Care (Day care staff) 3 

Social Care (Domiciliary care staff) 38 

Social Care (Residential) 173 

Social Care (Self directed care staff) 4 

Stranger 9 

No information 17 

Grand Total 414 

 
 
 
3.22 Conclusion of completed investigations 

From the investigations at Quarter Four been completed (197 in total), we are able to find out the 
conclusions from the investigations, and the following outcomes were agreed.  
 

§ 42 of the investigations were substantiated (21%) 
§ 11 were partially substantiated (5.5%) 
§ 37 were not determined or inconclusive (19%) 
§ 107 were not substantiated (54.5%) 

  
The biggest outcome of the completed investigations other than ‘No Further Action’ was increase 
monitoring, and a Community Care Assessment and services put in place. 

 

Outcome of completed 
referral 

Not 
determined/ 
inconclusive  

Not 
substantiated 

Partly 
substantiated Substantiated 

Application to Court of 
protection   1 1   

Community Care 
assessment and services 2 7  3 

Increased monitoring 14 19 2 22 

Moved to increase /different 
care   5   

No further action 21 71 7 16 

Referral to 
Counselling/Training   3  1 

Restriction/management of 
access to alleged perpetrator   1 1  

Grand Total 37 107 11 42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 183



Page 18 of 26 

3.24 Timescales 

Of 197 investigations – as noted above we have information for the time spent on these 

investigations as follows. 

 

 

Length of time spent 
conducting investigation 

Number of alerts 
taking this length of 
time 

Up to 10 hours 97 
10 hours to 19 hours 44 
20 to 29 hours 22 
30 to 39 hours 14 
40 to 49 hours 4 
50 to 59 hours 3 
60 to 69 hours 2 
70+ hours 11 

Grand Total 197 

 

3203 hours were spent on investigations in total, giving an average of 16 hours per investigation.   

 
 
Quarter 4 2010-11 MCA and Deprivation of Liberty Figures 
 

 

SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

 

The main findings of the year end MCA/DOLS report are: 

 

• There has been an increase of 75% in the number of MCA/DOLS applications received this 

year, all of which have been related to the Local Authority.  The PCT has remained 

consistent with 5 applications. 

• There are no immediate concerns with the demographics of the clients being referred for 

application with an expected breakdown in gender, age and ethnicity. 

• More applications are declined than approved for the LA, which is similar to last years 

pattern,  This is the reverse for the PCT, where all 5 of their applications were declined this 

year. 

 

 

1 CONTEXT AND BACKGROUND 
 

Context 
 
1.1 The Mental Capacity Act Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (MCA DoLS), which came into force 

on the 1st April 2009, provides a legal framework to ensure people are deprived of their liberty 
only when there is no other care for them or to safely provide treatment.  The safeguards were 
introduced as an amendment under the Mental Health Act 2007 but form part of the Mental 
Capacity Act.  

 

 

Page 184



Page 19 of 26 

1.2 The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards provide additional protection for the most vulnerable 
people living in residential homes, nursing homes or hospital environments through the use of a 
rigorous, standardised assessment and authorisation process.  They protect those who lack 
capacity to consent to arrangements made for their care and/or treatment but who need to be 
deprived of their liberty in their own best interest to protect them from harm.  They also offer the 
person concerned the right to challenge and decision to deprive them of their liberty, a 
representative to act for them and protect their interests and the right to have their status 
reviewed and monitored on a regular basis. 

 
 Application and Process 
 
1.3 The safeguards apply to people aged 18 and above who suffer from a mental disorder (such as 

dementia or a profound learning disability) and who lack capacity to consent to the arrangements 
made for their care and/or treatment. 

 
1.4 Local Authorities (in the case of residential/nursing homes and third party) and Primary Care 

Trusts (in the case of hospitals) have statutory responsibilities as Supervisory Bodies which are 
determined by area in which the person has ordinary residence for Local Authority and where the 
patient is registered on the list of NHS patients of a General Practitioner. 

 
1.5 In operational terms for Rochdale MBC this means that they receive all applications for the Local 

Authority and Primary Care Trust (deprivation of liberty joint working agreement) from Managing 
Authorities (residential/nursing homes, hospital and third party) and are required to organise, 
assess the application and respond within the mandated timelines set out in the legislation.    
Where there is an urgent authorisation in place then the application must be processed within 7 
days or, in exceptional circumstances, within 14 days if an extension is granted by the 
Supervisory Body.  

 
1.6 The outcome of the completed assessment is that an authorisation is granted or not granted.  If 

granted this means that the person is subject to an authorisation and so will be deprived of their 
liberty.  A single authorisation may be granted for any length of time up to one year.  

 
1.7 An authorisation may not be granted for a number of different reasons.  It could be that the 

circumstances surrounding the initial assessment have changed making the authorisation 
unnecessary.  Under the legislation there are six reasons why an application may not be granted 
which are: 

 
1) The age requirement is not met 
2) Mental health requirement not met  
3) Mental capacity requirement not met  
4) “No refusal” requirement not met  
5) Eligibility requirement not met  
6) Best Interest requirement not met  

 

1.8 These reasons will be assessed by a mental health assessor and best interest assessor and a 
minimum of 2 assessors are required for each assessment.   The mental health assessment and 
best interest assessment cannot be carried out by the same person.   The best interest assessor 
cannot be a professional who is involved in providing or making decisions about the person’s 
care.  

 
1.9 During the authorisation a review may be requested by either the person, the person’s 

representative, Managing Authority or Supervisory Body.  The 6 assessments will be reviewed 
and if any of them are not met then the authorisation will be ceased and the person will not be 
deprived of their liberty.  

 
1.10 When an authorisation ends, for any reason, the person must cease to be deprived of their 

liberty.  If the reason is that the standard authorisation ends then the Managing Authority must 
make an application for a new standard authorisation.   

 

Page 185



Page 20 of 26 

1.11 A series of standard forms have been developed for use by the Managing Authority and 
Supervisory Body to manage the process of implementing deprivation of liberty.   

 
 
2 PERFORMANCE – APPLICATIONS AND APPROVALS 
 
2.1 Applications and Success Rate 
 

In 2010-2011, there were 28 applications for Deprivation of Liberty, with 23 originating with the 
Local Authority and the remaining 5 with the Primary Care Trust.  This is a significant increase 
from 2009-2010 where 16 applications were made – 11 from the Local Authority and again, 5 
from the Primary Care Trust.  In 2010-2011, the percentage split is 82% from the Local Authority 
and 18% from the PCT which is broadly in line with the Department of Health’s expectations as 
to where DOLS applications would originate. 

 

Number of DOLS requests in 09-10 and 10-11

0

4

7

9

222

5

1111

3

0

3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Q1 09/10 Q2 09/10 Q3 09/10 Q4 09/10 Q1 10/11 Q2 10/11 Q3 10/11 Q4 10/11

Period

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

LA

PCT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2 In 2010-2011, 16 of the applications were declined and 12 were approved.  It is interesting that 
all of the PCT applications were declined whereas more than half of the LA applications were 
approved.  The below tables show the trends and it is clear that 2010-2011 has seen a downturn 
for PCT in terms of approved applications.   

 
 

2010-2011 approval rates Local Authority Primary Care Trust 

Approved  12  

Declined 11 5 

Grand Total 23 5 

 

 

Page 186



Page 21 of 26 

Number of applications granted or not granted by type of organisation 

0

3

12

5 5

2

11

6

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

LA 09/10 LA 10/11 PCT 0910 PCT 10/11

Organisation and Year

N
u
m
b
e
r

Granted 

Declined

 

 

 

2.3 Reasons for declined applications 

 

In total there were 16 declined applications in 2010-2011, with the majority being declined for 

failing to meet the best interests requirement.  This is broadly in line with previous national 

statistics.   

 

 

Reason for declined request Local Authority Primary Care Trust 

Eligibility requirement not met   1 

Best interests requirement not met 11 4 

Grand Total 11 5 

 

2.4 Length of applications 

 

The maximum length of an authorisation is twelve months. All 12 granted applications in 2010-

2011 were from the Local Authority.  The below table demonstrates that the majority of requests 

were granted up to 90 days, with the smallest amount being up to 270 days (approximately 9 

months).   

  

Length of authorisation (calendar days) Local Authority 

0 to 90 days 7 

91 to 180 days 4 

181 to 270 days 1 

Grand Total 12 

 

2.5 Urgency of application 

 

Of all 28 applications made in 2010-2011, 19 were classed as urgent.  Of those 19, only 7 were 

granted, with the remaining 12 being declined.  80% of the PCT requests were classed as urgent 

compared with 35% of the LA applications. 

 

Was the authorisation request LA  PCT Declined LA TOTAL 

Page 187



Page 22 of 26 

urgent? Declined granted 

Yes 8 4 7 19 

 

 

3 DEMOGRAPHICS AND CHARACTERISTICS  

 

The following demographic information is available regarding the persons for whom applications 

are made, giving us information on age, gender, ethnicity, sexuality and religion. 

 

3.1 Age 

 

The below table demonstrates that a third of all granted applications were for younger people, 

and a quarter of all applications in total were for younger adults. 

  

Age Group LA Declined PCT Declined LA Granted  TOTAL 

18-64 2 1 4 7 

65-74 3   1 4 

75+ 6 4 7 17 

Grand Total 11 5 12 28 

 

3.2 Gender 

 

The table overleaf demonstrates that there is an even split 50/50 between applications made for 

females and for males.  More applications were granted for males however, and the majority of 

PCT applications were for females, all of which were declined. 

 

Gender LA Declined PCT Declined LA Granted  TOTAL 

Female 6 4 4 14 

Male 5 1 8 14 

Grand Total 11 5 12 28 

 

3.3 Ethnicity 

 

The following table demonstrates that the large majority of applications are made for White British 

clients.   

 

Ethnicity Care home Hospital 
Granted 
Total Grand Total 

British (white) 12 5 11 26 

Grand Total 12 5 11 28 

  

3.4 Sexuality 

 

17 of the 28 clients were noted as heterosexual, with the remaining 11 missing this information as 

it is not routinely collected on the case management system due to sensitivity. 

 

3.5 Religion 

 

Similarly with religion, 16 clients indicated they belonged to the Christian faith, 1 indicating no 

religion with the remaining clients without any recorded information. 

 

 

 

Page 188



Page 23 of 26 

3.6 Disability 

 

The majority of applications were for clients with the dementia or mental health category, with 

physical and learning disabilities clients with smaller proportions. 

 

Age Group LA Declined PCT Declined LA 

Granted 

 TOTAL 

Physical disability frailty and/or temporary illness 1 2 1 4 

Dementia 7 3 6 16 

Mental health  1  3 4 

Learning disability 1  2 3 

No Information 1    1 

Grand Total 11 5 12 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 189



Page 24 of 26 

APPENDIX B 
 

Anonymous Case examples of safeguarding work in RMBC 
 
Case Example A –  Physical Abuse 
 
Mr A is a 50 year old gentleman who has an acquired brain injury following routine surgery This 
has left him fully dependent on others for all aspects of his personal and social care. He was 
awarded a considerable compensatory sum for medical negligence. A ’Deputy’ was appointed 
by the court to look after his financial affairs and welfare considerations.  
 
He was cared for by an Aunt and Uncle but his sister raised a number of concerns about the 
care her relatives were providing to her brother. These included concerns of physical, 
psychological and verbal abuse. These were investigated but Mr. A himself was unable to 
effectively communicate or relay any concerns there might be and there was insufficient 
evidence for the police to take any action. Potential corroborating witnesses in the family were 
also reluctant to come forward because of reprisals from the alleged perpetrator. 

 
The case is still ongoing with safeguarding staff monitoring the situation to see what, if any 
future action can be taken 
 
Case Example B – Institutional Concerns 
 
Concern was expressed by relatives about care quality standards in a local home and this akin to 
environmental concerns (fire safety issues etc) has led to safeguarding process that involves both RMBC 
and health staff reviewing the care of all residents and  checking (above and beyond normal contract 
monitoring processes) environmental and safety standards. The safeguarding board would seek re-
assurances that care in the home was safe and this may involve specific actions and expectations being 
placed on the home managers/owner to change poor practice and improve standards. Failure to do so might 
result in a temporary (or in extreme cases permanent) blockage on statutory sector placements within the 
home. CQC might also refuse their continued registration. 
 
Case Example C  Neglect 
 
Mr C is a severely disabled young man, with communication difficulties, who lives at home with his 
mother and 5 younger siblings. His home situation was described as chaotic. Concerns were raised by 
staff at his college, who believed he was being neglected at home, both physically and 
psychologically. His mother found it difficult to engage with professionals and often withdrew from 
planned meetings at the last minute.  Mr  C’s needs are complex and he has two separate care 
agencies providing his support and his care, which is fully funded by Continuing Health Care. 
Following an investigation, a case conference was held at his college to ensure he was fully supported 
to participate and included everyone involved in his care provision, including family, education, health  
and social care professionals. The case conference highlighted the need for a multi-disciplinary 
approach to his care provision and the need for more robust communication between all the agencies 
involved. It was identified that Mr C should be given more autonomy, such as support to open a bank 
account in his own name . The result was a shared approach to solution finding  with Mr C at the 
centre of all decision  making. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 190



Page 25 of 26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 191



Page 26 of 26 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            
 

Page 192



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 9 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
Subject:                                        

Rochdale Town Centre Metrolink Phase 3B. 
Proposed New Traffic Regulation Orders & 
Revocation of Existing Traffic Regulation 

Orders. 
 

Status:  For Publication 

 Date: 31 October 2011 
   

Report of:  
David Nicholson, Director of Highways,  

Highways & Engineering Service 
Impact Partnership 
 

John Kearns (Author) 

Email: 
david.nicholson@mouchel.com 

 
john.kearns@impactpartnership.com 
 

Tel:01706 924575 (DN) & 924533 (JK) 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Beswick  

                             Portfolio Holder for Performance & Partnerships 

Comments from  

Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer x 

Monitoring Officer x 

Key Decision:   No 
 

Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    
 

1. Purpose of Report: 

This report is to advise Members of objections received to the proposed 

introduction of new Traffic Regulation Orders and Revocation of existing 
Traffic Regulation Orders as part of Rochdale Town Centre Metrolink Phase 

3B, to present the response of the Director of Highways, Strategy and 
Policy to the objections received and to ask Members to decide whether the 
recommendations and amendments should or should not be implemented. 

 
2. It is recommended that: 

 
2.1 The Committee considers whether the Borough of Rochdale ((Civil 

Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale 

Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No 55) Order together with various 
Prohibition and One-way Working Orders relating to Rochdale Town Centre 

Metrolink Phase 3B, as outlined in Appendix ‘A’ and ‘B’ with amendments as 
outlined in Appendix ‘C’ of this report should be approved by Cabinet. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 193



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 9 

 

2.2 It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is 
deemed strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with 

Section F2 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee.   
 Because the scheme has received objections, the matter must be referred 

to Cabinet for decision. 
 

3. Reasons for recommendation: 

 
3.1 A decision needs to be made in respect of the objections received so that 

 the scheme can be progressed and the new restrictions introduced. 
 

4. Alternatives considered:  

 
4.1 To retain the existing waiting restrictions; however this is not an option as 

 the planning consents for Metrolink placed conditions relating to new Traffic 
 Regulation Orders (TRO’s) that would be required to compliment the new 
 Metrolink line.  The proposed TRO’s are therefore considered necessary for 

 the introduction of the Metrolink line to Rochdale Town Centre. 
 

5. Consultation undertaken: 
 

5.1 Consultation leaflets outlining the extent of all the work and including 
 comprehensive plans of all the proposals were delivered by hand to all 
 properties affected by the proposals; the same leaflet and plans were also 

 posted to all properties affected by the proposals as a safe guard. 
 

5.2 In accordance with statutory procedures, Notice of the proposals was 
 advertised in the Rochdale Observer on 3rd August 2011.  Notices were also 
 served on statutory consultees and were posted on site on 3rd August 2011 

 on all roads affected by the proposals and copies of the relevant documents 
 were made available in Council Offices. 

 

6. Background and Statement of Reasons: 
 

6.1 Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the ten Local Authorities of 
Greater Manchester have been partners in the planning and development of 

Metrolink for many years. 
 
6.2 Proposals to bring Metrolink to Oldham and Rochdale were first put before 

 Parliament in 1998 and by May 1994 all powers were granted for Metrolink 
to serve Oldham and Rochdale town centres.  In October 2009 Planning 

permission was granted, subject to conditions. 
 
6.3 The extension of Metrolink to Oldham and Rochdale is part of a £600 million 

 expansion of the tram network.  The extension of the line to Rochdale train 
station (Phase 3A) is due to open in Summer 2012 and the further 

extension of the line to its termination at Smith Street in the town centre 
(Phase 3B) is due to open in 2014. 

 

Page 194



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 3 of 9 

 

6.4 As part of the planning consents, conditions were placed relating to new 
Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) that would be required to compliment the 

new Metrolink line. 
 

6.5 The ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions, loading restrictions, Pay and Display 
parking and Loading Bays will regulate the parking of vehicles between the 
Maclure Road Metrolink stop and the termination stop on Smith Street. 

 
6.6 The Pay and Display parking on Oldham Road, Drake Street, Church Lane 

and Fleece Street is to be retained but the exact locations on each street is 
to be amended to allow for the introduction of ‘Loading Only’ bays.  Extra 
Pay and Display parking will be provided on Oldham Road between Drake 

Street and Milnrow Road. 
 

6.7 ‘Loading Only’ bays are to be provided on Moore Street, Drake Street 
(3No), Oldham Road (2No), School Lane, Nelson Street (2No), Church 
Lane, Fleece Street and Smith Street.  The ‘Loading Only’ bays on Moore 

Street, School Lane, Nelson Street (2No), Church Lane, Fleece Street and 
Smith Street have been allocated specifically to deal with the demands of 

the local industry on Drake Street.  All these ‘Loading Only’ bays will allow 
loading/unloading operations to be carried out in a controlled environment.      

 
6.8 A new night time Taxi Rank is to be located on Fleece Street adjacent to 

Packer Street.  This will be conveniently located to serve town centre 

revellers and will give back up to the existing full time Taxi Rank situated 
on Packer Street. 

 
6.9 Parking provision for the disabled is to be retained on Fleece Street 

adjacent to King Street. 

 
6.10 To accommodate the introduction of the new Metrolink and the necessary 

alterations to the infrastructure on Maclure Road, Drake Street and Smith 
Street, ‘Prohibition of Driving’ (POD) Orders are required on Henry Street, 
Livsey Street, Fleece Street and River Street.  All but the River Street POD 

will have an exemption for cycles.  ‘Prohibition of Vehicles’ Orders are also 
required on Drake Street between Water Street and South Parade.  The 

only exemptions on this section of Drake Street relate to tramcars, buses 
and statutory undertakers. 

  

6.11 The introduction of Metrolink along Drake Street necessitates Oldham Road 
being made one-way from Drake Street to Milnrow Road.  However, this 

has the advantage of allowing the extra Pay and Display parking as 
mentioned earlier. 

 To deter vehicles short cutting towards the town centre, Moore Street is 

being made ‘one-way’ from Back Drake Street to Drake Street, towards 
Drake Street.  A contra flow cycle lane is being provided in the opposite 

direction from Drake Street to Back Drake Street to ensure that cyclists do 
not have to use a more circuitous route to the town centre. 

 

6.12 Due to Moore Street’s close proximity to the new traffic signals at Drake 
Street/ Maclure Road, vehicles will be prohibited from turning right from 

Moore Street into Drake Street.  

Page 195



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 4 of 9 

 

 
6.13 All the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders will regulate the movement and 

parking of vehicles and assist with the movement of pedestrians to create a 
safe environment for all road users, consequently reducing the risk of 

accidents and injuries. 
 

7 Objections received and related responses of the Director of 

 Highways: 
 

7.1 Six letters of objection have been received in total. 
 
7.2 Issues Raised by  

 Mr S Hussain, Just Beds, 126 Drake Street, Rochdale, OL16 1PN. 
 Mr A Abbas, 128 Drake Street, Rochdale, OL16 1PN. 

 Mr B Ahmad, A and Sons, 130 Drake Street, Rochdale, OL16 1PN. 
 
7.2.1 The Orders shown below have been extracted from Appendix ‘A’ and are 

 those  proposed in the street location where the objections relate:- 
 

Proposed No Waiting At Any Time 
 

 Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 
 the north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 51 

metres south west of its junction with School Lane  
  

 the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction 
with School Lane to a point 42 metres north of its junction with School Lane 

 

 Proposed No Loading at Any Time 
 

 Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 
  the north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 51 

metres south west of its junction with School Lane  
  

 the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction 
with School Lane to a point 42 metres  north of its junction with School 
Lane 

 
 Loading Only Bay (any Class of Vehicles) 

 
 Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 

 the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction 
with School Lane for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 196



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 5 of 9 

 

Revocation of No Waiting At Any Time 
 

 Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 

 the west side from a point 30 metres north of its junction with School Lane 
to a point 35 metres east of its junction with Ann Street 
 

7.2.2 The owners of the above three shops, speaking on behalf of the five shops 
between No’s 120 and 130 Drake Street, strongly object to the small length 

of the proposed ‘loading only’ bay outside their premises.  All the shops 
have regular deliveries on a daily basis, some of which are made by large 
heavy goods vehicles and all the shops deal with very heavy and bulky 

items.  They say that the bus stop location does not help in alleviating the 
problems for deliveries. 

 At the end of the working day the shop owners say that they load up their 
vehicles for evening deliveries and say that this will be impossible with the 
limited amount of space available for loading. 

 
 They say that more space needs to be allocated for loading and unloading 

operations otherwise their businesses could be destroyed. 
 

7.2.3 Response of the Director of Highways: 
  

 Allocation of road space on the length of Drake Street concerned, between 

Moore Street and School Lane, was always going to be difficult with the 
competing demands of the shops and businesses, the introduction of the 

new traffic signals at Milnrow Road/School Lane and the necessity to keep 
the free flow of traffic along Drake Street (A 640).  Schedules and plans 
showing the restrictions as advertised are enclosed (Appendix ‘A’ and 

Appendix ‘B’). 
 

After advertising the proposals and distributing the consultation leaflets, it 
soon became apparent that the shop owners between No’s 120 and 130 
Drake Street were not happy with the proposed loading/unloading facilities.   

 
In light of this, a meeting took place on site with the shop owners on 

Monday 8th August; Councillor Wazir was in attendance.  The shop owners 
informed us of their issues and were advised to put their objections in 
writing before the 25th August 2011 (the end of the objection period); 

which they duly did. 
 

A further two site meetings have since taken place with all five shop owners 
where their concerns were discussed in detail and two revised plans have 
been produced with a view to resolving all their loading issues. 

 
At the last meeting, which took place on 15th September 2011, agreement 

was reached on a solution that satisfies their loading/unloading 
requirements without compromising the free flow of traffic on the approach 
to the new traffic signals at Milnrow Road.  A schedule and plan showing 

the agreed layout is enclosed (Appendix ‘C’). 
 

Page 197



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 6 of 9 

 

Since this meeting, a letter has been received from Councillor Wazir stating 
that the shop owners have had second thoughts.  They except the morning 

peak hour loading restrictions but now want the evening peak hour loading 
restrictions removed from the scheme. 

 
We have been informed by Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and 
MPT that removing the evening peak hour loading restrictions would 

severely compromise the capacity of the proposed traffic signalised junction 
of Drake Street and Milnrow Road causing major queuing problems which 

would impact badly on the signalised junction of Drake Street and Maclure 
Road.  In affect, the junctions would not work. 
 

The Director of Highways has exhausted all possible alternatives to the 
loading/unloading issues on this length of Drake Street and considers that 

the latest amended plan, Appendix ‘C’, caters for the demands of the shops 
and therefore recommends its approval by Cabinet. 
 

7.3 Issues Raised by Joan Waddell (Church Clerk) on behalf of Christian 
 Science Church & Reading Rooms, 130B Drake Street, Rochdale, 

 OL16 1PN 
  

7.3.1 The proposed Orders shown in 6.2.1 above, between Moore Street and 
 School Lane, also relate to this objection:- 
 

7.3.2 Joan Waddell states that the Church has some members with disabled 
badges who presently park their vehicles outside the Church on the double 

yellow lines.  She asks if these members will be able to continue parking on 
Drake Street with the proposed new restrictions.  Parking across the road 
or at the back of the premises is not an option for them. 

 
7.3.3 Response of the Director of Highways: 

 
See first two paragraphs of item 7.2.3 above for general background 
information. 

 
Joan Waddell is acting as representative for the Church regarding their 

objection to the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders. 
 
Two discussions have taken place with Joan Waddell and a number of  

e-mails have been exchanged with a view to resolving the Church’s parking 
issues. 

 
The Church has discussed the latest amended plan, Appendix ‘C’, and 
except that it caters for most of their needs.  They have now written a 

letter formally withdrawing their objection (Appendix ‘D’) on the 
understanding that the restrictions are approved as amended plan 

Appendix ‘C’ and the existing parking on Moore Street, north of Back Drake 
Street is retained. 
 

 

Page 198



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 7 of 9 

 

7.4 Issues Raised by John L Wild (PKW LLP), 150 Drake Street, 
 Rochdale, OL16 1PX. 

 
7.4.1 The proposed Order shown below has been extracted from Appendix ‘B’ and 

 is the Order to which the objection relates:- 
 
 One Way Working and Contra Flow Cycle Lane Order 

 
 One Way Working 

 Moore Street, Rochdale, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 
 From its junction with Back Drake Street to its junction with Drake Street in 

 a south easterly direction. 
 

 Contra Flow Cycle Lane 
 Moore Street, Rochdale, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 

 A 1.5 metre wide strip of highway adjacent to and parallel to the south 
 westerly kerb line of Moore Street, from its junction with Drake Street to its 

 junction with Back Drake Street in a north westerly direction. 
 

7.4.2 Their business requires clear access to Caton Street and this has always 
been allowed via Moore Street and Back Drake Street.  They ask what 
connection has making Moore Street one-way from Back Drake Street to 

Drake Street (with a contra flow cycle lane) got to do with Metrolink?  They 
say that not being able to access Moore Street from Drake Street will lead 

to angst.   
 
 With regard to Back Drake Street, they say that removing parking from 

Maclure Road has caused drivers to park their vehicles along Back Drake 
Street throughout the working day.  They also point out that vehicle sales 

and vehicle repairs businesses park vehicles for sale and repair on Back 
Drake Street.  Access to Caton Street is also made more difficult due to a 
car wash business adjacent to Norman Leisure Snooker Hall with a plethora 

of vehicles waiting to be cleaned parked on the highway. 
 

 They request that more thought should be given to providing double yellow 
lines all along Back Drake Street. 

 

7.4.3 Response of the Director of Highways: 
 

 With the bottom end of Drake Street, between Water Street and South 
Parade, being proposed for trams only, Moore Street is being made ‘one-
way’ from Back Drake Street to Drake Street, in that direction, to deter 

vehicles short cutting towards the town centre.  A contra flow cycle lane is 
being provided in the opposite direction from Drake Street to Back Drake 

Street to ensure that cyclists do not have to use a more circuitous route to 
access the town centre.  Back Drake Street and Caton Street can still be 
accessed off Drake Street via Church Stile, Ann Street and School Lane. 

 
 The perceived parking problems relating to Back Drake Street are not in 

themselves an objection to any of the Metrolink Phase 3B proposed orders.  

Page 199



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 8 of 9 

 

The parking and any proposed waiting restrictions would therefore have to 
be dealt with as a separate issue, if it is felt that a proper investigation is 

required. 
 

7.5 Issues Raised by Integrated Fabrications Limited, Drill Hall, Baron 
 Street, Rochdale, OL16 1SJ. 
 

7.5.1 The proposed Order shown below has been extracted from Appendix ‘B’ and 
 is the Order to which the objection relates:- 

 
 Prohibition of Driving (except cyclists) 
 

 Livsey Street, Rochdale, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 

 From its junction with Oldham Road for a distance of 6 metres in a north 
 easterly direction. 
 

7.5.2 As a local business, the company object to the proposed closure of Livsey 
 Street; they are concerned that the closure will severely prohibit the 

 operation of the business.  
 

 Baron Street is already significantly restricted by its narrow road width 
 without any defined turning area.  However, with the businesses location 
 away from the main carriageway, the company do not consider it normally 

 causes any highway safety issues.   
 

 If the proposed closure is implemented, the goods vehicles to and from 
 their premises (which include LGV’s and HGV’s) would not be able to gain 
 access without serious disruption to the highway network and in their 

 opinion it would affect the safety of pedestrians. 
 

 They welcome the introduction of waiting restrictions on Baron Street and 
 Livsey Street as they will assist in manoeuvring the smaller delivery 
 vehicles; however access will still be a major problem for the larger HGV’s. 

 
 Should the closure go ahead, they feel that the viability of the business will 

 be affected and whilst their preferred option is to remain at the current 
 site, the proposed closure may make this untenable. 
 

 Whilst not directly relevant to the objection, they would like to raise the 
 issue of the large increase in vehicles short cutting along Baron Street since 

 the work on Drake Street began.  They feel that the Council should address 
 this issue as it significantly affects the operation of the business and causes 
 safety issues for their employees when entering and leaving the premises.   

 
 They state that they are a well established company bringing in significant 

 revenue to Rochdale.  They maintain a highly skilled workforce of some 
 thirty  local people and offer apprenticeships and employment opportunities 
 for the young unskilled. 

 
 They requested that in view of their objection a meeting should be 

 arranged at  the factory to discuss the matter further. 

Page 200



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 9 of 9 

 

 
7.5.3 Response of the Director of Highways: 

 
 In light of their objection and with a view to resolving their issues, a 

 meeting took place at the factory with Mr D Hampton (their Managing 
 Director) on Wednesday 21st September 2011, where the companies 
 concerns were discussed in detail. 

 
 It was explained to him that the proposed ‘At Any Time’ No Waiting and No 

 Loading/Unloading restrictions on Livsey Street and Baron Street would 
 allow HGV’s to be able to manoeuvre around the junction to access their 
 factory. 

 
 The advantages that the closure of Livsey Street at Oldham Road would 

 have for the company was also explained to him, the main one being that it 
 would completely stop the short cutting that they are so concerned about 
 making this end of Baron Street very quiet to traffic, consequently 

 enhancing their loading and unloading operations. 
 

 Mr Hampton appreciates the advantages that the closure would give and 
 proposed that he carries out some trial runs with HGV’s on a Sunday to see 

 if the  manoeuvre works.  No vehicles park near the junction of Livsey 
 Street and Baron Street on a Sunday, therefore it would reflect the 
 conditions that would exist if the proposed closure and waiting/loading 

 restrictions where in place. 
 

 At the time of writing this report, Mr Hampton had still not carried out the 
 proposed trial runs.  It is anticipated that these trial runs will be carried out 
 prior to the Informal Cabinet meeting on 27th October and the outcome of 

 these and a recommendation will be presented at the meeting for 
 discussion, prior to the actual Cabinet meeting. 

 
8 Personnel Implications 
 

8.1 None. 
 

9 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications to Rochdale MBC.  All costs associated 

 with the proposed delivery of the Traffic Regulation Orders will be funded 
 by Transport for Greater Manchester (Metrolink). 

 
10 Legal Implications 
 

10.1 There is nothing further to add to the report. 
 

 
11 Conclusions 
 

11.1 The Committee is asked to decide whether the Traffic Regulation Orders 
 outlined in Appendix ‘A’ and ‘B’ together with the amendments outlined in 

 Appendix ‘C’ of this report should be approved by Cabinet. 

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX ‘A’ 

ALL PARKING RELATED TRAFFIC

REGULATION ORDERS AS ADVERTISED 

Page 203



2

Schedule No.1.1 

No Waiting at Any Time 

Baron Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from its junction with Livsey Street for a distance of 15 

metres in a northerly direction 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  the westerly side from its junction with Fleece Street for a distance of 43 metres 

in a southerly direction. 

(nii) the westerly side from its junction with Nelson Street for a distance of 5 metres in 
a northerly direction. 

(niii) the easterly side from a point 37 metres north of its junction with Nelson Street 
for a distance of 13 metres in a northerly direction. 

(niv) the easterly side from a point 79m north of its junction with Nelson Street to its 
junction with Fleece Street. 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  the north easterly side from its junction with Water Street for a distance of 75 

metres in a south easterly direction 

(nii) the north easterly side from its north westerly junction with Junction Alley to its 
south easterly junction with Junction Alley 

(niii) the north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 51 metres 
south west of its junction with School Lane  

(niv) the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction with 
School Lane to a point 42 metres  north of its junction with School Lane 

(nv) the south westerly side from a point 77 metres north west of its junction with 
School Lane to its junction with South Parade 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  the southerly side from its junction with Packer Street to its junction with Church 

Lane

(nii) the northerly side from a point 47 metres east of its junction with King Street to its 
junction with Church Lane 

(niii) the northerly side from its junction with King Street for a distance of 5 metres in 
an easterly direction 

(niv)  the northerly side from its junction with King Street for a distance of 5 metres in  a 
westerly direction 

Henry Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(nv)   the north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to its termination in an 

easterly direction including the whole of the turning head

Page 204



3

(nvi)   the south easterly side from a point 88 metres north east of its junction with Ann 
Street to its termination in a north easterly direction 

(nvii)   the north easterly side its termination for its entire length 

Livsey Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  the northerly side from its junction with Baron Street for a distance of 15 metres 

in an easterly direction 

(nii) the southerly side from its junction with Baron Street to its junction with Pickup 
Street

Milnrow Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  both sides from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with Oldham Road 

Moore Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  the north easterly side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 10 

metres in a north westerly direction 

(nii) the north easterly side from its junction with Back Drake Street for a distance of 5 
metres in a south easterly direction 

Nelson Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 8 metres in 

an easterly direction 

(nii) the northerly side from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Church Lane to 
a point 64 metres east of its junction with Church Lane 

(niii) the southerly side from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 37 metres 
in an easterly direction 

(niv) the southerly side from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Church Lane to 
a point 71 metres east of its junction with Church Lane, including the stopped 
end

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the south westerly side from  its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 22 

metres in a south easterly direction 

(nii) the south westerly side from a point 89 metres south east of its junction with 
Drake Street to its  junction with Milnrow Road 

(niii) the north easterly side from a point 22 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley for a distance of 3 metres in a south easterly direction 

(niv) the north easterly side from a point 45 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley for a distance of 6 metres in a south easterly direction 

(nv) the north easterly side from a point 106 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley to its junction with Milnrow Road 

River Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni)  both sides, from its junction with Water Street to its termination at a point 2 

metres east of Drake Street 

Page 205



4

School Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the southerly side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 13 metres 

in a westerly direction 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(nii) the southerly side from its junction with Drake Street to a point 36 metres west of 

its junction with Faulkner Street 

(niii) the southerly side from  its junction with Faulkner Street to a point 11 metres west 
of its junction with Faulkner Street 

(niv) the southerly side from  its junction with Faulkner Street to a point 87 metres west 
of its junction with Milton Street 

Schedule No.3.20 

Waiting Limited Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 2 Hours, Return Prohibited Within 1Hour 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the south easterly side from a point 37 metres south west of its junction with 

Maclure Road to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Milkstone Road 

Schedule No.4.1 

No Loading at Any Time 

Baron Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from its junction with Livsey Street for a distance of 15 

metres in a northerly direction 

(nii) the  south westerly side from its junction with Livsey Street to a point opposite the 
north westerly kerbline of Hill Street 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the westerly side from its junction with Fleece Street for a distance of 43 metres 

in a southerly direction

(nii) the easterly side from a point 79m north of its junction with Nelson Street to its 
junction with Fleece Street 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the easterly side from its junction with Oldham Road to a point 25 metres south 

west of its junction with Maclure Road 

(nii) the north easterly side from its junction with Water Street to its junction with 
Smith Street 

(niii) the north easterly side from its junction with Water Street for a distance of 75 
metres in a south easterly direction 

(niv) the north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 51 metres 
south west of its junction with School Lane  

(nv) the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction with 
School Lane to a point 42 metres  north of its junction with School Lane 

Page 206



5

(nvi) the south westerly side from a point 77 metres north west of its junction with 
School Lane to its junction with South Parade 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from a point 47 metres east of its junction with King Street to its 

junction with Church Lane 

(nii) the southerly side from its junction with Packer Street to its junction with Church 
Lane

Henry Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north westerly side from its termination for a distance of 35 metres in a south 

westerly direction including the whole of the turning head  

(nii) the south easterly side from a point 88 metres north east of its junction with Ann 
Street to its termination in a north easterly direction 

(niii) the north easterly side its termination for its entire length 

Livsey Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from its junction with Baron Street for a distance of 15 metres 

in an easterly direction 

(nii) the southerly side from its junction with Baron Street to its junction with Pickup 
Street

Maclure Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the westerly side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 39 metres in 

a southerly direction

Milnrow Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) both sides from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with Oldham Road 

Moore Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 10 

metres in a north westerly direction 

(nii) the north easterly side from its junction with Back Drake Street for a distance of 5 
metres in a south easterly direction 

(niii) the south westerly side from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with 
Back Drake Street 

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the south westerly side from  its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 22 

metres in a south easterly direction 

(nii) the south westerly side from a point 89 metres south east of its junction with 
Drake Street to its  junction with Milnrow Road 

(niii) the north easterly side from a point 106 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley to its junction with Milnrow Road 

Page 207



6

River Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly, north easterly and easterly side from its junction with Water Street 

to its termination at a point 2 metres east of Drake Street  

(nii) the westerly side from its junction with Water Street for a distance of 15 metres in 
a northerly direction 

School Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with 

Greenwood Street 

(nii) the southerly side from its junction with Drake Street  for a distance of 13 metres 
in a westerly direction 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(niii) the southerly side from its junction with Drake Street to a point 36 metres west of 

its junction with Faulkner Street 

(niv) the southerly side from  its junction with Faulkner Street to a point 11 metres 
west of its junction with Faulkner Street 

(nv) the southerly side from  its junction with Faulkner Street to a point 87 metres 
west of its junction with Milton Street 

Schedule No 5.8 
No Loading Mon-Sat 10.00am-6.00pm 

Nelson Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 8 metres in 

an easterly direction 

(nii) the northerly side from a point 18 metres east of its junction with Church Lane to 
a point 64 metres east of its junction with Church Lane 

(niii) the southerly side from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 37 metres 
in an easterly direction 

(niv) the southerly side from a point 52 metres east of its junction with Church Lane to 
a point 71 metres east of its junction with Church Lane, including the stopped 
end

Schedule No.7.11 

Loading Only Bay (any Class of Vehicles) 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the easterly side from a point 50m north of its junction with Nelson Street for a 

distance of 29 metres in a northerly direction. 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the south westerly side from a point 61 metres north of its junction with School 

Lane for a distance of 16 metres in a north westerly direction 
(nii) the north easterly side from a point 75 metres south east of its junction with 

Water Street to its junction with Junction Alley 

Page 208



7

(niii) the north westerly side from a point 41 metres south west of its junction with 
School Lane for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction 

(niv) the southerly side from a point 25 metres south west of its junction with Maclure 
Road for a distance of 12 metres in a south westerly direction 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from a point 19 metres east of its junction with King Street for a 

distance of 28 metres in an easterly direction. 

Moore Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from a point 5 metres south east of its junction with Back 

Drake Street to a point 10 metres north west of its junction with Drake Street 

Nelson Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from a point 8 metres east of its junction with Church Lane for 

a distance of 10 metres in an easterly direction 

(nii) the southerly side from a point 37 metres east of its junction with Church Lane for 
a distance of 15 metres in an easterly direction 

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from a point 51 metres south east of its junction with 

Junction Alley for a distance of 28 metres in a south easterly direction 

School Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the southerly side from a point 13 metres west of its junction with Drake Street to 

a point 14 metres east of its junction with Back Drake Street 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the southerly side from a point 11 metres west of its junction with Faulkner Street 

to a point 36 metres west of its junction with Faulkner Street 

Schedule No 7.14 
Taxi Rank No Waiting 7pm-5am Except Taxis 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Packer Street to 

a point 5 metres west of its junction with King Street 

Schedule No 9.1
Disabled Parking Place, 24hr Any Day 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the northerly side from a point 5 metres east of its junction with King Street for a 

distance of 14 metres in an easterly direction. 

Schedule No. 9.7 

Pay & Display Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Maximum Stay Up To 40 Minutes 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the westerly side from a point 43 metres south of its junction with Fleece Street to 

a point 5 metres north of its junction with Nelson Street 

Page 209



8

(nii) the easterly side from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Nelson Street 
for a distance of 27 metres in a northerly direction 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 

(ni) the northerly side from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Packer Street to 
a point 5 metres west of its junction with King Street 

Schedule No.9.8 

Pay & Display Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Maximum Stay Up To 10 Hours 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the south westerly side from a point 42 metres north of its junction with School 

Lane for a distance of 19 metres in a north westerly direction. 

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ni) the north easterly side from its junction with Junction Alley for a distance of 22 

metres in a south easterly direction 

(nii) the north easterly side from a point 25 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley for a distance of 20 metres in a south easterly direction 

(niii) the north easterly side from a point 79 metres south east of its junction with 
Junction Alley for a distance of 27 metres in a south easterly direction 

(niv) the south westerly side from a point 22 metres south east of its junction with 
Drake Street for a distance of 67 metres in a south easterly direction 

(ii)  Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of 
Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008, 
as follows:- 

Schedule No.1.1 
No Waiting At Any Time 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ii) the east side from its junction with Fleece Street to a point 43 metres south of its 

junction with Fleece Street 

(v) the west side from its junction with Nelson Street to a point 2 metres north of its 
junction with Nelson Street 

Constantine Road (central Island), Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
both sides for its entire circumference 

Drake Street (Central Island), Milkstone & Deeplish Ward  
both sides for its entire circumference . 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
 (v) the north side from its junction with Ann Street for a distance of 34 metres in an 

easterly direction 
(viii) the north-east side from its junction with Water Street to its junction with Oldham 

Road

Page 210



9

(x) the south side from its junction with Fleece Street to a point 23 metres south-east 
of its junction with Great George Street 

(xiii) the west side from a point 30 metres north of its junction with School Lane to a 
point 35 metres east of its junction with Ann Street 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the north side from its junction with Drake Street to a point 12 metres west of its 

junction with Drake Street 

(iii) the south side from its junction with Packer Street to its junction with Drake Street 

Henry Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ii) the north side from its junction with Ann Street to its junction with Maclure Road 

(niii) the south easterly side from a point 88 metres north east of its junction with Ann 
Street for a distance of 7 metres in a north easterly direction. 

(niv)  the south easterly side from its junction with Maclure Road for a distance of 15 
metres in a south westerly direction 

Livsey Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) both sides from its junction with Oldham Road to a point 27 metres east of its 

junction with Oldham Road 

Milnrow Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(iii) the north side from its junction with Oldham Road to a point 17 metres west of its 

junction with Oldham Road 

(iv) the north side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 7 metres in an 
easterly direction 

(v) the south side from its junction with Oldham Road to its junction with Drake 
Street

Nelson Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) both sides from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 63 metres in an 

easterly direction including the turning head 

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the east side from its junction with Livsey Street to a point 13 metres north of its 

junction with Livsey Street 

(ii) the east side from its junction with Livsey Street to its junction with Milnrow Road 

(vi) the east side from its junction with Junction Alley to its junction with Drake Street 

(xii) the west side from its junction with Milnrow Road to its junction with Drake Street 

River Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the east side from its junction with Faulkner Street for a distance of 32 metres in 
an easterly direction 

Page 211



10

School Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(ii) the south side from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 7 metres in a 

westerly direction 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(iii) the south side from a point 51 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street to a 

point 57 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street 

(iv) the south side the central island situated approximately 50 metres north east of 
Faulkner Street, northerly, westerly and easterly side, a distance of 
approximately 15 metres . 

(viii) the south side from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with Faulkner 
Street

Schedule No 3.4 

Waiting Limited Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 1 Hour, No Return Within 1 Hour 

School Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(iii)  the south side from a point 14 metres east of its junction with Back Drake Street 

to a point 7 metres west of its junction with Drake Street 

Schedule No.3.5 

Waiting Limited Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 20 Minutes. No Return Within 40 Minutes 

Milnrow Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the north side from a point 17 metres west of its junction with Oldham Road to a point 30 
metres west of its junction with Oldham Road 

Schedule No.3.20 

Waiting Limited Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 2 Hours, Return Prohibited Within 1Hour 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the south side from a point 25 metres south-west of its junction with Maclure 

Road to a point 33 metres east of its junction with Milkstone Road 

(ii) the south side from a point 52 metres west of its junction with Maclure Road    for 
a distance of 30 metres in an easterly direction 

Henry Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 

(nii)  south easterly side from a point 95 metres north east of its junction with Ann 
Street to a point 15 metres south west of its junction with Maclure Road 

Schedule No.3.25 

Waiting limited 1 hour, no return within 1 hour 

Moore Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward  
(iv) the north-east side from its junction with Back Drake Street to a point 21 

metres south-east of its junction with Back Drake Street 

Page 212



11

Schedule No.4.1 

No Loading At Any Time 

Constantine Road (central Island), Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
both sides for its entire circumference 

Drake Street (central Island), Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
both sides for its entire circumference. 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the west side from its junction with Great George Street to a point 25 metres north of its 
junction with Great George Street 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 

(v) the south side from a point 65 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street for 
a distance of 10 metres in an northerly direction 

(vii) the south side from a point 51 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street to a 
point 57 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street 

(viii) the south side the central island situated approximately 50 metres north east of 
Faulkner Street, northerly, westerly and easterly side, a distance of 
approximately 15 metres. 

Schedule No.5.4 

No Loading 7.30am-9.30am And 4.00pm-6.30pm 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the south side from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with Faulkner Street 

Schedule No 5.8 

No Loading Mon-Sat 10.00am - 6.00pm 

Nelson Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
both sides from its junction with Church Lane for a distance of 63 metres in an easterly 
direction including the turning head 

Schedule No.7.1 

Loading Only Bay 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the west side from its junction with Fleece Street to a point 30 metres inner side of its 
junction with Fleece Street 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the south side from a point 7 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street for a distance of 18 
metres in an easterly direction

Page 213



12

Schedule No.7.5 

Taxi Rank No Waiting Anytime Except Taxis 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the north side from a point 26 metres west of its junction with Drake Street for a distance 
of 18 metres in a westerly direction 

Smith Street (central Island), Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the north side from a point 25 metres east of its junction with Constantine Road to a 
point 85 metres east of its junction with Constantine Road 

Schedule No 7.7 
Taxi Rank No Waiting 7.00pm – 3.00am Except Taxis. 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the west side from a point 2 metres north of its junction with Nelson Street for a distance 
of 18 metres in a northerly direction 

Schedule No 9.1 

Disabled Parking Place 24hr any day 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the north side from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Drake Street for a distance 
of 13 metres in a westerly direction 

Schedule No.9.7 

Pay & Display Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Maximum Stay Up To 40 Minutes 

Church Lane, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the east side from a point 43 metres south of its junction with Fleece Street for a 

distance of 31 metres in a southerly direction 

(ii) the west side from its junction with Fleece Street to a point 30 metres south of its 
junction with Fleece Street 

(iii) the west side from a point 20 metres north of its junction with Nelson Street for a 
distance of 28 metres in a northerly direction 

Fleece Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the north side from its junction with King Street to a point 23 metres east of its 

junction with King Street 

(ii) the north side from a point 43 metres west of its junction with Drake Street to a 
point 12 metres east of its junction with Packer Street 

Smith Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
(i) the inner side The central island situated approximately 50 metres north east of 

Faulkner Street. Southerly side, full length for a distance of approximately 11 
metres 

(ii) the south side from a point 25 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street for 
a distance of 26 metres in an easterly direction 

Page 214



13

(iii)     the south side from a point 57 metres east of its junction with Faulkner Street for a 
distance of 8 metres in an easterly direction 

Schedule No.9.8 

Pay & Display Mon-Sat 8am-6pm Maximum Stay Up To 10 Hours 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the west side from a point 23 metres south-east of its junction with Great George Street 
to a point 30 metres north of its junction with School Lane 

Oldham Road, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 
the east side from its junction with Junction Alley to a point 13 metres south of its 
junction with Livsey Street 

Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



APPENDIX ‘B’ 

ALL MOVING OFFENCE RELATED

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS AS  

ADVERTISED (NOTICES SHOWN BELOW) 

Page 219



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(MOORE STREET, ROCHDALE)

(MOVEMENT RESTRICTION – ONE WAY WORKING
AND CONTRA FLOW CYCLE LANE)

ORDER      

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order, the effect of which would be to  

1.  introduce a one way working order on: 

Moore Street, Rochdale, from its junction with Back Drake Street to its junction with Drake 
Street in a south easterly direction 

2.  introduce a contra flow cycle lane on: 

Moore Street, Rochdale, a 1.5 metre wide strip of highway adjacent to and parallel to the 
south westerly kerbline of Moore Street, from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with 
Back Drake Street in a north westerly direction. 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to emergency vehicles and 
statutory undertakers. 

A copy of the proposed Order, a map showing the length of road affected, together with the 
Council’s Statement of Reasons, may be inspected at the Office of the Service Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and the Customer Services Centre, Floor 
2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, during normal office hours. 

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 3, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1LQ to reach 
the Council on or before 25

th
 August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal & Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 220



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(RIVER STREET, ROCHDALE)

(PROHIBITION OF DRIVING) ORDER         

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order the effect of which would be to prohibit driving on River Street, Rochdale, from its 
junction with Drake Street for a distance of 2 metres in a north easterly direction. 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to emergency vehicles and 
statutory undertakers. 

A copy of the draft Order and a map showing the length of road concerned, together with the 
Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the Service 
Director’s Office - Legal and Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and the Customer 
Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale during normal office 
hours.

Any objections or representations regarding the proposed Order, stating the grounds on 
which they are made, must be submitted in writing and forwarded to 
trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to Network Management, Floor 3, 
Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1LQ to reach the Council on or before 25

th

August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 221



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(DRAKE STREET, ROCHDALE)

(PROHIBITION OF VEHICLES) ORDER         

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order the effect of which would be to prohibit vehicles from proceeding along:- 

(i) Drake Street, Rochdale – from its junction with Water Street to its junction with 
South Parade in a north westerly direction 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to tramcars, 
emergency vehicles and statutory undertakers. 

(ii) Drake Street, Rochdale – from its junction with South Parade to its junction with 
Water Street in a south easterly direction 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to tramcars, buses, 
emergency vehicles and statutory undertakers. 

A copy of the draft Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, together with 
the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the Service 
Director’s Office - Legal and Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and the Customer 
Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale during normal office 
hours.

Any objections or representations regarding the proposed Order, stating the grounds on 
which they are made, must be submitted in writing and forwarded to 
trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to Network Management, Floor 3, 
Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1LQ to reach the Council on or before 25

th

August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 222



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(PART OF (THE COUNTY BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (VARIOUS STREETS) (TRAFFIC 
REGULATION) (NO. 1) ORDER 1966))

(NO RIGHT TURN FROM RIVER STREET INTO DRAKE STREET, ROCHDALE)

(REVOCATION) ORDER

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order, the effect of which would be to revoke that part of The County Borough of Rochdale 
(Various Streets) (Traffic Regulation) (No. 1) Order 1966 mentioned in the first column of the 
third schedule to that Order relating to the prohibition of vehicles driving in River Street, 
Rochdale from making a right turn into Drake Street, Rochdale, specified in the second 
column of the said schedule. 

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the length of road concerned, a copy of the 
Order to be amended, together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order 
may be inspected at the Office of the Service Director – Legal & Democratic Services, Town 
Hall, Rochdale and Customer Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, 
Rochdale during normal office hours. 

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 3, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1LQ to reach 
the Council on or before 25

th
 August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal & Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 223



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(HENRY STREET, LIVSEY STREET AND FLEECE STREET, ROCHDALE)

(PROHIBITION OF DRIVING) ORDER         

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order the effect of which would be to prohibit driving on:- 

Henry Street, Rochdale - from its junction with Maclure Road for a distance of 2 metres in a 
south westerly direction 

Livsey Street, Rochdale – from its junction with Oldham Road for a distance of 6 metres in a 
north easterly direction 

Fleece Street, Rochdale – from its junction with Drake Street for a distance of 12 metres in a 
westerly direction 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to pedal cyclists, emergency 
vehicles and statutory undertakers. 

A copy of the draft Order and a map showing the length of roads concerned, together with the 
Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the Service 
Director’s Office - Legal and Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and the Customer 
Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, during normal office 
hours.

Any objections or representations regarding the proposed Order, stating the grounds on 
which they are made, must be submitted in writing and forwarded to 
trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to Network Management, Floor 3, 
Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1LQ to reach the Council on or before 25

th

August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 224



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(MOORE STREET, ROCHDALE)

(PROHIBITION OF RIGHT TURN) ORDER      

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order the effect of which would be to prohibit vehicles from turning right from Moore Street 
into Drake Street, Rochdale. 

The proposed Order would contain certain exemptions relating to vehicles being used for Fire 
Brigade, Ambulance or Police purposes. 

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the length of road concerned, together with 
the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the Office of 
the Service Director – Legal & Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and the Customer 
Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale during normal office 
hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 3, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1LQ to reach 
the Council on or before 25

th
 August 2011. 

Dated this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal & Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 225



BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

(OLDHAM ROAD, ROCHDALE)

(ONE-WAY WORKING) ORDER      

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order the effect of which would be to introduce one-way working on:- 

Oldham Road, Rochdale – from its junction with Drake Street to its junction with Milnrow 
Road in a south easterly direction 

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the length of road concerned, together with 
the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order may be inspected at the Service 
Director’s Office - Legal and Democratic Services, Town Hall, Rochdale and Customer 
Services Centre, Floor 2, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale during normal office 
hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@impactpartnership.com or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 3, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1LQ to reach 
the Council on or before 25

th
 August 2011. 

Dated  this 3
rd

 day of August 2011 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 

Legal & Democratic Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 

Town Hall 
ROCHDALE 
OL16 1AB 

Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX ‘C’ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO DRAKE

STREET TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS. 

Page 231



No Waiting at Any Time 
Drake Street. 

The north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 33 metres north 
east of its junction with Moore Street (a Bus Stop Clearway is situated from a point 
10 metres north east of its junction with Moore Street to a point 33 metres north east 
of its junction with Moore Street). 

The north westerly side from a point 48 metres north east of its junction with Moore 
Street to a point 42 metres north of its junction with School Lane. 

No Loading at Any Time 
Drake Street. 

The north westerly side from its junction with Ann Street to a point 10 metres north 
east of its junction with Moore Street. 

The north westerly side from a point 65 metres north east of its junction with Moore 
Street to a point 42 metres north of its junction with School Lane. 

No Loading Monday to Saturday between 8.00 & 9.30am and between 4.30 & 
6.00pm.
Drake Street. 

The north westerly side from a point 48 metres north east of its junction with Moore 
Street to a point 65 metres north east of its junction with Moore Street. 

Loading Only Bay Monday to Saturday between 7.30am and 6.30pm. 

Drake Street, Milkstone & Deeplish Ward 

The north westerly side from a point 33 metres north east of its junction with Moore 
Street to a point 48 metres north east of its junction with Moore Street. 

Page 232



Page 233



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
Subject:   

Key Decisions – Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority and AGMA 
Executive Board 

  

Status:   

For Publication 

Report to:   

Cabinet 
   

Date:  

31st October 2011  

Report of: 
Chief Executive 

Report Author 
Email: 

mark.hardman@rochdale.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 01706 924704 

Cabinet Member: 
Leader of the Council 

Comments from  
Statutory Officers: 

Section 151 Officer  
Monitoring Officer  

Key Decision:   No 
 
Forward Plan   General Exception   Special Urgency    

 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 To present the decisions made by the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority and the AGMA Executive Board at the meetings held on 29th July 
and 30th September 2011. 

 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 The decisions made by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority and the 

AGMA Executive Board at the meetings held on 29th July and 30th 

September 2011 be noted. 
 

 
3. REPORT 
 

3.1 The AGMA Constitution requires the Leader of each member of the 
Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) to report back to 

their Authority on decisions taken at meetings of the AGMA Executive 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 237



 
Version Number:  

 
Page: 2 of 2 

 

Board.  There is therefore no alternate but to report to the Cabinet, and it 
was therefore not necessary to undertake consultation in the preparation of 

this report. 

 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

4.1 None – the report is presented for information. 
 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 None – the report is presented for information. 
 

 
6.  PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 None – the report is presented for information. 
 

 
7. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 
7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 

report. 

 
 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 
 
8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 

 
There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report. 

 
8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
 

There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this 
report. 

 
 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Reports in respect of the decisions 
taken at the AGMA Board meetings.  

Reports can be accessed via the links 
shown on each attached decision list. 

For further information about this report please contact Roger Ellis, Chief Executive, 

Rochdale MBC, Municipal Offices, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16  Tel: (01706) 925401 

 
Roger Ellis  

Chief Executive 
 
 

Page 238



GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 

DECISIONS MADE BY THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY AT 
ITS MEETING ON 29th JULY  2011 AT ROCHDALE TOWN HALL

Decisions published on 2nd August 2011 and will come into force from
4:00pm on the 9th August 2011, subject to Call-in, except for any urgent decisions. 

The process for call in of decisions is set out as an Appendix to this note, extracted from 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) Constitution. The address for the 
purposes of the schedule is that of the GMCA Secretary, c/o Wigan Investment Centre, 
Waterside Drive, Wigan, WN3 5BA; or by contacting: k.bond@agma.gov.uk

The reports detailed in this note can be accessed at the AGMA website via the following 
link:- http://www.agma.gov.uk/calendar/index.html

 1. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS (Agenda Item 4)

 In the light of the absence of any significant items on the Forward Plan for 
August, the Authority agreed to cancel the meeting planned for 26 August 2011. 

2. GREEN INVESTMENT BANK PROPOSAL (Agenda Item 5)

The Combined Authority AGREED to support the development of a submission 
to Government to locate the Green Investment Bank in Manchester; and to 
delegate to the Head of Paid Service the power to finalise the submission 
following consultation with the Chair and Vice chairs of the GMCA, the Chairs of 
the LEP and Strategy Board for Business Support, Trade and Inward Investment 
and AGMA Chief Executives. 

3. FIT FOR WORK SERVICE PILOT (Agenda Item 6)

 The Combined Authority considered a report which outlined the role of the Fit for 
Work Service and AGREED that the Authority should become the accountable 
body for the service from 2011-2013.. 

4. GREATER MANCHESTER CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY (Agenda Item 9)

 The Combined Authority considered as report which set out a Greater 
Manchester Climate Change Strategy and AGREED: 

1. to approve the Climate Change Strategy and the Executive Summary of the 
Strategy;

2. that an Implementation Plan for the Strategy for 2012-2014 be completed; 
and

3. that the International Best Practice target of 48% reduction in CO2 emissions 
by 2020 be incorporated into the Strategy. 

4. the suggested approach in the report to measuring and monitoring Greater 
Manchester's carbon emissions. 

Page 239



5. GMCA: COMPLIANCE WITH THE EQUALITIES ACT (Agenda Item 11)

 The Combined Authority AGREED: 

1. to formally adopt the ‘Building a Fair Greater Manchester’ Charter and 
Equality Objectives; previously agreed by the AGMA Executive Board in 
October 2009; and 

2. to support the continued approach to mainstreaming fairness and 
 inclusion actions into the work of the GMCA  

6. DATA PROTECTION NOTIFICATION AND PUBLIC RIGHTS OF ACCESS 
(Agenda Item 12)

   
The Combined Authority AGREED to approve a draft publication scheme in order 
to reflect the Authority's responsibilities under data protection notification and 
public rights of access under the Freedom of Information Act and the 
Environmental Information Regulations. 

7. TRANSPORT FOR GREATER MANCHESTER COMMITTEE (TfGMC). 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 15 JULY 2011 (Agenda Item 14)

 The Authority AGREED to confirm the following recommendations of TfGMC:- 

a) Policy Priorities and Political Engagement 2011-12

1) that the following Transport policy priorities for Greater Manchester be agreed 
as the authority's transport priorities:- 

 Bus remains the predominant mode of public transport in Greater 
Manchester, and has a very significant role to play in supporting the 
economy of Greater Manchester. However, problems stemming from the 
deregulation of bus services continue to inhibit the growth and 
development of bus services, particularly insofar as attempts to better 
integrate bus services is stymied by the current fragmented system. 
Whilst continuing to pursue tangible quality improvements to bus 
services through partnership means, TfGMC will examine the extent to 
which existing legislation can deliver the operation of a more efficient, 
integrated and sustainable bus network. Further to this, TfGMC will 
identify whether further legal powers or structural change may be 
needed to enable greater value for money to be secured from the 
substantial amounts of public subsidy invested in bus services, and that 
will allow fuller integration of bus services, including fares and ticketing, 
that will benefit passengers across Greater Manchester.  To this end, 
TfGMC was to work with the Competition Commission to advance its 
priorities for the bus network. 

 To secure the efficient delivery of the new extended Metrolink network. 

 TfGMC will continue to press Government for firm commitments on 
delivering the rail rolling stock which was required to satisfy current and 
future rail demand.  In addition, TfGMC was to focus on ensuring 
Greater Manchester secures the future rail services it requires through 
the rail re-franchising processes now underway.  TfGMC will also Page 240



continue to press Network Rail and Government on the three hugely 
important infrastructure schemes that affect Greater Manchester, namely 
electrification, Northern Hub and not least, High Speed Rail.

 Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) included a commitment to ‘review the 
prospects for rail station development.’ TfGMC will ensure that a review 
of new railway stations in Greater Manchester be undertaken quickly, 
with the focus being on identifying a limited number of deliverable and 
cost effective proposals. These will then be the subject of further 
development work and political engagement activity 

 An important priority for TfGMC will be to ensure that information 
regarding public transport services in Greater Manchester, in terms of 
timetables, services, etc was to be provided in accessible and user 
friendly forms.  The current Scheme of Information dates from 2001/2, 
predating the huge rise in mobile phone ownership and does not take 
account of the potential of providing data to third parties who make 
information available via web-based applications. Updating the Scheme 
also provide an opportunity to ensure maximum efficiency in the 
provision of paper-based information and ensure that the need for 
information in alternative formats is met.

 The development of Smartcard ticketing was underway but to achieve 
maximum benefits, improvements were needed in multi-operator and 
multi-modal ticketing. TfGMC will ensure that any new powers or 
arrangements that may be put in place as a result of the Competition 
Commission review were explored and fully utilised.   

 TfGMC will work with Districts to ensure the major schemes identified 
within the Greater Manchester Transport Fund and other major schemes 
were progressed.

 TfGMC will ensure that the Committee’s new, wider role was developed 
through the Highways Protocols, particularly in terms of reliability of the 
strategic network.  In addition, TfGMC will have an increasing role to 
play in the co-ordination of active travel and smarter choices activity

2) that a review of the statutory Ticketing Scheme for Greater Manchester be 
undertaken as a policy priority. 

3) that the accompanying programme of events set out in the report which will 
be used to help promote these policy priorities be supported. 

b) Strategic Rail Priorities for greater Manchester 2014-19

1) the strategic rail priorities for Control Period 5 (2014 – 2019), as set out in 
section 3 to the accompanying report. 

2) that the GMCA should formally write to:-

 The rail industry Planning Oversight Group; 

 Network Rail; 

 The Office of Rail Regulation; 

 The Department for Transport; and  
Page 241



 The rail industry generally, 

to set out those top-level Greater Manchester priorities and press for them 
to be included within formal plans for the period up until 2019. 

8. GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT FUND UPDATE AND CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT (Agenda item 15)

 The Combined Authority considered a report with an overall update on the fund 
and AGREED 

1. to approve the proposal in relation to the Queens Road Stop on the Bury line, 
as detailed in section 5 of the report, which includes up to £1.75 million of 
prudential borrowings that will be repaid from incremental net revenues 
generated from opening the new stop at Queens Road; and 

2. to approve the proposals in relation to the delivery of the Park and Ride 
package within the Greater Manchester Transport Fund, as set out in section 
4.38 of the report, which include up to £15.5 million of prudential borrowings, 
which were approved by the Combined Authority on 1 April 2011. 

9. HIGH SPEED RAIL CONSULTATION (Agenda Item 16)

 The Combined Authority considered a report setting out a proposed response to 
the Government's consultation on high speed rail and AGREED to delegate 
authority to the Chair and Vice Chairs of the Combined Authority to approve the 
final version of the response. 

10. METROLINK OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT (Agenda Item E2)

 The Combined Authority AGREED: 

1. to approve TfGM’s consent to the change in ownership of Stagecoach Metro 
link Limited and; 

2. to delegate authority to the Chief Executive TfGM; the Director of Finance & 
Corporate Services TfGM and the Metrolink Director TfGM, in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice Chairs of TfGMC, to complete the necessary legal 
documentation to conclude the process. 

Page 242



APPENDIX 

PART 5B - SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS FOR GMCA, TFGMC AND TFGM 

5. Call in of decisions 

5.1 Call in of decisions of GMCA and TfGMC 

(a) Members of the Scrutiny Pool appointed under this Protocol will 
have the power to call in:- 

(i) any decision of the GMCA; 

(ii) any major or strategic decision of the TfGMC which is 
taken by the TfGMC in accordance with the delegations 
set out in Part 3 Section B II of this Constitution. 

5.2 Publication of Notice of Decisions 

  (a) When:- 

(i) a decision is made by the GMCA; or  
(ii) a major or strategic decision is made by the TfGMC in 

accordance with the delegations set out in Part 3, Section 
B II of this Constitution;  

the decision shall be published, including where possible by 
electronic means, and shall be available from the normally within 
2 days of being made.   It shall be the responsibility of the 
Secretary to send electronic copies of the records of all such 
decisions to all members of the Scrutiny Pool within the same 
timescale.

(b) The notices referred to at subparagraph 5.2(a) above will bear 
the date on which they are published and will specify that the 
decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, as 
from 4.00 pm on the fifth day after the day on which the decision 
was published, unless 5 members of the Scrutiny Pool object to 
it and call it in. 

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



ASSOCIATION OF GREATER MANCHESTER AUTHORITIES 

DECISIONS MADE BY THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD AT ITS MEETING ON 
29th JULY 2011 AT ROCHDALE TOWN HALL

Decisions published on 2nd August 2011 and will come into force from
10th August 2011, subject to Call-in, except for any urgent decisions. 

The process for call in of decisions is set out as an Appendix to this note, extracted from 
AGMA’s constitution. The address for the purposes of the schedule is that of the AGMA 
Secretary, c/o Wigan Investment Centre, Waterside Drive, Wigan, WN3 5BA; or by 
contacting: k.bond@agma.gov.uk

The reports detailed in this note can be accessed at the AGMA website via the following 
link:- http://www.agma.gov.uk/calendar/index.html

1. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS (Agenda Item 4)

 In the light of the absence of any significant items on the Forward Plan for 
August, the Executive Board agreed to cancel the meeting planned for 26 August 
2011.

2. DRAFT NHS CONCORDAT BETWEEN AGMA AND NHS GREATER 
MANCHESTER (Agenda Item 5)

The Executive Board AGREED: 

1. to support the proposed Concordat, 

2. that an invite be made to the Chair and Chief Executive of Greater 
Manchester NHS to attend future AGMA Executive Board meetings; and 

3. to refer the process of consultation on PCT clustering arrangements to the 
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool for examination as to how such processes could 
be improved in future; and to request that the Scrutiny Pool report back to the 
Board on this issue. 

3. GM HEALTH COMMISSION (Agenda Item 6)

The Executive Board AGREED to approve a report which set out a revised 
vision, function and membership of the Greater Manchester Health Commission. 

4. AGMA: COMPLIANCE WITH THE EQUALITIES ACT (Agenda Item 8)

 The Executive Board AGREED: 

1. to formally adopt the ‘Building a Fair Greater Manchester’ Charter
      and Equality Objectives previously agreed by the AGMA Executive   
      Board in October 2009; and 

2. to support the continued approach to mainstreaming fairness and 
 inclusion actions into the work of the GMCA. 

Page 245



5. ELECTED MEMBER REPRESENTATION ON GMCA/AGMA COMMISSIONS 
FOR 2011/12 (Agenda item 9) 

 The Executive Board AGREED the following: 

Planning and 
Housing

Environment Health Public Protection 

Bolton Cliff Morris Linda Thomas

Bury Tony Isherwood Rishi Shori 

Manchester Paul Andrews Nigel Murphy Glyn Evans

Oldham David Hibbert Jean Stretton 

Rochdale Surinder Biant Barbara Todd 

Salford Derek Antrobus David Lancaster

Stockport Dave Goddard  John Pantall Shan Alexander 

Tameside Ged Cooney Barrie Holland Joe Kitchen 

Trafford Michael Cornes Linda Blackburn Michael Young 

Wigan David Molyneux  Keith Cunliffe  

6. GREATER MANCHESTER METROPOLITAN DEBT ADMINISTRATION FUND 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY AND FINAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
(Agenda Item 11)

 The Board agreed to approve the final accounts of the fund for 2011/12. 

7. IMPROVEMENT & EFFICIENCY PROGRESS UPDATE (Agenda Item 12)

 The Executive Board received a report which provided an update on progress 
within the AGMA Improvement and Efficiency programme and AGREED: 

1. the progress made to date, including the completion of ‘formal’ sign in for 
tranche 1 business case; 

2. the ‘in principle’ sign in from authorities for remaining tranche 1 business 
cases;

3. the current position for the remaining tranche 1 business cases and the 
tranche 2 business cases; 

4. the process being undertaken for the Corporate Support Services project and 
the links to existing business case development activity; 

5. to note the future business cases in the pipeline and the timescales for these 
to be progressed through the gateway process; and 

6. that the implementation on the business cases which have been formally 
signed off to commence. 

Page 246



APPENDIX 

EXTRACT FROM SCHEDULE 4 OF NEW AGMA CONSTITUTION 

5.1 Members of the scrutiny pool appointed under these arrangements will have the 
power to call in any decision of the Board. 

5.2 When a decision is made by the Board the decision shall be published, including 
where possible by electronic means, and shall be available from the address 
specified in Paragraph 24.1 of this operating agreement normally within 2 days of 
being made. It shall be the responsibility of the Secretary to send electronic 
copies of the records of all such decisions to all members of the pool within the 
same timescale.  

5.3 That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify that the 
decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on the expiry of 5 
working days after the publication of the decision, unless 5 members the scrutiny 
pool object to it and call it in. 

5.4 During that period, the Secretary shall call-in a decision for scrutiny by a joint 
meeting of pool members if so requested by any five members from the pool, 
and shall then notify members of the Board of the call-in. The Secretary shall 
call a joint meeting of pool members on such date as he/she may determine, 
where possible after consultation with the Chair of the pool, and in any case 
within 15 working days of the decision to call-in. 

5.5 If, having considered the decision, the joint meeting of pool members is still 
concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the Board for reconsideration, 
setting out in writing the nature of its concerns. If referred to the Board they 
shall then reconsider within a further 15 working days, amending the decision or 
not, before adopting a final decision. 

5.6 The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being 
taken by the Board is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be 
caused by the call in process would seriously prejudice the Board’s or the publics 
or an individual’s interests. The record of the decision, and notice by which it is 
made public shall state whether in the opinion of the decision making person or 
body, the decision is an urgent one, and therefore not subject to call-in. The 
Board must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the 
circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency.

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



 

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 

DECISIONS MADE BY THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 
AUTHORITY AT ITS MEETING ON 30th SEPTEMBER  2011 AT SALE 

TOWN HALL  
 
Decisions published on 4 October 2011 and will come into force from  

4:00pm on the 11 October 2011, subject to Call-in, except for any urgent 
decisions.  

 
The process for call in of decisions is set out as an Appendix to this note, 
extracted from the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) 
Constitution. The address for the purposes of the schedule is that of the 
GMCA Secretary, c/o Wigan Investment Centre, Waterside Drive, Wigan, 
WN3 5BA; or by contacting:  k.bond@agma.gov.uk 
 
The reports detailed in this note can be accessed at the AGMA website via 
the following link:-  http://www.agma.gov.uk/calendar/index.html 
 

 
 1. AIRPORT CITY MANCHESTER (Agenda Item 6) 
 
 The Combined Authority AGREED: 
 

1. an option for a string of linked sites within a wider Enterprise Zone 
Area to be submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government; and 

 
2. to authorise officers to work with stakeholders to progress the 
implementation of the Enterprise Zone. 

 
2. EMPLOYMENT & SKILLS PARTNERSHIP (Agenda Item 7) 

 
The Combined Authority AGREED: 
 
1. that the current chair of the Greater Manchester 14-19 group 
(Councillor John Merry) would chair the new Employment and Skills 
Partnership Board; and 

2. to invite the CA to nominate three further senior elected members to 
sit on the board, with one member from each political group 
represented on the Combined Authority.  

 
 3.  ERDF LOCAL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (Agenda Item 10) 
 
 The Combined Authority AGREED: to confirm the appointment of 

Councillor Sue Murphy as their representative on the Local 
Management Committee, as proposed by the Regional Leaders Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 249



 
4. GREATER MANCHESTER REPRESENTATION ON FLOOD & 
 COASTAL COMMITTEES (Agenda Item 11) 
 
 The Combined Authority AGREED: 
 

1. to confirm the reappointment of Cllr Andrews (Planning and 
Housing Commission, Labour and Manchester) and Cllr Molyneux 
(Environment Commission, Labour and Wigan) to the new North 
West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee; 
 

2. to ask Cllr Mark Weldon (Liberal Democrat, Stockport) who has 
replaced Cllr Bodsworth on the Public Protection Commission, in 
the interests of political balance, to be that Commission’s 
representative on the Committee; 
 

3. that each of the three Commissions organise substitutes from 
amongst its elected members representatives; 
 

4. that one of those three substitutes be a Conservative member ; and 
 

5. that these appointments be reviewed annually at the GMCA/AGMA 
AGM each June. 

 
 The Authority also agreed to refer to the Wider Leadership Team the 

issue of ensuring that officer support for this work in Greater 
Manchester is delivered in the most cost effective way without 
duplication. 

 
5 METROLINK FLEET RENEWAL STRATEGY (AGENDA ITEM E1) 
 
 The Combined Authority agreed to confirm the recommendations of the 

Transport for Greater Manchester Committee that:- 
 

1. the proposed fleet strategy to accelerate the replacement of T68 
trams with new M5000 trams, that will bring forward reliability, 
operational and passenger service benefits across the existing and 
future Metrolink network, be endorsed; 

 
2. the proposed strategy to place an initial order for a number of 
vehicles, as identified in the report, which will also secure the 
existing tram prices for up to 12 months and will enable additional 
trams to be ordered to replace more of the T68 vehicles, when 
funding can be identified, be endorsed; 

 
3. if a further number of trams, as identified in the report, were ordered 
by the proposed option expiry date of 30 September 2012, a 
volume discount would apply, be noted; 

 
4. the utilisation of Minor Works funding, at a level as set out in the 
report, previously approved for tram refurbishment costs, as an 
element of the funding for the fleet replacement strategy, be 
approved; 

 

Page 250



 
5. the inclusion of funds in to the current three year capital 
programme, at a level as set out in the report be approved; 

 
6. the utilisation of existing finance cost reserves, at a level as set out 
in the report, to meet part of the cost of the number of replacement 
vehicles, as set out in the report, either as a capital or a revenue 
contribution be approved; 

 
7. incremental prudential borrowings, at the level explained in the 
report be approved; required for the procurement of the identified 
vehicles at a forecasted annualise cost, including principal 
repayment, over the life of the vehicles, at the level set out in the 
report, after taking account of the utilisation of existing finance cost 
reserves, at the level set out in the report, which was to be met from 
existing TfGM budgets; 

 
8. the incremental borrowings required, at the level as set out in the 
report, be noted. The optimum mix of borrowings and finance cost 
reserves will be determined by the Combined Authority Treasurer, 
prior to the closure of the relevant year’s Accounts; 

 
9. TfGM enters in to contractual arrangements for the procurement of 
additional M5000 trams, with an option to procure further M5000 
trams, at the level set out in the report; and 

 
10. That a further report was to be brought to a future meeting of the 
Authority, as an update on potential funding for further vehicles 
before the proposed option expiry date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 251



 
 
 
 
PART 5B - SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS FOR GMCA, TFGMC AND TFGM 
 
5. Call in of decisions 
 
5.1 Call in of decisions of GMCA and TfGMC 
 

(a) Members of the Scrutiny Pool appointed under this Protocol will 
have the power to call in:- 

 
(i) any decision of the GMCA; 
 
(ii) any major or strategic decision of the TfGMC which is 

taken by the TfGMC in accordance with the delegations 
set out in Part 3 Section B II of this Constitution. 

 
5.2 Publication of Notice of Decisions 
 
  (a) When:- 
 

(i) a decision is made by the GMCA; or  
(ii) a major or strategic decision is made by the TfGMC in 

accordance with the delegations set out in Part 3, Section 
B II of this Constitution;  

 
the decision shall be published, including where possible by 
electronic means, and shall be available from the normally within 
2 days of being made.   It shall be the responsibility of the 
Secretary to send electronic copies of the records of all such 
decisions to all members of the Scrutiny Pool within the same 
timescale. 

 
(b) The notices referred to at subparagraph 5.2(a) above will bear 

the date on which they are published and will specify that the 
decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, as 
from 4.00 pm on the fifth day after the day on which the decision 
was published, unless 5 members of the Scrutiny Pool object to 
it and call it in. 

 
 
 

Page 252



 

ASSOCIATION OF GREATER MANCHESTER AUTHORITIES 
 

DECISIONS MADE BY THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD AT ITS MEETING ON  
30th SEPTEMBER 2011 AT SALE TOWN HALL 

 
Decisions published on 4 October 2011 and will come into force from  
12 October 2011, subject to Call-in, except for any urgent decisions.  

 
The process for call in of decisions is set out as an Appendix to this note, extracted from 
AGMA’s constitution. The address for the purposes of the schedule is that of the AGMA 
Secretary, c/o Wigan Investment Centre, Waterside Drive, Wigan, WN3 5BA; or by 
contacting:  k.bond@agma.gov.uk 
 
The reports detailed in this note can be accessed at the AGMA website via the following 
link:-  http://www.agma.gov.uk/calendar/index.html 
  
  
1. REVIEW OF SECTION 48 GRANTS UNIT (Agenda Item 5) 
 

The Executive Board AGREED: 
  

1. to reaffirm their commitment to a GVA led scheme; 
 

2. that the principle of a Strategic Partnership Fund bid should be encouraged, 
subject to meeting the objectives of the new Scheme; 

 
3. that the preferred option to mitigate the impact of proposed weighting on social 

welfare organisations be option 2 as detailed in section B: 6.9 of the report. 
This is for a specific pot of money (say £100,000) to be reserved within the 
Scheme and which would be open to these organisations. Applications against 
this money would be required to demonstrate delivery against the social impact 
measures, and would still be assessed against a clear and consistent 
framework. 

 
 On this issue Councillor Dave Goddard requested that his support for the 

alternative option – that a financial threshold below which the weightings could 
be adjusted to give greater priority to social impacts - be recorded. 

 
 On this matter the Board also agreed that any specific pot of money reserved 

would be a maximum amount. The total allocation would not awarded if not 
enough schemes met the quality threshold. 

 
4. the timeline outlined in the report for the finalisation of the scheme design, the 

launch of the fund, and the assessment of grant applications; 
 
5. that grants should be awarded for 3 years, subject to an  annual review of 

delivery against outcomes, but that there needed to be a phased plan for 
considering new applications during the third year;  

 
6. to delegate authority to the Chair of the Wider Leadership Team, Chair of the 

Business Management Group, and Secretary to AGMA to implement the 
decisions of the Executive, invite bids to the new Scheme in line with the 

Page 253



 

timeline and process set out in this report, and to report back to Executive at 
their meeting on 16 December for final agreement to grant awards for 2012/13; 
and 

 
7. that in advance of the Executive Board meeting on 13 December the Statutory 

Functions Committee be asked to consider the bids received and to make 
recommendations to the Executive Board. 

 
2. AGMA – STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS & ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 2010/2011 (Agenda Item 6) 

 
The Executive Board AGREED to approve the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 
and agree the recommendations set out in the Annual Governance Report. 
 

3. SERVICE PROVISION OF POLICE PUBLIC ENQUIRY COUNTERS (Agenda Item 
7) 

 
The Executive Board AGREED to confirm its support for the proposals made on 
this issue at the meeting of the Greater Manchester Police Authority on 23 
September 2011. 
 

4. PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMISSION WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 8) 
 
 The Executive Board AGREED: 
 

1. to approve the contents of the Commission’s work programme and to receive a 
refreshed work programme within twelve months; 

 
2. that no element within the work programme be waived as a potential referral    

                 back to the Executive Board over the coming year; and 
 

3. to endorse and specifically to welcome Greater Manchester wide minimum 
service standards for domestic abuse practitioners and an accompanying 
public-facing victims’ charter. 

Page 254



Agenda Item 14

Page 255

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 19/09/2011 Cabinet
	Minutes Public Pack, 06/10/2011 Cabinet

	3 Proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges 2012/13
	4 Common Housing Allocation Policy and Policy Amendments
	5 Implementing the Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
	ASB Policy Latest version (2) 30_08_2011 (3)
	Draft ASB PRS protocol

	6 Gating Orders
	Gating Order Policy  Procedure 2011
	Appendix 1  Gating Order Consultation Form

	7 Climate Change Adaptation Supplementary Planning Document
	8 Customer Services - Piloting New Ways of Working
	9 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults - Annual Update
	Annual Report 2011  C Foster (3)

	10 Rochdale Town Centre - Metrolink Phase 3B: Proposed New Traffic Regulation Orders and Revocation of Existing Traffic Regulation Orders
	App A and Drawings
	App B and drawings
	App C and drawing
	Appendix 'D'

	12 Greater Manchester Combined Authority and AGMA Executive Board - Key Decisions
	GMCA 29 7 11
	EXEC 29 7 11
	GMCA 30 9 11
	EXEC 30 9 11

	14 Rochdale Town Centre Strategic Acquisition

